EREE DATA SCIENCE

FULL ARCHIVE

200+ Python & Data Science Tips











avichawla.substack.com



Table of Contents

| A Visual Guide to Stochastic, Mini-batch, and Batch Gradient Descent |
|--|
| A Lesser-Known Difference Between For-Loops and List Comprehensions 11 |
| The Limitation of PCA Which Many Folks Often Ignore |
| Magic Methods: An Underrated Gem of Python OOP16 |
| The Taxonomy Of Regression Algorithms That Many Don't Bother To Remember 19 |
| A Highly Overlooked Approach To Analysing Pandas DataFrames |
| Visualise The Change In Rank Over Time With Bump Charts |
| Use This Simple Technique To Never Struggle With TP, TN, FP and FN Again 23 |
| The Most Common Misconception About Inplace Operations in Pandas |
| Build Elegant Web Apps Right From Jupyter Notebook with Mercury |
| Become A Bilingual Data Scientist With These Pandas to SQL Translations 29 |
| A Lesser-Known Feature of Sklearn To Train Models on Large Datasets |
| A Simple One-Liner to Create Professional Looking Matplotlib Plots |
| Avoid This Costly Mistake When Indexing A DataFrame |
| 9 Command Line Flags To Run Python Scripts More Flexibly |
| Breathing KMeans: A Better and Faster Alternative to KMeans |
| How Many Dimensions Should You Reduce Your Data To When Using PCA?43 |
| 🚀 Mito Just Got Supercharged With Al!46 |
| Be Cautious Before Drawing Any Conclusions Using Summary Statistics |
| Use Custom Python Objects In A Boolean Context |
| A Visual Guide To Sampling Techniques in Machine Learning52 |
| You Were Probably Given Incomplete Info About A Tuple's Immutability |
| A Simple Trick That Significantly Improves The Quality of Matplotlib Plots58 |
| A Visual and Overly Simplified Guide to PCA60 |
| Supercharge Your Jupyter Kernel With ipyflow |
| A Lesser-known Feature of Creating Plots with Plotly |
| The Limitation Of Euclidean Distance Which Many Often Ignore |
| Visualising The Impact Of Regularisation Parameter |
| AutoProfiler: Automatically Profile Your DataFrame As You Work |



| A Little Bit Of Extra Effort Can Hugely Transform Your Storytelling Skills74 |
|--|
| A Nasty Hidden Feature of Python That Many Programmers Aren't Aware Of. 76 |
| Interactively Visualise A Decision Tree With A Sankey Diagram |
| Use Histograms With Caution. They Are Highly Misleading! |
| Three Simple Ways To (Instantly) Make Your Scatter Plots Clutter Free |
| A (Highly) Important Point to Consider Before You Use KMeans Next Time86 |
| Why You Should Avoid Appending Rows To A DataFrame |
| Matplotlib Has Numerous Hidden Gems. Here's One of Them91 |
| A Counterintuitive Thing About Python Dictionaries |
| Probably The Fastest Way To Execute Your Python Code |
| Are You Sure You Are Using The Correct Pandas Terminologies? |
| Is Class Imbalance Always A Big Problem To Deal With? |
| A Simple Trick That Will Make Heatmaps More Elegant103 |
| A Visual Comparison Between Locality and Density-based Clustering |
| Why Don't We Call It Logistic Classification Instead? |
| A Typical Thing About Decision Trees Which Many Often Ignore108 |
| Always Validate Your Output Variable Before Using Linear Regression |
| A Counterintuitive Fact About Python Functions110 |
| Why Is It Important To Shuffle Your Dataset Before Training An ML Model 111 |
| The Limitations Of Heatmap That Are Slowing Down Your Data Analysis112 |
| The Limitation Of Pearson Correlation Which Many Often Ignore |
| Why Are We Typically Advised To Set Seeds for Random Generators?114 |
| An Underrated Technique To Improve Your Data Visualizations |
| A No-Code Tool to Create Charts and Pivot Tables in Jupyter116 |
| If You Are Not Able To Code A Vectorized Approach, Try This |
| Why Are We Typically Advised To Never Iterate Over A DataFrame?119 |
| Manipulating Mutable Objects In Python Can Get Confusing At Times 120 |
| This Small Tweak Can Significantly Boost The Run-time of KMeans 122 |
| Most Python Programmers Don't Know This About Python OOP 124 |
| Who Said Matplotlib Cannot Create Interactive Plots? |
| Don't Create Messy Bar Plots. Instead, Try Bubble Charts! |
| You Can Add a List As a Dictionary's Key (Technically)! |



| Most ML Folks Often Neglect This While Using Linear Regression |
|---|
| 35 Hidden Python Libraries That Are Absolute Gems |
| Use Box Plots With Caution! They May Be Misleading131 |
| An Underrated Technique To Create Better Data Plots |
| The Pandas DataFrame Extension Every Data Scientist Has Been Waiting For133 |
| Supercharge Shell With Python Using Xonsh134 |
| Most Command-line Users Don't Know This Cool Trick About Using Terminals 135 |
| A Simple Trick to Make The Most Out of Pivot Tables in Pandas136 |
| Why Python Does Not Offer True OOP Encapsulation |
| Never Worry About Parsing Errors Again While Reading CSV with Pandas138 |
| An Interesting and Lesser-Known Way To Create Plots Using Pandas139 |
| Most Python Programmers Don't Know This About Python For-loops |
| How To Enable Function Overloading In Python141 |
| Generate Helpful Hints As You Write Your Pandas Code |
| Speedup NumPy Methods 25x With Bottleneck143 |
| Visualizing The Data Transformation of a Neural Network |
| Never Refactor Your Code Manually Again. Instead, Use Sourcery! |
| Draw The Data You Are Looking For In Seconds |
| Style Matplotlib Plots To Make Them More Attractive |
| Speed-up Parquet I/O of Pandas by 5x148 |
| 40 Open-Source Tools to Supercharge Your Pandas Workflow149 |
| Stop Using The Describe Method in Pandas. Instead, use Skimpy150 |
| The Right Way to Roll Out Library Updates in Python |
| Simple One-Liners to Preview a Decision Tree Using Sklearn |
| Stop Using The Describe Method in Pandas. Instead, use Summarytools 153 |
| Never Search Jupyter Notebooks Manually Again To Find Your Code |
| F-strings Are Much More Versatile Than You Think |
| Is This The Best Animated Guide To KMeans Ever? |
| An Effective Yet Underrated Technique To Improve Model Performance157 |
| Create Data Plots Right From The Terminal158 |
| Make Your Matplotlib Plots More Professional159 |
| 37 Hidden Python Libraries That Are Absolute Gems |



| Preview Your README File Locally In GitHub Style | 161 |
|---|-------|
| Pandas and NumPy Return Different Values for Standard Deviation. Why? | . 162 |
| Visualize Commit History of Git Repo With Beautiful Animations | 163 |
| Perfplot: Measure, Visualize and Compare Run-time With Ease | 164 |
| This GUI Tool Can Possibly Save You Hours Of Manual Work | 165 |
| How Would You Identify Fuzzy Duplicates In A Data With Million Records? | 166 |
| Stop Previewing Raw DataFrames. Instead, Use DataTables | 168 |
| 🚀 A Single Line That Will Make Your Python Code Faster | 169 |
| Prettify Word Clouds In Python | 170 |
| How to Encode Categorical Features With Many Categories? | . 171 |
| Calendar Map As A Richer Alternative to Line Plot | 172 |
| 10 Automated EDA Tools That Will Save You Hours Of (Tedious) Work | 173 |
| Why KMeans May Not Be The Apt Clustering Algorithm Always | 174 |
| Converting Python To LaTeX Has Possibly Never Been So Simple | 175 |
| Density Plot As A Richer Alternative to Scatter Plot | . 176 |
| 30 Python Libraries to (Hugely) Boost Your Data Science Productivity | 177 |
| Sklearn One-liner to Generate Synthetic Data | 178 |
| Label Your Data With The Click Of A Button | 179 |
| Analyze A Pandas DataFrame Without Code | . 180 |
| Python One-Liner To Create Sketchy Hand-drawn Plots | 181 |
| 70x Faster Pandas By Changing Just One Line of Code | . 182 |
| An Interactive Guide To Master Pandas In One Go | 183 |
| Make Dot Notation More Powerful in Python | 184 |
| The Coolest Jupyter Notebook Hack | 185 |
| Create a Moving Bubbles Chart in Python | 186 |
| Skorch: Use Scikit-learn API on PyTorch Models | 187 |
| Reduce Memory Usage Of A Pandas DataFrame By 90% | . 188 |
| An Elegant Way To Perform Shutdown Tasks in Python | 189 |
| Visualizing Google Search Trends of 2022 using Python | 190 |
| Create A Racing Bar Chart In Python | . 191 |
| Speed-up Pandas Apply 5x with NumPy | 192 |
| A No-Code Online Tool To Explore and Understand Neural Networks | 193 |





| What Are Class Methods and When To Use Them? | 194 |
|---|-----|
| Make Sklearn KMeans 20x times faster | 195 |
| Speed-up NumPy 20x with Numexpr | 196 |
| A Lesser-Known Feature of Apply Method In Pandas | 197 |
| An Elegant Way To Perform Matrix Multiplication | 198 |
| Create Pandas DataFrame from Dataclass | 199 |
| Hide Attributes While Printing A Dataclass Object | 200 |
| List : Tuple :: Set : ? | 201 |
| Difference Between Dot and Matmul in NumPy | 202 |
| Run SQL in Jupyter To Analyze A Pandas DataFrame | 203 |
| Automated Code Refactoring With Sourcery | 204 |
| Post_init: Add Attributes To A Dataclass Object Post Initialization | 205 |
| Simplify Your Functions With Partial Functions | 206 |
| When You Should Not Use the head() Method In Pandas | 207 |
| DotMap: A Better Alternative to Python Dictionary | 208 |
| Prevent Wild Imports Withall in Python | 209 |
| Three Lesser-known Tips For Reading a CSV File Using Pandas | 210 |
| The Best File Format To Store A Pandas DataFrame | 211 |
| Debugging Made Easy With PySnooper | 212 |
| Lesser-Known Feature of the Merge Method in Pandas | 213 |
| The Best Way to Use Apply() in Pandas | 214 |
| Deep Learning Network Debugging Made Easy | 215 |
| Don't Print NumPy Arrays! Use Lovely-NumPy Instead | 216 |
| Performance Comparison of Python 3.11 and Python 3.10 | 217 |
| View Documentation in Jupyter Notebook | 218 |
| A No-code Tool To Understand Your Data Quickly | 219 |
| Why 256 is 256 But 257 is not 257? | 220 |
| Make a Class Object Behave Like a Function | 222 |
| Lesser-known feature of Pickle Files | 224 |
| Dot Plot: A Potential Alternative to Bar Plot | 226 |
| Why Correlation (and Other Statistics) Can Be Misleading | 227 |
| Supercharge value counts() Method in Pandas With Sidetable | 228 |





| Write Your Own Flavor Of Pandas | .229 |
|--|-------|
| CodeSquire: The AI Coding Assistant You Should Use Over GitHub Copilot | 230 |
| Vectorization Does Not Always Guarantee Better Performance | 231 |
| In Defense of Match-case Statements in Python | 232 |
| Enrich Your Notebook With Interactive Controls | 234 |
| Get Notified When Jupyter Cell Has Executed | 236 |
| Data Analysis Using No-Code Pandas In Jupyter | 237 |
| Using Dictionaries In Place of If-conditions | 238 |
| Clear Cell Output In Jupyter Notebook During Run-time | 240 |
| A Hidden Feature of Describe Method In Pandas | 241 |
| Use Slotted Class To Improve Your Python Code | .242 |
| Stop Analysing Raw Tables. Use Styling Instead! | 243 |
| Explore CSV Data Right From The Terminal | .244 |
| Generate Your Own Fake Data In Seconds | 245 |
| Import Your Python Package as a Module | 246 |
| Specify Loops and Runs In %%timeit | . 247 |
| Waterfall Charts: A Better Alternative to Line/Bar Plot | .248 |
| Hexbin Plots As A Richer Alternative to Scatter Plots | 249 |
| Importing Modules Made Easy with Pyforest | 250 |
| Analyse Flow Data With Sankey Diagrams | 252 |
| Feature Tracking Made Simple In Sklearn Transformers | .254 |
| Lesser-known Feature of f-strings in Python | 256 |
| Don't Use time.time() To Measure Execution Time | .257 |
| Now You Can Use DALL·E With OpenAl API | 258 |
| Polynomial Linear Regression Plot Made Easy With Seaborn | . 259 |
| Retrieve Previously Computed Output In Jupyter Notebook | . 260 |
| Parallelize Pandas Apply() With Swifter | .261 |
| Create DataFrame Hassle-free By Using Clipboard | .262 |
| Run Python Project Directory As A Script | 263 |
| Inspect Program Flow with IceCream | .264 |
| Don't Create Conditional Columns in Pandas with Apply | .265 |
| Pretty Plotting With Pandas | 266 |

avichawla.substack.com



| Build Baseline Models Effortlessly With Sklearn | 267 |
|--|-----|
| Fine-grained Error Tracking With Python 3.11 | 268 |
| Find Your Code Hiding In Some Jupyter Notebook With Ease | 269 |
| Restart the Kernel Without Losing Variables | 270 |
| How to Read Multiple CSV Files Efficiently | |
| Elegantly Plot the Decision Boundary of a Classifier | 273 |
| An Elegant Way to Import Metrics From Sklearn | 274 |
| Configure Sklearn To Output Pandas DataFrame | 275 |
| Display Progress Bar With Apply() in Pandas | 276 |
| Modify a Function During Run-time | 277 |
| Regression Plot Made Easy with Plotly | 278 |
| Polynomial Linear Regression with NumPy | |
| Alter the Datatype of Multiple Columns at Once | 280 |
| Datatype For Handling Missing Valued Columns in Pandas | 281 |
| Parallelize Pandas with Pandarallel | 282 |
| Why you should not dump DataFrames to a CSV | 283 |
| Save Memory with Python Generators | |
| Don't use print() to debug your code | 286 |
| Find Unused Python Code With Ease | 288 |
| Define the Correct DataType for Categorical Columns | 289 |
| Transfer Variables Between Jupyter Notebooks | 290 |
| Why You Should Not Read CSVs with Pandas | 291 |
| Modify Python Code During Run-Time | 292 |
| Handle Missing Data With Missingno | |

7



A Visual Guide to Stochastic, Mini-batch, and Batch Gradient Descent

| | #1 Stechastic Gradient Descent | ONE data point | all points and specha Update weights | |
|--------------|---|------------------------|--|------|
| 0000 | #2 Mini-Batch Gradient Descent | MINIT-BATCH of data | Repeat for all mini-butches and epot Updote weights | er B |
| raining Data | #3 Batch Gradient Descent | | Repeat for all epochs Update | |

Gradient descent is a widely used optimization algorithm for training machine learning models.

Stochastic, mini-batch, and batch gradient descent are three different variations of gradient descent, and they are distinguished by the number of data points used to update the model weights at each iteration.



• Stochastic gradient descent: Update network weights using one data point at a time.

| | | <u>_</u> | Appear for of points and appoints | 7 |
|------|-----------------------------------|------------|--------------------------------------|----|
| 0000 | Stochestic Gradient Descent | date paint | Lipsfielte | EP |
| 0000 | • | 0 | weights | |

• Advantages:

- o Easier to fit in memory.
- o Can converge faster on large datasets and can help avoid local minima due to oscillations.

• Disadvantages:

- o Noisy steps can lead to slower convergence and require more tuning of hyperparameters.
- o Computationally expensive due to frequent updates.
- o Loses the advantage of vectorized operations.

Mini-batch gradient descent: Update network weights using a few data points at a time.

| | | \bigcap | Repeat for all | |
|------|------------|------------|--------------------|-------|
| | | MTNT-BATCH | mini-batthes and q | porte |
| | Mini-Batch | of data | | 1 |
| 0000 | Descent | 00 | Update: | AND I |
| 0000 | | 00 | weights | W.B |

• Advantages:

• More computationally efficient than batch gradient descent due to vectorization benefits.





• Less noisy updates than stochastic gradient descent.

• Disadvantages:

- Requires tuning of batch size.
- May not converge to a global minimum if the batch size is not well-tuned.

Batch gradient descent: Update network weights using the entire data at once.

| | | \frown | Repeat for | |
|------|---------|-------------|------------|----|
| | Batch | ENTIRE data | off epochs | |
| 0000 | Descent | 0000 | Update | EP |
| 0000 | | 0000 | weights | 1 |

- Advantages:
 - Less noisy steps taken towards global minima.
 - Can benefit from vectorization.
 - Produces a more stable convergence.

• Disadvantages:

- Enforces memory constraints for large datasets.
- Computationally slow as many gradients are computed, and all weights are updated at once.

Over to you: What are some other advantages/disadvantages you can think of? Let me know :)



A Lesser-Known Difference Between For-Loops and List Comprehensions



In the code above, the for-loop updated the existing variable (a), but list comprehension didn't. Can you guess why? Read more to know.

A loop variable is handled differently in for-loops and list comprehensions.

A for-loop leaks the loop variable into the surrounding scope. In other words, once the loop is over, you can still access the loop variable.

We can verify this below:





In the main snippet above, as the loop variable (a) already existed, it was overwritten in each iteration.

But a list comprehension does not work this way. Instead, the loop variable always remains local to the list comprehension. It is never leaked outside.

We can verify this below:



That is why the existing variable (a), which was also used inside the list comprehension, remained unchanged. The list comprehension defined the loop variable (a) local to its scope.

Over to you: What are some other differences that you know of between for-loops and list comprehension?



The Limitation of PCA Which Many Folks Often Ignore



Imagine you have a classification dataset. If you use PCA to reduce dimensions, it is inherently assumed that your data is linearly separable.

But it may not be the case always. Thus, PCA will fail in such cases.





If you wish to read how PCA works, I would highly recommend reading one of my previous posts: <u>A Visual and Overly Simplified Guide to PCA</u>.

To resolve this, we use the kernel trick (or the KernelPCA). The idea is to:

Project the data to another space using a kernel function, where the data becomes linearly separable.

Apply the standard PCA algorithm to the transformed data.

For instance, in the image below, the original data is linearly inseparable. Using PCA directly does not produce any desirable results.



But as mentioned above, KernelPCA first transforms the data to a linearly separable space and then applies PCA, resulting in a linearly separable dataset.







Sklearn provides a KernelPCA wrapper, supporting many popularly used kernel functions. You can find more details here: <u>Sklearn Docs</u>.

Having said that, it is also worth noting that the run-time of PCA is cubic in relation to the number of dimensions of the data.

Runtime :
$$O(nd^2 + d^3)$$

 $d: dimensions$
 $n: samples$

When we use a KernelPCA, typically, the original data (in n dimensions) is projected to a new higher dimensional space (in m dimensions; m>n). Therefore, it increases the overall run-time of PCA.



Magic Methods: An Underrated Gem of Python OOP

| Magic Method | Syntax | Usage/Description |
|--------------|------------------------------|--|
| new | new(cis, *args, **liwags): | Invoked beforeinit to allocate memory to ubject |
| init | init(self, *args; **kwags)) | Invoked afterto initialize the object |
| str | str(self): | Involut when str(obj) or print(obj) is used |
| int | int_(self) | Invoked when int(sbj) is used |
| _len_ | _len_(self): | Involved when len(obj) is used |
| call | coll_(self, *orgs, **kwogs): | Involved when class object is colled as a function obj() |
| getitem | (self, key): | Invoked when object is indexed: obj(key) |
| setitem | getitem_(solf, key, value): | Invoked when object is indexed and value is anti objfkey]+value |
| delitem | _delitem_(self, key) | Invoked when object's index is deleted: del obj[kcy] |
| contains | (self_, item): | Invoked when the in operator is used: item in obj |
| bool | bool(self): | Invoked when object is used in boolean contact: if abj or book(abj) |
| iter | iter(self) | Involued when object is iterated: for x in abj |
| eq | eq(self, other): | Envoked when == operator is used to compare two objects: obj1 == obj2 |
| ne | ne(self, other); | Invoked when In operator is used to compare two objects: obj1 In obj2 |
| add | _edd_(self, other): | Involved when two objects are added: staj1 - obj2 |
| mul | mul_(self, other): | Invoked when two objects are multiplied: ubj1 * obj2 |
| abs | _abs_(self) | Invoked to compute absolute value or object: abs(obj) |
| neg | (self): | Invoked when unary operator - |

Magic Methods (also called **dunder methods**) are special methods defined inside a Python class' implementation.

On a side note, the word "Dunder" is short for **D**ouble **Under**score.

They are prefixed and suffixed with double underscores, such as __len__, __str__, and many more.



Magic Methods offer immense flexibility to define the behavior of class objects in certain scenarios.

For instance, say we want to define a custom behavior for adding two objects of our class (obj1 + obj2).

An obvious and straightforward to do this is by defining a method, say add_objects(), and passing the two objects as its argument.



While the above approach will work, invoking a method explicitly for adding two objects isn't as elegant as using the + operator:





This is where magic methods come in. In the above example, implementing the __add__ magic method will allow you to add the two objects using the + operator instead.

Thus, magic methods allow us to make our classes more intuitive and easier to work with.

As a result, awareness about them is extremely crucial for developing elegant, and intuitive pipelines.

The visual summarizes ~20 most commonly used magic methods in Python.

Over to you: What other magic methods will you include here? Which ones do you use the most? Let me know :)



The Taxonomy Of Regression Algorithms That Many Don't Bother To Remember

| | Regression Type | Description | Equation/Loss Function |
|-----------|------------------------------------|---|--|
| Г | Simple Lineor Regression | One independent (v) and one dependent (v) variable | $\hat{y} = wx + b$ $Low = \sum \frac{(y-\hat{y})^{\theta}}{n}$ |
| duessing. | Polynomial Linear Regression | Pulynamial features (x, x ² , x ²) and one dependent (y) verifible | $\hat{y} = w_1 x + w_2 x^2 + \dots + b$ $Loss = \sum \frac{(y - \hat{y})^2}{n}$ |
| | Multiple Linear Regression | Arbitrary features $\{x_1, x_2, \ldots, x_n\}$ and one dependent $\{y\}$ variable | $\hat{y} = w_1x_1 + w_2x_2 + \cdots + b$ $L_{coss} = \sum \frac{(y - \hat{y})^2}{n}$ |
| [| Ridge Regression | Linear Regression with LZ Regularization | $Loss = \sum \frac{(y - \hat{y})^2}{n} + \lambda \sum_{i=1}^{n} w_i$ |
| - | Lasso Regression | Linear Regression with L1 Regularization | $Loss = \sum \frac{(y - \hat{y})^2}{n} + \lambda \sum_{i=1}^{n} w $ |
| | Elastic Net | Liver Regression with BOTH L1 and L2 Regularization | $Loss = \sum \frac{(y - \hat{y})^3}{n} + \lambda ((1 - \alpha) * \underbrace{\sum_{M} a_i^2}_{M} + \alpha * \underbrace{\sum}_{M}$ |
| | - Logistic Regression | One (or more) independent variable(s) to predict BDMARY softcase probability | $P(X) = \frac{1}{1 + e^{-(w_1 x_1 + w_2 x_2 + \dots})}$ |
| Probab | Multinomial Logistic Regression | Chie (or more) independent warieble(s) to predict MULTIPLE conspirate | $P(Y = k X) = \frac{e^{score_k}}{\sum_{k=score}^{K}}$ |

Regression algorithms allow us to model the relationship between a dependent variable and one or more independent variables.

After estimating the parameters of a regression model, we can gain insight into how changes in one variable affect another.

Being widely used in data science, an awareness of their various forms is crucial to precisely convey which algorithm you are using.

Here are eight of the most standard regression algorithms described in a single line:

Linear Regression

• Simple linear regression: One independent (x) and one dependent (y) variable.



- **Polynomial Linear Regression:** Polynomial features and one dependent (y) variable.
- **Multiple Linear Regression:** Arbitrary features and one dependent (y) variable.

Regularized Regression

- **Lasso Regression:** Linear Regression with L1 Regularization.
- **Ridge Regression:** Linear Regression with L2 Regularization.
- **Elastic Net:** Linear Regression with BOTH L1 and L2 Regularization.

Categorical Probability Prediction

- Logistic Regression: Predict binary outcome probability.
- Multinomial Logistic Regression (or Softmax Regression): Predict multiple categorical probabilities.

Over to you: What other regressions algorithms will you include here?



A Highly Overlooked Approach To Analysing Pandas DataFrames

| | | | 📉 avicha | wla.su | bstac |
|------|--------------------------------|--------------------------|------------|-------------------------------------|-------------------------|
| •• | | | | | |
| .sty | /le.bar(color=' subset= | Lightgreen', 'Count') | df.style.t | oackgroun Hap='Blue Hoset='Co | d_grad: s', unt') |
| С | urrency | Count | 3 | Currency | Count |
| 0 | AED | 1132 | 0 | AED | 1132 |
| 1 | USD | 315 | 1 | USD | 315 |
| 2 | INR | 700 | 2 | INR | 700 |
| 3 | EUR | 522 | 3 | EUR | 522 |
| 4 | SGD | 261 | 4 | SGD | 261 |
| 5 | GBP | 719 | 5 | GBP | 719 |
| 6 | ARS | 97 | 6 | ARS | 97 |
| 7 | AUD | 604 | 7 | AUD | 604 |
| 8 | NZD | 411 | 8 | NZD | 411 |
| 9 | AZN | 516 | 9 | AZN | 516 |
| 10 | BRL | 712 | 10 | BRL | 712 |
| 11 | GHS | 111 | 11 | GHS | 111 |

Instead of previewing raw DataFrames, styling can make data analysis much easier and faster. Here's how.

Jupyter is a web-based IDE. Anything you print is rendered using HTML and CSS.

This means you can style your output in many different ways.

To style Pandas DataFrames, use its Styling API (**df.style**). As a result, the DataFrame is rendered with the specified styling.

Read more here: **Documentation**.





Visualise The Change In Rank Over Time With Bump Charts



When visualizing the change in rank over time, using a bar chart may not be appropriate. Instead, try Bump Charts.

They are specifically used to visualize the rank of different items over time.

In contrast to the commonly used bar chart, they are clear, elegant, and easy to comprehend.

Over to you: What are some other bar chart alternatives to try in such cases? Let me know :)

Find the code for creating a bump chart in Python here: <u>Notebook</u>.



Use This Simple Technique To Never Struggle With TP, TN, FP and FN Again



Do you often struggle to label model predictions as TP, TN, FP and FN, and comprehend them? If yes, here's a simple guide to help you out.

When labeling any prediction, ask yourself two questions:

Did the model get it right? Answer: yes (or True) / no (or False).

What was the predicted class? **Answer: Positive/Negative.**

Next, combine the above two answers to get the final label.

For instance, say the actual and predicted class were positive.

Did the model get it right? The answer is **yes (or TRUE)**.

What was the predicted class? The answer is **POSITIVE**.

Final label: TRUE POSITIVE.

As an exercise, try labeling the following predictions. Consider the "Cat" class as "Positive" and the "Dog" class as "Negative".



avichawla.substack.com

| | avichawla.substack.co | | |
|------------|-----------------------|-----------------------------|-------------------------------|
| True Class | Predicted Class | Did the model get it right? | What was the predicted class? |
| 2 | 0-0 | - | - |
| 0 | 19 | - | 7 |
| 19 A. | 0 | - / | 1/- |
| <u>_</u> | | | - |



The Most Common Misconception About Inplace Operations in Pandas

| avichawla.substack | | | |
|----------------------|----------------|----------------|--|
| | Run-time | | |
| Method | inplace=False | inplace=True | |
| df.replace() | 140 µs | 244 µs (Slow) | |
| df.sort_values() | 374 <i>µ</i> s | 450 µs (Slow) | |
| df.reset_index() | 35 µs | 10 µS (Fast) | |
| df.drop() | 200 µs | 262 µs (Slow) | |
| df.fillna() | 90 <i>µ</i> s | 222 µs (Slow) | |
| df.dropna() | 750 µs | 1088 µs (Slow) | |
| df.drop_duplicates() | 856 µs | 1058 µs (Slow) | |
| df.rename() | 151 µs | 152 µs (Equal) | |

Pandas users often modify a DataFrame inplace expecting better performance. Yet, it may not always be efficient. Here's why.

The image compares the run-time of inplace and non-in-place operations. In most cases, inplace operations are slow.

Why?

Contrary to common belief, most inplace operations DO NOT prevent the creation of a new copy. It is just that inplace assigns the copy back to the same address.



But during this assignment, Pandas performs some extra checks (SettingWithCopy) to ensure that the DataFrame is being modified correctly. This, at times, can be an expensive operation.

Yet, in general, there is no guarantee that an inplace operation is faster.

What's more, inplace operations do not allow chaining multiple operations, such as this:







Build Elegant Web Apps Right From Jupyter Notebook with Mercury



Exploring and sharing data insights using Jupyter is quite common for data folks. Yet, an interactive app is better for those who don't care about your code and are interested in your results.

While creating presentations is possible, it can be time-consuming. Also, one has to leave the comfort of a Jupyter Notebook.

Instead, try Mercury. It's an open-source tool that converts your jupyter notebook to a web app in no time. Thus, you can create the web app without leaving the notebook.

A quick demo is shown below:



avichawla.substack.com

| partir Meney Detrational contains constraint | · HERCURY | |
|--|-------------|---------------------------------|
| <pre>input in Manage Definition in an an an an annual and an an</pre> | Mercury App | Linear Data App Welcome Avi. |
| A for the second s | | |

What's more, all updates to the Jupyter Notebook are instantly reflected in the Mercury app.

In contrast to the widely-adopted streamlit, web apps created with Mercury can be:

Exported as PDF/HTML.

Showcased as a live presentation.

Secured with authentication to restrict access.



Become A Bilingual Data Scientist With These Pandas to SQL Translations

| Operation | Pandas | SQL | |
|-------------------------------|--|---|--|
| Read CSV | pd.read_csv(file) | LOAD DATA INFILE 'data.cm' INTO TABLE table FIELDS TERMINATED BY '.' LINES TERMINATED BY '.' IGNORE 1 ROWS. | |
| Print first 10 (or k) rows | df.head(10) | SELECT * FROM table LIMIT 10: | |
| Dimensions | df.shope | SELECT count(") FROM table: | |
| Datatype | df, dtyes | DESCRIBE table: | |
| Filter Data | df[df.column>10] | SELECT * FROM table where column>10; | |
| Select column(s) | df.column | SELECT column FROM table; | |
| Sort | df_sort_values("column") | SELECT * FROM table ORDER BY column: | |
| Fill NaN | df.column.fillna(0) | UPDATE table SET column=0 WHERE column IS NULL: | |
| Join | pd.merge(df1, df2, on ="col", how = "inner") | SELECT * FROM table1 JOIN table2 ON (table1.col = table2.col); | |
| Concotenate | pd.concot((df1, df2)) | SELECT * FROM table1 UNION ALL table2; | |
| Group | df.groupby("column"). ogg_col.mean() | SELECT calumn, avg(agg_col) FROM table SROUP BY column: | |
| Unique values | df.column.unique() | SELECT DISTINCT column FROM Table: | |
| Rename column | df.rename(columns = ("old_name": "new_name")) | ALTER TABLE table RENAME COLUMN old_nome TO new_nome: | |
| Delete column | df.drop(columns = ["column"]) | ALTER TABLE table | |

SQL and Pandas are both powerful tools for data scientists to work with data.

Together, SQL and Pandas can be used to clean, transform, and analyze large datasets, and to create complex data pipelines and models.



Thus, proficiency in both frameworks can be extremely valuable to data scientists.

This visual depicts a few common operations in Pandas and their corresponding translations in SQL.

I have a detailed blog on Pandas to SQL translations with many more examples. Read it here: Pandas to SQL blog.

Over to you: What other Pandas to SQL translations will you include here?





A Lesser-Known Feature of Sklearn To Train Models on Large Datasets



It is difficult to train models with sklearn when you have plenty of data. This may often raise memory errors as the entire data is loaded in memory. But here's what can help.

Sklearn implements the **partial_fit** API for various algorithms, which offers incremental learning.

As the name suggests, the model can learn incrementally from a mini-batch of instances. This prevents limited memory constraints as only a few instances are loaded in memory at once.



avichawla.substack.com



As shown in the main image, clf.fit(X, y) takes the entire data, and thus, it may raise memory errors. But, loading chunks of data and invoking the $clf.partial_fit()$ method prevents this and offers seamless training.

Also, remember that while using the **partial_fit** API, a mini-batch may not have instances of all classes (especially the first mini-batch). Thus, the model will be unable to cope with new/unseen classes in subsequent mini-batches. Therefore, you should pass a list of all possible classes in the classes parameter.

Having said that, it is also worth noting that not all sklearn estimators implement the **partial_fit** API. Here's the list:

| Classification |
|---|
| sklearn.naive_bayes.MultinomialNB |
| o sklearn.naive_bayes.BernoulliNB |
| sklearn.linear_model.Perceptron |
| sklearn.linear_model.SGDClassifier |
| o sklearn.linear_model.PassiveAggressiveClassifier |
| Regression |
| • sklearn.linear_model.SGDRegressor |
| • sklearn.linear_model.PassiveAggressiveRegressor |
| Clustering |
| • sklearn.cluster.MiniBatchKMeans |
| Decomposition / feature Extraction |
| • sklearn.decomposition.MiniBatchDictionaryLearning |
| • sklearn.cluster.MiniBatchKMeans |

Yet, it is surely worth exploring to see if you can benefit from it :)



A Simple One-Liner to Create Professional Looking Matplotlib Plots



The default styling of matplotlib plots appears pretty basic at times. Here's how you can make them appealing.

To create professional-looking plots for presentations, reports, or scientific papers, try LovelyPlots.

It provides many style sheets to improve their default appearance, by simply adding just one line of code.

To install LovelyPlots, run the following command:

pip install LovelyPlots

Next, import the matplotlib library, and change the style as follows: (You don't have to import LovelyPlots anywhere)

import matplotlib.pyplot as plt

plt.style.use(style) ## change to the style provided by LovelyPlots

Print the list of all possible styles as follows:

plt.style.available

Get Started: LovelyPlots Repository.



avichawla.substack.com



Avoid This Costly Mistake When Indexing A DataFrame



When indexing a dataframe, choosing whether to select a column first or slice a row first is pretty important from a run-time perspective.

As shown above, selecting the column first is over **15 times** faster than slicing the row first. Why?

As I have talked before, Pandas DataFrame is a column-major data structure. Thus, consecutive elements in a column are stored next to each other in memory.




As processors are efficient with contiguous blocks of memory, accessing a column is much faster than accessing a row (read more about this in one of my previous posts <u>here</u>).

But when you slice a row first, each row is retrieved by accessing non-contiguous blocks of memory, thereby making it slow.

Also, once all the elements of a row are gathered, Pandas converts them to a Series, which is another overhead.



We can verify this conversion below:

| ••• | |
|---|---------------|
| SSS df | |
| Δ R | |
| 0 1 2 | |
| 1 3 4 | |
| <pre>>>> df.loc[0]</pre> | |
| A 1 | |
| B 2 | Series object |
| Name: 0, dtype: int64 | 1 |
| <pre>>>> type(df.loc[0])</pre> | |
| pandas.core.series.Series | ϵ |

Instead, when you select a column first, elements are retrieved by accessing contiguous blocks of memory, which is way faster. Also, a column is inherently a Pandas Series. Thus, there is no conversion overhead involved like above.



avichawla.substack.com



Overall, by accessing the column first, we avoid accessing non-contiguous memory access, which does happen when we access the row first.

This makes selecting the column first faster than slicing a row first in indexing operations.

If you are confused about what selecting, indexing, slicing, and filtering mean, here's what you should read next:

https://avichawla.substack.com/p/are-you-sure-you-are-using-the-correct.



9 Command Line Flags To Run Python Scripts More Flexibly

| Python Flag | Description | Usage |
|-------------|---|-----------------------------------|
| python -c | Run a single python command | python -c "print('Hello') |
| python -i | Run interactive Python shell after running a script | python -i script.py |
| python -O | Ignore assert statements | python -O script.py |
| python -00 | Ignore assert statements and docstrings | python -OO script.py |
| python -W | Ignore warnings | python -W script.py |
| python -m | Run a module as a script | python -m my_package.my_module |
| python -v | Enable verbose mode. Prints more information about what interpreter is doing | python -v script.py |
| python -x | Ignore the first line of the script (often the shebang line) | python -x script.py |
| python -E | Ignore all Python Environment variables | python -E script.py |

When invoking a Python script, you can specify various options/flags. They are used to modify the behavior of the Python interpreter when it runs a script or module.

Here are 9 of the most commonly used options:



python -**c**: Run a single Python command. Useful for running simple one-liners or testing code snippets.

python -i: Run the script as usual and enter the interactive mode instead of terminating the program. Useful for debugging as you can interact with objects created during the program.

python -**O**: Ignore assert statements (This is alphabet 'O'). Useful for optimizing code by removing debugging code.

python -**OO**: Ignore assert statements and discard docstrings. Useful for further optimizing code by removing documentation strings.

python -**W**: Ignore all warnings. Useful for turning off warnings temporarily and focusing on development.

python -**m**: Run a module as a script.

python -**v**: Enter verbose mode. Useful for printing extra information during program execution.

python -**x**: Skip the first line. Useful for removing shebang lines or other comments at the start of a script.

python -E: ignore all Python environment variables. Useful for ensuring a consistent program behavior by ignoring environment variables that may affect program execution.

Which ones have I missed? Let me know :)



Breathing KMeans: A Better and Faster Alternative to KMeans



The performance of KMeans is entirely dependent on the centroid initialization step. Thus, obtaining inaccurate clusters is highly likely.

While KMeans++ offers smarter centroid initialization, it does not always guarantee accurate convergence (read how KMeans++ works in my <u>previous</u> <u>post</u>). This is especially true when the number of clusters is high. Here, repeating the algorithm may help. But it introduces an unnecessary overhead in run-time.

Instead, Breathing KMeans is a better alternative here. Here's how it works:

- Step 1: Initialise k centroids and run KMeans without repeating. In other words, don't re-run it with different initializations. Just run it once.
- Step 2 Breathe in step: Add m new centroids and run KMeans with (k+m) centroids without repeating.



- Step 3 Breathe out step: Remove m centroids from existing (k+m) centroids. Run KMeans with the remaining k centroids without repeating.
- Step 4: Decrease m by 1.
- Step 5: Repeat Steps 2 to 4 until m=0.

Breathe in step inserts new centroids close to the centroids with the largest errors. A centroid's error is the sum of the squared distance of points under that centroid.

Breathe out step removes centroids with low utility. A centroid's utility is proportional to its distance from other centroids. The intuition is that if two centroids are pretty close, they are likely falling in the same cluster. Thus, both will be assigned a low utility value, as demonstrated below.



With these repeated breathing cycles, Breathing KMeans provides a faster and better solution than KMeans. In each cycle, new centroids are added at "good" locations, and centroids with low utility are removed.

In the figure below, KMeans++ produced two misplaced centroids.



avichawla.substack.com



However, Breathing KMeans accurately clustered the data, with a 50% improvement in run-time.

You can use Breathing KMeans by installing its open-source library, **bkmeans**, as follows:

pip install bkmeans

Next, import the library and run the clustering algorithm:



In fact, the BKMeans class inherits from the KMeans class of sklearn. So you can specify other parameters and use any of the other methods on the BKMeans object as needed.

More details about Breathing KMeans: GitHub | Paper.



How Many Dimensions Should You Reduce Your Data To When Using PCA?



When using PCA, it can be difficult to determine the number of components to keep. Yet, here's a plot that can immensely help.

Note: If you don't know how PCA works, feel free to read my detailed post: <u>A</u> Visual Guide to PCA.

Still, here's a quick step-by-step refresher. Feel free to skip this part if you remember my PCA post.



avichawla.substack.com



Step 1. Take a high-dimensional dataset ((x, y) in the above figure) and represent it with uncorrelated axes $((x^, y^))$ in the above figure). Why uncorrelated?

This is to ensure that data has zero correlation along its dimensions and each new dimension represents its individual variance.

For instance, as data represented along **(X, y)** is correlated, the variance along **X** is influenced by the spread of data along **Y**.

Instead, if we represent data along (\mathbf{X}, \mathbf{y}) , the variance along \mathbf{X} is not influenced by the spread of data along \mathbf{y} .

The above space is determined using eigenvectors.

Step 2. Find the variance along all uncorrelated axes (**x**`, **y**`). The eigenvalue corresponding to each eigenvector denotes the variance.

Step 3. Discard the axes with low variance. How many dimensions to discard (or keep) is a hyperparameter, which we will discuss below. Project the data along the retained axes.



When reducing dimensions, the purpose is to retain enough variance of the original data.

As each principal component explains some amount of variance, cumulatively plotting the component-wise variance can help identify which components have the most variance.

avichawla.substack.com **Cumulative Explained Variance Plot** for PCA 100% 00% 98% 97% 100% 96% 93% 87% 80% 74 Explained Variance 581 60% Cumulative Variance Individual Component Variance 40% 295 20% 0% 1 2 3 6 7 8 9 10 4 5 Principal Component Number

This is called a cumulative explained variance plot.

For instance, say we intend to retain $\sim 85\%$ of the data variance. The above plot clearly depicts that reducing the data to four components will do that.

Also, as expected, all ten components together represent 100% variance of the data.

Creating this plot is pretty simple in Python. **Find the code** here: <u>PCA-CEV Plot</u>.



Mito Just Got Supercharged With AI!

| | 6 0 4 PM | 8 C * mm | | di ina manani | | | |
|----------------|---------------------|--|-------------------------|-----------------------|--|-------|-------------|
| | | | | | | 1000 | |
| To 1714 improv | mitudent | Cocception" of | | | 1 | | |
| Delt 1 | Dataframes Column 1 | Rown Daughts Farm | of Code New II | - | Y | | ALC: NOT |
| 0 | 0 P 4 | 2 5 8 | | | | | Here a |
| income. | Bols Class leases | fant intit int | ter bright into | and inches the | a limit in | | Bart Palate |
| C19 | i City | | | | 0 | | |
| | Note V | Drawy T | 00 Y | Salary W. | tates V | Artis | |
| 1000 | 100 Contractor 100 | | | and the second second | - | | |
| | Juncol Mathematic | White Munice and L | Tare Coopressor | 4994.92 | Full Take | | |
| | Modival Williams | 3000 500 | POLIN TRANSPORT | 1010.18 | Put Tiese | 4.02 | |
| | Caute Fights | Andrede LLC | HOU BRITERIA | 109630 | anan. | 0.12 | |
| | Datase Autor | June and Sero. | No.a approach | 8.110.58 | Full Time | 2.84 | |
| 10 | Serve Gente | BARINESS INC. | weekenary | 95716.98 | Fue form | 4.50 | |
| 10 | Drives softer | Andrate LLE | AND VALUES OF | 175.8 | Search | 3.39 | |
| 10.5 | Lines Rodrigant | the stat -holoway | whoavenary | 12.501.58 | narren . | 4.12 | |
| | overlap Shaon | Start Inc. | Waterale | 1991 45 | a contraction of the second se | 10 | |
| 23 | Karl Heres | Carges, Barrolls a | attenue offe | 10.04.24 | Full Times | 3.19 | |
| | Katterne Urse | Dates when percisive | Averallurge. | 0.000.02 | Full Time | 3.00 | |
| | Sattanes | NAMES OF STREET, STREE | and market | 1,101.01 | angen . | 3.40 | |
| | William Ingram | Bater, Alter and Line | That the Method and and | 43/438 | Full Tomo | 1.10 | |
| | Jean thema | Thurnan Sparser | New Contynester | 6.093.12 | Put Time | 2.99 | |
| | LasPigh | Balari, Khari and Sale | Here Contychemier | 10421.22 | Full Time | 1.30 | |

Personally, I am a big fan of no-code data analysis tools. They are extremely useful in eliminating repetitive code across projects—thereby boosting productivity.

Yet, most no-code tools are often limited in terms of the functionality they support. Thus, flexibility is usually a big challenge while using them.

Mito is an incredible open-source tool that allows you to analyze your data within a spreadsheet interface in Jupyter without writing any code.

What's more, Mito recently supercharged its spreadsheet interface with AI. As a result, you can now analyze data in a notebook with text prompts.

One of the coolest things about using Mito is that each edit in the spreadsheet automatically generates an equivalent Python code. This makes it convenient to reproduce the analysis later.



Automatic code generation

```
from nitosheet.public.v1 import *; register_analysis('id-utbdshehvd');
import pandas as pd
/ Imported employee_dataset.csv
employee_dataset = pd.read_csv(r'employee_dataset.csv')
/ group on city and flod any salary and rating
df2 = employee_dataset.groupby('City').agg(('Selary': 'mean', 'Hating': 'mean'))
/ top 5 employees with highest salary
top_employees = employee_dataset.nlargest(5, 'Halary')
```

You can install Mito using pip as follows:

python -m pip install mitosheet

Next, to activate it in Jupyter, run the following two commands:

python -m jupyter nbextension install --py --user mitosheet
python -m jupyter nbextension enable --py --user mitosheet



Be Cautious Before Drawing Any Conclusions Using Summary Statistics



While analyzing data, one may be tempted to draw conclusions solely based on its statistics. Yet, the actual data might be conveying a totally different story.

Here's a visual depicting nine datasets with approx. zero correlation between the two variables. But the summary statistic (Pearson correlation in this case) gives no clue about what's inside the data.

What's more, data statistics could be heavily driven by outliers or other artifacts. I covered this in a previous post <u>here</u>.

Thus, the importance of looking at the data cannot be stressed enough. It saves you from drawing wrong conclusions, which you could have made otherwise by looking at the statistics alone.

For instance, in the sinusoidal dataset above, Pearson correlation may make you believe that there is no association between the two variables. However, remember



that it is only quantifying the extent of a linear relationship between them. Read more about this in another one of my previous posts <u>here</u>.

Thus, if there's any other non-linear relationship (quadratic, sinusoid, exponential, etc.), it will fail to measure that.





Use Custom Python Objects In A Boolean Context



In a boolean context, Python always evaluates the objects of a custom class to True. But this may not be desired in all cases. Here's how you can override this behavior.

The **__bool**__ dunder method is used to define the behavior of an object when used in a boolean context. As a result, you can specify explicit conditions to determine the truthiness of an object.

This allows you to use class objects in a more flexible and intuitive way.

As demonstrated above, without the **__bool__** method (*without_bool.py*), the object evaluates to True. But implementing the **__bool__** method lets us override this default behavior (*with_bool.py*).

Some additional good-to-know details

When we use ANY object (be it instantiated from a custom or an in-built class) in a boolean context, here's what Python does:





First, Python checks for the **__bool**__ method in its class implementation. If found, it is invoked. If not, Python checks for the **__len**__ method. If found, **__len**__ is invoked. Otherwise, Python returns True.

This explains the default behavior of objects instantiated from a custom class. As the *Cart* class implemented neither the **__bool__** method nor the **__len__** method, the *cart* object was evaluated to True.



A Visual Guide To Sampling Techniques in Machine Learning

| Simple Rand | om Sompling | Cluster | Sampling (Single St | hage) |
|----------------------|----------------------|----------------|--------------------------|-------|
| 00000 | 0 0 | 0000 | 0 00 | 00 |
| 00000 | 0000 | 0000 | 0 | |
| 00000 | 00000 | 0000 | 0 | |
| 00000 | 000 | 0000 | 0 00 | 00 |
| Every slats point he | is equal probability | Who | de clusters are selected | 1 |
| _ | | | | |
| | Cluster Somp | oling (Two Sto | ige) | |
| 0000 | 0 00 | 000 | 0 0 | 0 |
| 0000 | 0 | | 6000 | 6 |
| 0000 | 00 | 000 | 0000 | 0 |
| 0000 | 0 00 | 000 | 0 0 | 0 |
| 1 | . Select clusters | 2. Select | data points | 0 |
| | | | | _ |
| | | | | |
| | Stratifie | d Sampling | | |
| | Stratifie | d Sampling | | 5 |
| 00000 | Stratifie | d Sampling | 000 | 0 |
| 00000 | Stratifie | d Sampling | 000 | 0 |
| 00000 | Stratifie | d Sampling | | 0 |

When you are dealing with large amounts of data, it is often preferred to draw a relatively smaller sample and train a model. But any mistakes can adversely affect the accuracy of your model.





This makes sampling a critical aspect of training ML models.

Here are a few popularly used techniques that one should know about:

• **Simple random sampling:** Every data point has an equal probability of being selected in the sample.



• **Cluster sampling (single-stage):** Divide the data into clusters and select a few entire clusters.

| Cluster Sampling | (Single Stage) |
|------------------|----------------|
| 00000 | 00000 |
| 00000 | 00000 |
| 00000 | 00000 |
| 00000 | 00000 |
| Whole clusters | are selected |



avichawla.substack.com

• **Cluster sampling (two-stage):** Divide the data into clusters, select a few clusters, and choose points from them randomly.

| 0 | uster Sampling (Two St | age) |
|-----------|------------------------|-------------|
| 00000 | 00000 | 0 00 |
| 00000 | | 00000 |
| 00000 | 00000 | 00000 |
| 00000 | 00000 | 0 0 0 |
| I. Select | clusters 2, Select | data points |



• **Stratified sampling:** Divide the data points into homogenous groups (based on age, gender, etc.), and select points randomly.



What are some other sampling techniques that you commonly resort to?



You Were Probably Given Incomplete Info About A Tuple's Immutability



When we say tuples are immutable, many Python programmers think that the values inside a tuple cannot change. But this is not true.

The immutability of a tuple is solely restricted to the identity of objects it holds, not their value.

In other words, say a tuple has two objects with IDs **1** and **2**. Immutability says that the collection of IDs referenced by the tuple (and their order) can never change.

Yet, there is **NO** such restriction that the individual objects with IDs **1** and **2** cannot be modified.

Thus, if the elements inside the tuple are mutable objects, you can indeed modify them.

And as long as the collection of IDs remains the same, the immutability of a tuple is not violated.



This explains the demonstration above. As append is an inplace operation, the collection of IDs didn't change. Thus, Python didn't raise an error.

We can also verify this by printing the collection of object IDs referenced inside the tuple before and after the append operation:



As shown above, the IDs pre and post append are the same. Thus, immutability isn't violated.



A Simple Trick That Significantly Improves The Quality of Matplotlib Plots



Matplotlib plots often appear dull and blurry, especially when scaled or zoomed. Yet, here's a simple trick to significantly improve their quality.

Matplotlib plots are rendered as an image by default. Thus, any scaling/zooming drastically distorts their quality.

Instead, always render your plot as a scalable vector graphic (SVG). As the name suggests, they can be scaled without compromising the plot's quality.

As demonstrated in the image above, the plot rendered as SVG clearly outshines and is noticeably sharper than the default plot.



The following code lets you change the render format to SVG. If the difference is not apparent in the image above, I would recommend trying it yourself and noticing the difference.



Alternatively, you can also use the following code:



P.S. If there's a chance that you don't know what is being depicted in the bar plot above, check out this <u>YouTube video by Numberphile</u>.



A Visual and Overly Simplified Guide to PCA



Many folks often struggle to understand the core essence of principal component analysis (PCA), which is widely used for dimensionality reduction. Here's a simplified visual guide depicting what goes under the hood.

In a gist, while reducing the dimensions, the aim is to retain as much variation in data as possible.

To begin with, as the data may have correlated features, the first step is to determine a new coordinate system with orthogonal axes. This is a space where all dimensions are uncorrelated.



avichawla.substack.com



The above space is determined using the data's eigenvectors.

Next, we find the variance of our data along these uncorrelated axes. The variance is represented by the corresponding eigenvalues.



Next, we decide the number of dimensions we want our data to have post-reduction (a hyperparameter), say two. As our aim is to retain as much variance as possible, we select two eigenvectors with the highest eigenvalues.

Why highest, you may ask? As mentioned above, the variance along an eigenvector is represented by its eigenvalue. Thus, selecting the top two eigenvalues ensures we retain the maximum variance of the overall data.

Lastly, the data is transformed using a simple matrix multiplication with the top two vectors, as shown below:



avichawla.substack.com

| | Data | | Egenerators (sorted by decreasing algorithms) | Dimensionally reduced data | |
|-----------|-----------------|---|---|----------------------------------|-----------|
| n_semples | | × | | | n_samples |
| | ovit_dimensions | | two vectors (k) | R. | |

After reducing the dimension of the 2D dataset used above, we get the following.



This is how PCA works. I hope this algorithm will never feel daunting again :)



Supercharge Your Jupyter Kernel With ipyflow

This is a pretty cool Jupyter hack I learned recently.

While using Jupyter, you must have noticed that when you update a variable, all its dependent cells have to be manually re-executed.

Also, at times, isn't it difficult to determine the exact sequence of cell executions that generated an output?

This is tedious and can get time-consuming if the sequence of dependent cells is long.

To resolve this, try **ipyflow**. It is a supercharged kernel for Jupyter, which tracks the relationship between cells and variables.

| In [2]: | iflow mode reactive | |
|---------|--|--|
| 2n]: | s = 10 ## Updating a dutomatically executes its dependents | |
| Be(1:1) | y = np.win(x) ## dependent um x x = np.com(x) ## dependent um x | |
| în 11 | output = y**3 + z**3 ## Dependent on y and z output | |
| | Export Code | |
| In []) | fram isyflow import code print(code(output)) | |
| 001.10 | | |
| | | |
| | | |

Thus, at any point, you can obtain the corresponding code to reconstruct any symbol.

What's more, its magic command enables an automatic recursive re-execution of dependent cells if a variable is updated.

As shown in the demo above, updating the variable X automatically triggers its dependent cells.



Do note that **ipyflow** offers a different kernel from the default kernel in Jupyter. Thus, once you install **ipyflow**, select the following kernel while launching a new notebook:

| | | Upload | New - | С |
|---|----------|-----------|-------|---|
| | Notebool | k; | | |
| (| Python | 3 (ipyflo | W) | e |
| | Python | 3 (ipyke | mel) | |
| | Other: | | | |
| | Text Fil | е | | |
| | Folder | | | |
| | Termina | al | | |

Find more details here: <u>ipyflow</u>.



A Lesser-known Feature of Creating Plots with Plotly

Plotly is pretty diverse when it comes to creating different types of charts. While many folks prefer it for interactivity, you can also use it to create animated plots.

Here's an animated visualization depicting the time taken by light to reach different planets after leaving the Sun.



Several functions in Plotly support animations using the **animation_frame** and **animation_group** parameters.

The core idea behind creating an animated plot relies on plotting the data one frame at a time.

For instance, consider we have organized the data frame-by-frame, as shown below:



avichawla.substack.com



Now, if we invoke the scatter method with the **animation_frame** argument, it will plot the data frame-by-frame, giving rise to an animation.



In the above function call, the data corresponding to **frame_id=0** will be plotted first. This will be replaced by the data with **frame_id=1** in the next frame, and so on.

Find the code for this post here: <u>GitHub</u>.



The Limitation Of Euclidean Distance Which Many Often Ignore



Euclidean distance is a commonly used distance metric. Yet, its limitations often make it inapplicable in many data situations.

Euclidean distance assumes independent axes, and the data is somewhat spherically distributed. But when the dimensions are correlated, euclidean may produce misleading results.

Mahalanobis distance is an excellent alternative in such cases. It is a multivariate distance metric that takes into account the data distribution.

As a result, it can measure how far away a data point is from the distribution, which Euclidean cannot.



As shown in the image above, Euclidean considers pink and green points equidistant from the central point. But Mahalanobis distance considers the green point to be closer, which is indeed true, taking into account the data distribution.

Mahalanobis distance is commonly used in outlier detection tasks. As shown below, while Euclidean forms a circular boundary for outliers, Mahalanobis, instead, considers the distribution—producing a more practical boundary.



Essentially, Mahalanobis distance allows the data to construct a coordinate system for itself, in which the axes are independent and orthogonal.

Computationally, it works as follows:

- **Step 1:** Transform the columns into uncorrelated variables.
- Step 2: Scale the new variables to make their variance equal to 1.
- **Step 3:** Find the Euclidean distance in this new coordinate system, where the data has a unit variance.

So eventually, we do reach Euclidean. However, to use Euclidean, we first transform the data to ensure it obeys the assumptions.

Mathematically, it is calculated as follows:

$$D^2=(x-\mu)^T\cdot C^{-1}\cdot (x-\mu)$$

- *x*: rows of your dataset (Shape: n_samples*n_dimensions).
- μ : mean of individual dimensions (Shape: 1*n_dimensions).
- *C*[^]-*1*: Inverse of the covariance matrix (Shape: n_dimensions*n_dimensions).





• *D*^2: Square of the Mahalanobis distance (Shape: n_samples*n_samples).

Find more info here: <u>Scipy docs</u>.



Visualising The Impact Of Regularisation Parameter



Regularization is commonly used to prevent overfitting. The above visual depicts the decision boundary obtained on various datasets by varying the regularization parameter.

As shown, increasing the parameter results in a decision boundary with fewer curvatures. Similarly, decreasing the parameter produces a more complicated decision boundary.

But have you ever wondered what goes on behind the scenes? Why does increasing the parameter force simpler decision boundaries?

To understand that, consider the cost function equation below (this is for regression though, but the idea stays the same for classification).

It is clear that the cost increases linearly with the parameter λ .





Now, if the parameter is too high, the penalty becomes higher too. Thus, to minimize its impact on the overall cost function, the network is forced to approach weights that are closer to zero.

This becomes evident if we print the final weights for one of the models, say one at the bottom right (last dataset, last model).

| | | a cignes e | 1050 10 20 | 10 |
|----------|-----------|---|--|---|
| In [17]: | clf.coefs | <u>1</u> | | |
| Out[17]: | array([[| 8.35476806e-06, 8.43964067e-06, 1.01037005e-05, | -1.29066987e-05, 5.46943218e-06, 3.70503012e-06, | 1.49535843e-05, 1.18557175e-05, 2.12142850e-06, |
| | -1 [- | 9.78452613e-06] 1.35980250e-05, 7.41538247e-07, 6.64292409e-07, 2.52379486e-05) | 1.52132934e-05, 1.68626879e-05, -1.40798113e-06, | 3.30938991e-06, 1.14315983e-05, 1.31551207e-05, |

Having smaller weights effectively nullifies many neurons, producing a much simpler network. This prevents many complex transformations, that could have happened otherwise.




AutoProfiler: Automatically Profile Your DataFrame As You Work



Pandas AutoProfiler: Automatically profile Pandas DataFrames at each execution, without any code.

AutoProfiler is an open-source dataframe analysis tool in jupyter. It reads your notebook and automatically profiles every dataframe in your memory as you change them.

In other words, if you modify an existing dataframe, AutoProfiler will automatically update its corresponding profiling.

Also, if you create a new dataframe (say from an existing dataframe), AutoProfiler will automatically profile that as well, as shown below:





Profiling info includes column distribution, summary stats, null stats, and many more. Moreover, you can also generate the corresponding code, with its export feature.



Find more info here: GitHub Repo.



A Little Bit Of Extra Effort Can Hugely Transform Your Storytelling Skills

| | For Apert Diagonal | Matolotlib |
|---|--|---|
| ~ | | Watprotitu |
| • · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · | | |
| | | e |
| | - | Matpiotlib |
| | | a little bit o |
| | | antes atta |
| linking Apendian Inc. | and a second sec | |
| | | |
| | to be a first of the second | |
| Profit Margin for | r top five spend | l categories |
| Profit Margin for Consumers are willing | r top five spend g to pay higher price | I categories es for aesthetic and decorative items for their hom |
| Profit Margin for Consumers are willing Home Decor | r top five spend g to pay higher price | I categories es for aesthetic and decorative items for their hom 439 |
| Profit Margin for Consumers are willing Home Decor | r top five spend g to pay higher price | I categories es for aesthetic and decorative items for their hom 439 |
| Profit Margin for Consumers are willing Home Decor | r top five spend g to pay higher price | a categories es for aesthetic and decorative items for their hom 439 20% |
| Profit Margin for Consumers are willing Home Decor Stationery Toys | r top five spend g to pay higher price 14% | a for aesthetic and decorative items for their hom 439 20% |
| Profit Margin for Consumers are willing Home Decor Stationery Toys | r top five spend g to pay higher price 14% | a categories es for aesthetic and decorative items for their hom 439 20% |
| Profit Margin for Consumers are willing Home Decor Stationery Toys Electronics | r top five spend g to pay higher price 14% 13% | a for aesthetic and decorative items for their hom 439 20% |
| Profit Margin for Consumers are willing Home Decor Stationery Toys Electronics Clothing | r top five spend g to pay higher price 14% 13% | a for aesthetic and decorative items for their hom 439 20% |
| Profit Margin for Consumers are willing Home Decor Stationery Toys Electronics Clothing | r top five spend g to pay higher price 14% 13% | 20% avichawla substack con |

Matplotlib is pretty underrated when it comes to creating professional-looking plots. Yet, it is totally capable of doing so.

For instance, consider the two plots below.

Yes, both were created using matplotlib. But a bit of formatting makes the second plot much more informative, appealing, and easy to follow.

The title and subtitle significantly aid the story. Also, the footnote offers extra important information, which is nowhere to be seen in the basic plot.

Lastly, the bold bar immediately draws the viewer's attention and conveys the category's importance.

So what's the message here?



Towards being a good data storyteller, ensure that your plot demands minimal effort from the viewer. Thus, don't shy away from putting in that extra effort. This is especially true for professional environments.

At times, it may be also good to ensure that your visualizations convey the right story, even if they are viewed in your absence.



A Nasty Hidden Feature of Python That Many Programmers Aren't Aware Of

| •• | • | Mutab Par | le Default _. ameter | \mathcal{I} | |
|---------------------------------|-------------------------------------|--|-----------------------------------|-------------------------|---------------------|
| def | add_subje subjects. return {' | ect(name, s append(sub 'name': nam | subject, pject) me, 'subje | ubjects=[ects': sub |)): jects) |
| ->>> | add_subje | ect('Joe', | 'Maths') | | |
| | add subsid | ect('Bob'. | 'Maths') | | |
| 200 | 000_20036 | | | | |
| >>> | add_subje | ect('Roy', | 'Maths') | | |
|)utput: | add_subje | ect('Roy', | 'Maths') | Apper the sa | nded to ime list |
|)utput: ('name'): | add_subje | subjects': | 'Maths') | Apper the sa | nded to ame list |
| Output: ('name': ('name': | 'Joe', ' 'Bob', ' | subjects': | 'Maths') | Apper the sa | nded to ime list |

Mutability in Python is possibly one of the most misunderstood and overlooked concepts. The above image demonstrates an example that many Python programmers (especially new ones) struggle to understand.

Can you figure it out? If not, let's understand it.

The default parameters of a function are evaluated right at the time the function is defined. In other words, they are not evaluated each time the function is called (like in C++).

Thus, as soon as a function is defined, the <u>function object</u> stores the default parameters in its __defaults__ attribute. We can verify this below:





Thus, if you specify a mutable default parameter in a function and mutate it, you unknowingly and unintentionally modify the parameter for all future calls to that function.

This is shown in the demonstration below. Instead of creating a new list at each function call, Python appends the element to the same copy.







So what can we do to avoid this?

Instead of specifying a mutable default parameter in a function's definition, replace them with None. If the function does not receive a corresponding value during the function call, create the mutable object inside the function.

This is demonstrated below:



As shown above, we create a new list if the function didn't receive any value when it was called. This lets you avoid the unexpected behavior of mutating the same object.





Interactively Visualise A Decision Tree With A Sankey Diagram

| avichawla.substack.com |
|--|
| And the set of the set |
| 28 ■ Maria Salaria ■ |
| And Angle and a 480 Mark (10-12) Mark (10- |
| |

In one of my earlier posts, I explained why sklearn's decision trees always overfit the data with its default parameters (read <u>here</u> if you wish to recall).

To avoid this, it is always recommended to specify appropriate hyperparameter values. This includes the max depth of the tree, min samples in leaf nodes, etc.

But determining these hyperparameter values is often done using trial-and-error, which can be a bit tedious and time-consuming.

The Sankey diagram above allows you to interactively visualize the predictions of a decision tree at each node.

Also, the number of data points from each class is size-encoded on all nodes, as shown below.





This immediately gives an estimate of the impurity of the node. Based on this, you can visually decide to prune the tree.

For instance, in the full decision tree shown below, pruning the tree at a depth of two appears to be reasonable.



Once you have obtained a rough estimate for these hyperparameter values, you can train a new decision tree. Next, measure its performance on new data to know if the decision tree is generalizing or not.



Use Histograms With Caution. They Are Highly Misleading!



Histograms are commonly used for data visualization. But, they can be misleading at times. Here's why.

Histograms divide the data into small bins and represent the frequency of each bin.

Thus, the choice of the number of bins you begin with can significantly impact its shape.

The figure above depicts the histograms obtained on the same data, but by altering the number of bins. Each histogram conveys a different story, even though the underlying data is the same.

This, at times, can be misleading and may lead you to draw the wrong conclusions.

The takeaway is NOT that histograms should not be used. Instead, look at the underlying distribution too. Here, a violin plot and a KDE plot can help.

Violin plot

Similar to box plots, Violin plots also show the distribution of data based on quartiles. However, it also adds a kernel density estimation to display the density of data at different values.





This provides a more detailed view of the distribution, particularly in areas with higher density.

KDE plot

KDE plots use a smooth curve to represent the data distribution, without the need for binning, as shown below:



As a departing note, always remember that whenever you condense a dataset, you run the risk of losing important information.

Thus, be mindful of any limitations (and assumptions) of the visualizations you use. Also, consider using multiple methods to ensure that you are seeing the whole picture.





Three Simple Ways To (Instantly) Make Your Scatter Plots Clutter Free



Scatter plots are commonly used in data visualization tasks. But when you have many data points, they often get too dense to interpret.

Here are a few techniques (and alternatives) you can use to make your data more interpretable in such cases.

One of the simplest yet effective ways could be to reduce the marker size. This, at times, can instantly offer better clarity over the default plot.





Next, as an alternative to a scatter plot, you can use a density plot, which depicts the data distribution. This makes it easier to identify regions of high and low density, which may not be evident from a scatter plot.



Lastly, another better alternative can be a hexbin plot. It bins the chart into hexagonal regions and assigns a color intensity based on the number of points in that area.







A (Highly) Important Point to Consider Before You Use KMeans Next Time



The most important yet often overlooked step of KMeans is its centroid initialization. Here's something to consider before you use it next time.

KMeans selects the initial centroids randomly. As a result, it fails to converge at times. This requires us to repeat clustering several times with different initialization.

Yet, repeated clustering may not guarantee that you will soon end up with the correct clusters. This is especially true when you have many centroids to begin with.

Instead, KMeans++ takes a smarter approach to initialize centroids.

The first centroid is selected randomly. But the next centroid is chosen based on the distance from the first centroid.





In other words, a point that is away from the first centroid is more likely to be selected as an initial centroid. This way, all the initial centroids are likely to lie in different clusters already, and the algorithm may converge faster and more accurately.

The impact is evident from the bar plots shown below. They depict the frequency of the number of misplaced centroids obtained (analyzed manually) after training 50 different models with KMeans and KMeans++.

On the given dataset, out of the 50 models, KMeans only produced zero misplaced centroids once, which is a success rate of just 2%.





In contrast, KMeans++ never produced any misplaced centroids.



Luckily, if you are using sklearn, you don't need to worry about the initialization step. This is because sklearn, by default, resorts to the KMeans++ approach.

However, if you have a custom implementation, do give it a thought.





Why You Should Avoid Appending Rows To A DataFrame



As we append more and more rows to a Pandas DataFrame, the append run-time keeps increasing. Here's why.

A DataFrame is a column-major data structure. Thus, consecutive elements in a column are stored next to each other in memory.







As new rows are added, Pandas always wants to preserve its column-major form.

But while adding new rows, there may not be enough space to accommodate them while also preserving the column-major structure.

In such a case, existing data is moved to a new memory location, where Pandas finds a contiguous block of memory.

Thus, as the size grows, memory reallocation gets more frequent, and the run time keeps increasing.

The reason for spikes in this graph may be because a column taking higher memory was moved to a new location at this point, thereby taking more time to reallocate, or many columns were shifted at once.

So what can we do to mitigate this?

The increase in run-time solely arises because Pandas is trying to maintain its column-major structure.

Thus, if you intend to grow a dataframe (row-wise) this frequently, it is better to first convert the dataframe to another data structure, a dictionary or a numpy array, for instance.

Carry out the append operations here, and when you are done, convert it back to a dataframe.

P.S. Adding new columns is not a problem. This is because this operation does not conflict with other columns.





Matplotlib Has Numerous Hidden Gems. Here's One of Them.



One of the best yet underrated and underutilized potentials of matplotlib is customizability. Here's a pretty interesting thing you can do with it.

By default, matplotlib renders different types of elements (also called artists), like plots, legend, texts, etc., in a specific order.

But this ordering may not be desirable in all cases, especially when there are overlapping elements in a plot, or the default rendering is hiding some crucial details.

With the *zorder* parameter, you can control this rendering order. As a result, plots with higher *zorder* value appear closer to the viewer and are drawn on top of artists with lower *zorder* values.



Lastly, in the above demonstration, if we specify zorder=0 for the line plot, we notice that it goes behind the grid lines.



You can find more details about zorder here: Matplotlib docs.



A Counterintuitive Thing About Python Dictionaries



Despite adding 4 distinct keys to a Python dictionary, can you tell why it only preserves two of them?

Here's why.

In Python, dictionaries find a key based on the equivalence of hash (computed using hash()), but not identity (computed using id()).

In this case, there's no doubt that 1.0, 1, and True inherently have different datatypes and are also different objects. This is shown below:





Yet, as they share the same hash value, the dictionary considers them as the same keys.



But did you notice that in the demonstration, the final key is 1.0, while the value corresponds to the key True.





This is because, at first, 1.0 is added as a key and its value is 'One (float)'. Next, while adding the key 1, python recognizes it as an equivalence of the hash value.

Thus, the value corresponding to 1.0 is overwritten by 'One (int)', while the key (1.0) is kept as is.

Finally, while adding True, another hash equivalence is encountered with an existing key of 1.0. Yet again, the value corresponding to 1.0, which was updated to 'One (int)' in the previous step, is overwritten by 'One (bool)'.

I am sure you may have already guessed why the string key '1' is retained.



Probably The Fastest Way To Execute Your Python Code



Many Python programmers are often frustrated with Python's run-time. Here's how you can make your code blazingly fast by changing just one line.

Codon is an open-source, high-performance Python compiler. In contrast to being an interpreter, it compiles your python code to fast machine code.

Thus, post compilation, your code runs at native machine code speed. As a result, typical speedups are often of the order **50x** or more.

According to the official docs, if you know Python, you already know 99% of Codon. There are very minute differences between the two, which you can read here: <u>Codon docs</u>.

Find some more benchmarking results between Python and Codon below:









Are You Sure You Are Using The Correct Pandas Terminologies?



Many Pandas users use the dataframe subsetting terminologies incorrectly. So let's spend a minute to get it straight.

SUBSETTING means extracting value(s) from a dataframe. This can be done in four ways:

1) We call it **SELECTING** when we extract one or more of its **COLUMNS** based on index location or name. The output contains some columns and all rows.





2) We call it **SLICING** when we extract one or more of its **ROWS** based on index location or name. The output contains some rows and all columns.



3) We call it **INDEXING** when we extract both **ROWS** and **COLUMNS** based on index location or name.



4) We call it **FILTERING** when we extract **ROWS** and **COLUMNS** based on conditions.



Of course, there are many other ways you can perform these four operations.

Here's a comprehensive Pandas guide I prepared once: <u>Pandas Map</u>. Please refer to the "DF Subset" branch to read about various subsetting methods :)



Is Class Imbalance Always A Big Problem To Deal With?



Addressing class imbalance is often a challenge in ML. Yet, it may not always cause a problem. Here's why.

One key factor in determining the impact of imbalance is class separability.

As the name suggests, it measures the degree to which two or more classes can be distinguished or separated from each other based on their feature values.

When classes are highly separable, there is little overlap between their feature distributions (as shown below). This makes it easier for a classifier to correctly identify the class of a new instance.







Thus, despite imbalance, even if your data has a high degree of class separability, imbalance may not be a problem per se.

To conclude, consider estimating the class separability before jumping to any sophisticated modeling steps.

This can be done visually or by evaluating imbalance-specific metrics on simple models.

The figure below depicts the decision boundary learned by a logistic regression model on the class-separable dataset.





A Simple Trick That Will Make Heatmaps More Elegant



Heatmaps often make data analysis much easier. Yet, they can be further enriched with a simple modification.

A traditional heatmap represents the values using a color scale. Yet, mapping the cell color to numbers is still challenging.

Embedding a size component can be extremely helpful in such cases. In essence, the bigger the size, the higher the absolute value.

This is especially useful to make heatmaps cleaner, as many values nearer to zero will immediately shrink.

In fact, you can represent the size with any other shape. Below, I created the same heatmap using a circle instead:





Find the code for this post here: <u>GitHub</u>.





A Visual Comparison Between Locality and Density-based Clustering



The utility of KMeans is limited to datasets with spherical clusters. Thus, any variation is likely to produce incorrect clustering.

Density-based clustering algorithms, such as DBSCAN, can be a better alternative in such cases.

They cluster data points based on density, making them robust to datasets of varying shapes and sizes.

The image depicts a comparison of KMeans vs. DBSCAN on multiple datasets.

As shown, KMeans only works well when the dataset has spherical clusters. But in all other cases, it fails to produce correct clusters.

Find more here: Sklearn Guide.





Why Don't We Call It Logistic Classification Instead?



Have you ever wondered why logistic regression is called "regression" when we only use it for classification tasks? Why not call it "logistic classification" instead? Here's why.

Most of us interpret logistic regression as a classification algorithm. However, it is a regression algorithm by nature. This is because it predicts a continuous outcome, which is the probability of a class.

| (| Sample | | Probability ut cleas |
|---|--------|---------------------|-------------------------|
| Ľ | | Logistic Regression |] |

It is only when we apply those thresholds and change the interpretation of its output that the whole pipeline becomes a classifier.





Yet, intrinsically, it is never the algorithm performing the classification. The algorithm always adheres to regression. Instead, it is that extra step of applying probability thresholds that classifies a sample.





A Typical Thing About Decision Trees Which Many Often Ignore



Although decision trees are simple and intuitive, they always need a bit of extra caution. Here's what you should always remember while training them.

In sklearn's implementation, by default, a decision tree is allowed to grow until all leaves are pure. This leads to overfitting as the model attempts to classify every sample in the training set.

There are various techniques to avoid this, such as pruning and ensembling. Also, make sure that you tune hyperparameters if you use sklearn's implementation.

This was a gentle reminder as many of us often tend to use sklearn's implementations in their default configuration.

It is always a good practice to know what a default implementation is hiding underneath.


Always Validate Your Output Variable Before Using Linear Regression



The effectiveness of a linear regression model largely depends on how well our data satisfies the algorithm's underlying assumptions.

Linear regression inherently assumes that the residuals (actual-prediction) follow a normal distribution. One way this assumption may get violated is when your output is skewed.

As a result, it will produce an incorrect regression fit.

But the good thing is that it can be corrected. One common way to make the output symmetric before fitting a model is to apply a log transform.

It removes the skewness by evenly spreading out the data, making it look somewhat normal.

One thing to note is that if the output has negative values, a log transform will raise an error. In such cases, one can apply translation transformation first on the output, followed by the log.



A Counterintuitive Fact About Python Functions

| ••• | 🗮 avichawla.substack.com |
|--|---|
| # Define a fur | nction |
| >>> def my_fur | nc(): pass |
| <pre># 1) Verify th >>> type(my_fi <class 'funct:<="" pre=""></class></pre> | he type of function object unc) ion'≽ |
| <pre># 2) Add new :</pre> | attributes to function object |
| >>> my_func.my | y_attr = 'new_attribute' |
| >>> my_func.my | y_attr |
| 'new_attribute | e' |
| # 3) Pass as a | an argument to other functions |
| >>> def new_fu | unc(f): <mark>pass</mark> |
| >>> new_func(n | my_func) |
| <pre># 4) Access in >>> my_func 'my_func' >>> my_func {'my_attr': 'n</pre> | nstance-level attributes/methods _name _dict new_attribute'} |

Everything in python is an object instantiated from some class. This also includes functions, but accepting this fact often feels counterintuitive at first.

Here are a few ways to verify that python functions are indeed objects.

The friction typically arises due to one's acquaintance with other programming languages like C++ and Java, which work very differently.

However, python is purely an object-oriented programming (OOP) language. You are always using OOP, probably without even realizing it.





Why Is It Important To Shuffle Your Dataset Before Training An ML Model

| | | | pavi avi | chawla | substack.co |
|------------|---------|--------------|-------------|--------|-------------|
| ••• | Unshuft | fied_data.py | | Shuffi | ed_data.py |
| # Unshuffl | ed Data | For Training | •# Shuffled | Data T | or Training |
| Epoch | Loss | Accuracy | Epoch | Loss | Accuracy |
| [10/100] | 109.48 | 58.005 | E10/1001 | 94.36 | 58.791 |
| [28/198] | 198.35 | 58:681 | [20/108] | 30:56 | 99.681 |
| [30/100] | 106.45 | 61.33 | 138/1091 | 8.97 | 100.005 |
| [40/199] | 185.95 | 61.08% | [40/100] | 0.21 | 100.00% |
| [50/100] | 103.84 | 61.701 | [58/108] | 0.06 | 180.00% |
| [60/100] | 118.86 | 61.88 | [69/100] | 0.02 | 160.865 |
| [70/100] | 112.30 | 62.14 | [70/100] | 0.01 | 100.00% |
| [80/100] | 102.10 | 62.40 | [807100] | 0.00 | 180.00% |
| [991199] | 101.61 | 62.88 | [98/168] | 0.00 | 160.00% |
| [100/100] | 116.14 | 61,915 | [100/100] | 0:00 | 180.001 |
| Fail | s to | 1 | Conver | ge5 | 1 |
| conv | erge - | | Seamle | sslv - | |

ML models may fail to converge for many reasons. Here's one of them which many folks often overlook.

If your data is ordered by labels, this could negatively impact the model's convergence and accuracy. This is a mistake that can typically go unnoticed.

In the above demonstration, I trained two neural nets on the same data. Both networks had the same initial weights, learning rate, and other settings.

However, in one of them, the data was ordered by labels, while in another, it was randomly shuffled.

As shown, the model receiving a label-ordered dataset fails to converge. However, shuffling the dataset allows the network to learn from a more representative data sample in each batch. This leads to better generalization and performance.

In general, it's a good practice to shuffle the dataset before training. This prevents the model from identifying any label-specific yet non-existing patterns.

In fact, it is also recommended to alter batch-specific data in every epoch.





The Limitations Of Heatmap That Are Slowing Down Your Data Analysis



Heatmaps often make data analysis much easier. Yet, they do have some limitations.

A traditional heatmap does not group rows (and features). Instead, its orientation is the same as the input. This makes it difficult to visually determine the similarity between rows (and features).

Clustered heatmaps can be a better choice in such cases. It clusters the rows and features together to help you make better sense of the data.

They can be especially useful when dealing with large datasets. While a traditional heatmap will be visually daunting to look at.

However, the groups in a clustered heatmap make it easier to visualize similarities and identify which rows (and features) go with one another.

To create a clustered heatmap, you can use the **sns.clustermap**() method from Seaborn. More info here: <u>Seaborn docs</u>.



The Limitation Of Pearson Correlation Which Many Often Ignore



Pearson correlation is commonly used to determine the association between two continuous variables. But many often ignore its assumption.

Pearson correlation primarily measures the LINEAR relationship between two variables. As a result, even if two variables have a non-linear but monotonic relationship, Pearson will penalize that.

One great alternative is the Spearman correlation. It primarily assesses the monotonicity between two variables, which may be linear or non-linear.

What's more, Spearman correlation is also useful in situations when your data is ranked or ordinal.



Why Are We Typically Advised To Set Seeds for Random Generators?



From time to time, we advised to set seeds for random numbers before training an ML model. Here's why.

The weight initialization of a model is done randomly. Thus, any repeated experiment never generates the same set of numbers. This can hinder the reproducibility of your model.

As shown above, the same input data gets transformed in many ways by different neural networks of the same structure.

Thus, before training any model, always ensure that you set seeds so that your experiment is reproducible later.



An Underrated Technique To Improve Your Data Visualizations



At times, ensuring that your plot conveys the right message may require you to provide additional context. Yet, augmenting extra plots may clutter your whole visualization.

One great way to provide extra info is by adding text annotations to a plot.

In matplotlib, you can use **annotate**(). It adds explanatory texts to your plot, which lets you guide a viewer's attention to specific areas and aid their understanding.

Find more info here: Matplotlib docs.



A No-Code Tool to Create Charts and Pivot Tables in Jupyter

| • | o notet | book.i | pynb | | | |
|--|----------------------------|--------------|---|---|---|---|
| fr pi mag. gud] | om pivottabl vot_ui(df) | ejs i | import pivot_ui | | | |
| Nobile 🔍 🔍 | Court | <i>x</i> 1 ↔ | Employment_Status - | | | |
| | | | | | | |
| Name - | Employee_City + | | Englisyment_Status Englisyme_Oly | Full time | baters | Total |
| Name - Company_Name - | Employee_City + | | Engloyee_Oly Anialart | Full three | betern 24 | Total |
| Name - Company_Name - Employee_Job_Title - | Employee_City + | | Englisyment_Status Englisyme_Diy Akhistert Kristeburgh | Full Time (1) (1) | Botern 24 20 | Total |
| Name - Company_Name - Employee_Job_Title - | Employee_City + | | Englisymood_Status Englisymood_Status Abstatest Cristatusgk New Cladychester | Full Time 27 83 | 8x8x75 24 20 24 | Total 112 104 |
| Name - Company_Name - Employee_Job_Title - Employee_Country - | Employee_City + | | Employee, City Abiutert Grantwayk New Cinfychenter New Ensetten | Full Time 17 17 18 17 | 24 24 24 24 24 | Total III III III III |
| Name - Company_Name - Employee_Job_Title - Employee_Country - Employee_Salary - | Employee_City + | | Employee, City Aliciatert Kristaturgh New Einspellon New Ensetton Acrth Hulissafurt | Full Time 27 22 23 43 | 24 24 24 29 24 | 10000 112 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 10 |
| Name - Company_Name - Employee_Job_Title - Employee_Country - Employee_Salary - | Employee_City + | | Employee, City Aliciation Kristaturgh New Einspellen New Einspellen Nerth Hulissafert Figueternouth | Full Time 27 82 83 83 81 | Deterre 24 20 24 20 24 20 25 | 10000 112 100 100 20 |
| Name - Company_Name - Employee_Job_Title - Employee_Country - Employee_Salary - Employee_Rating - | Employee_City + | | Employee, City Alistatert Kratakorgh New Enspeller New Enspeller New Enspeller Ricerth Hulissafert Ricerthernouth Wardhert | Full Time 27 27 28 29 40 40 40 40 40 40 40 40 40 40 40 40 40 | 5atem 24 20 24 20 24 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 | Total 11 10 10 10 10 10 10 |
| Name - Company_Name - Employee_Job_Title - Employee_Country - Employee_Salary - Employee_Rating - | Employee_City + | | Employee, City Alistatori Kratakorgh New Ensetter New Ensetter New Ensetter Ricarthereovith Wordhert Wardhert Wardhert | Full Union 27 22 23 23 24 24 24 25 25 25 25 25 25 25 25 25 25 25 25 25 | 5stern 34 20 24 30 10 23 14 36 | Total 11 10 10 10 10 10 10 |
| Name - Company_Name - Employee_Job_Title - Employee_Country - Employee_Salary - Employee_Rating - | Employee_City + | | Employee, City Alistatest Kristatestph New Codychester New Ecodychester New Ecodychester Ne | Full Time 27 82 73 83 81 83 81 84 84 86 86 86 86 86 86 86 86 86 86 86 86 86 | 5stern 34 20 24 20 10 23 23 10 23 10 23 23 10 21 21 24 | Total 11 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 |

Here's a quick and easy way to create pivot tables, charts, and group data without writing any code.

PivotTableJS is a drag-n-drop tool for creating pivot tables and interactive charts in Jupyter. What's more, you can also augment pivot tables with heatmaps for enhanced analysis.

Find more info here: **PivotTableJS**.

Watch a video version of this post for enhanced understanding: <u>Video</u>.





If You Are Not Able To Code A Vectorized Approach, Try This.



Although we should never iterate over a dataframe and prefer vectorized code, what if we are not able to come up with a vectorized solution?

In my yesterday's post on why iterating a dataframe is costly, someone posed a pretty genuine question. They asked: "*Let's just say you are forced to iterate. What will be the best way to do so?*"

Firstly, understand that the primary reason behind the slowness of iteration is due to the way a dataframe is stored in memory. (If you wish to recap this, read yesterday's post <u>here</u>.)

Being a column-major data structure, retrieving its rows requires accessing non-contiguous blocks of memory. This increases the run-time drastically.

Yet, if you wish to perform only row-based operations, a quick fix is to convert the dataframe to a NumPy array.



NumPy is faster here because, by default, it stores data in a row-major manner. Thus, its rows are retrieved by accessing contiguous blocks of memory, making it efficient over iterating a dataframe.

That being said, do note that the best way is to write vectorized code always. Use the Pandas-to-NumPy approach only when you are truly struggling with writing vectorized code.





Why Are We Typically Advised To Never Iterate Over A DataFrame?



From time to time, we are advised to avoid iterating on a Pandas DataFrame. But what is the exact reason behind this? Let me explain.

A DataFrame is a column-major data structure. Thus, consecutive elements in a column are stored next to each other in memory.

As processors are efficient with contiguous blocks of memory, retrieving a column is much faster than a row.

But while iterating, as each row is retrieved by accessing non-contiguous blocks of memory, the run-time increases drastically.

In the image above, retrieving over 32M elements of a column was still over **20x faster** than fetching just nine elements stored in a row.



Manipulating Mutable Objects In Python Can Get Confusing At Times



Did you know that with mutable objects, " $\mathbf{a} +=$ " and " $\mathbf{a} = \mathbf{a} +$ " work differently in Python? Here's why.

Let's consider a list, for instance.

When we use the = operator, Python creates a new object in memory and assigns it to the variable.

Thus, all the other variables still reference the previous memory location, which was never updated. This is shown in Method1.py above.

But with the += operator, changes are enforced in-place. This means that Python does not create a new object and the same memory location is updated.

Thus, changes are visible through all other variables that reference the same location. This is shown in Method2.py above.

We can also verify this by comparing the **id**() pre-assignment and post-assignment.



avichawla.substack.com



With " $\mathbf{a} = \mathbf{a} +$ ", the **id** gets changed, indicating that Python created a new object. However, with " $\mathbf{a} +=$ ", **id** stays the same. This indicates that the same memory location was updated.



This Small Tweak Can Significantly Boost The Run-time of KMeans



KMeans is a popular but high-run-time clustering algorithm. Here's how a small tweak can significantly improve its run time.

KMeans selects the initial centroids randomly. As a result, it fails to converge at times. This requires us to repeat clustering several times with different initialization.

Instead, KMeans++ takes a smarter approach to initialize centroids. The first centroid is selected randomly. But the next centroid is chosen based on the distance from the first centroid.

In other words, a point that is away from the first centroid is more likely to be selected as an initial centroid. This way, all the initial centroids are likely to lie in different clusters already and the algorithm may converge faster.





The illustration below shows the centroid initialization of KMeans++:



Most Python Programmers Don't Know This About Python OOP

```
....
                                        avichawla.substack.com
class Point2D:
    def __new__(cls, x, y):
        if isinstance(x, int) and isinstance(y, int):
            # Allocate memory and return a new object
            print("Creating Object!")
            return super().__new__(cls) # Return new object
        else:
            raise TypeError("x and y must be integers")
    def ___init__(self, x, y):
        self.x = x
        self.y = y
        print("Object Initialized!")
       >>> p1 = Point2D(1,2)
       "Creating Object!"
       "Object Initialized!" # from __init__() method
       >>> p2 = Point2D(1.5, 2.5)
       TypeError: x and y must be integers
```

Most python programmers misunderstand the __init__() method. They think that it creates a new object. But that is not true.

When we create an object, it is not the <u>__init__()</u> method that allocates memory to it. As the name suggests, <u>__init__()</u> only assigns value to an object's attributes.

Instead, Python invokes the __new__() method first to create a new object and allocate memory to it. But how is that useful, you may wonder? There are many reasons.

For instance, by implementing the __new__() method, you can apply data checks. This ensures that your program allocates memory only when certain conditions are met.

Other common use cases involve defining singleton classes (classes with only one object), creating subclasses of immutable classes such as tuples, etc.



Who Said Matplotlib Cannot Create Interactive Plots?



transition of this post for better understanding: Video Link.

In most cases, Matplotlib is used to create static plots. But very few know that it can create interactive plots too. Here's how.

By default, Matplotlib uses the **inline** mode, which renders static plots. However, with the %**matplotlib widget** magic command, you can enable interactive backend for Matplotlib plots.

What's more, its **widgets** module offers many useful widgets. You can integrate them with your plots to make them more elegant.

Find a detailed guide here: Matplotlib widgets.



Don't Create Messy Bar Plots. Instead, Try Bubble Charts!

| | | | 10000 | | 20 | 2 | | | | | | | | Caurtry Country Country Country |
|---|--|---|---|---|---|---|-------|---|---|-------|---|--|-------|--|
| ľ | | . * | bubb | le_cha | irt.py | (| 38 | 8.11 | | | | | | Curry Courtes |
| | | | | | | | ε., | 1 | | | | | | E Cautty |
| | px:bai | :(df, | |); } | • | / | 2 " | | 11 | 1°n | | | | E Cautty |
| | | | | | | | 10 | | 11 | | 1.1 | | | Caustry Country |
| | ny leas | ettar | CAR | | 10 | | | | 1.1 | dia. | 110 | 1 | | Cauty |
| | bx+zes | IL LET | tur, | | 1 | | | | | 10.00 | 11 11 | | | E Osethy |
| | | | | | | | | 1.11 | A. B. | 10.00 | 80 R.B. | Lill of | | 1 1 1 5 1 7 1 |
| | | | | | _ | | | 13.4 | 1.4.4 | 44.04 | 10.01 | 1.5 61 | 12011 | |
| | | - | - | | | _ | - the | 1 | PHI NUMBER | 1995 | 200 | No. of Lot of Lo | 100 | |
| | | | | 1 | | | 1.11 | 1.5 | | | | < . | | |
| | | | | 100 | | | - | | | | - | | | |
| | | | | - | | | | | | | | | | |
| | and the second second | 14.1 | 1.00 | | 1.0 | | | | - | | | | 1.1.1 | Evola |
| | ConnerA V | | | | | | | | | - | | | | - |
| | Country A Country R | <i>.</i> | - 8 | | | | | 0 | õ | 0 | | | | |
| | Country A Country R Country C | | | | : | : | ė | 0 | | 0 | : | : | : | |
| | Country A Country B Country C Country D | : | • | : | ÷ | : | | 00 | 0.00 | • | : | : | : | n |
| | Country A Country B Country D Country D Country B | : | • | : | : | : | | 00 | 00.00 | 00 | : | ÷ | ÷ | n 18 |
| | Country A Country B Country D Country D Country B Country F | : | • | • | : | | | 00. | | 0 | | : | : | 21 |
| | Country A Country B Country D Country D Country B Country F Country G | : | • | : | : | | | 000 | | 0 | •••••• | : | | 21 26 18 |
| | Country A Country E Country E Country E Country E Country F Country H Country H | • | • | • | | | | 000 | 00-000-00 | 0 | •••••• | | | л 18 |
| | Country A Copyring B Country D Country D Country D Country B Country R Country R Country R Country R | •••••• | | • • • • • • • | •••••• | | | 00000 | 00.000.000 | 0 | ••••••00 | | | 11. 20 13. 14 |
| | Country A Costriny B Country D Country D Country B Country B Country A Country A Country A Country D Doutry D | •••••• | •••••• | ••••• | ••••••••• | | | 0.00.00000 | 000000000000000000000000000000000000000 | 00000 | ••••••000 | 000 | | 28 28 18 |
| | Country A Costriny B Country D Country D Country B Country F Country F Country H Country H Country D Country D Country K Country L | •••••• | | •••••••• | | | | 0.00.00000. | | 0 | | 0000 | | 28 28 18 18 |
| | Country A Country B Country D Country D Country D Country B Country P Country A Country A Country A Country A Country A | ••••• | | ••••• | · · · · · · · • • • • • • • • • • • • • | | | 0-0000000000000000000000000000000000000 | | 0 | | | | 25. 28 13 14 5 |
| | Country A Country B Country D Country D Country D Country B Country B Country B Country H Country H Country H Country K Country M | | · • · • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • | ••••••••• | ••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••• | | | 0.0000000000 | | 0 | ••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••• | | | 28 28 19 5 |
| | Country A Country B Country D Country D Country D Country 0 Country 4 Country 4 Country 4 Country 4 Country 4 Country 5 Country 5 Country 5 Country 1 Country 1 Countr | | | •• ••••••• | · · · · · · · • • • • • • • • • • • • • | | | 0000.0 | | 0 | ••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••• | | | 23 24 23 44 5 6 |
| | Country A Country B Country D Country D Country D Country D Country 0 Country 0 Country 0 Country 1 Country 1 Countr | ••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••• | · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · | ••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••• | · · · · · · · • • • • • • • • • • • • • | | | 0000000.0 | | 0 | ••••••••••••• | •••••••••••• | | 23 26 23 10 5 6 |

Bar plots often get incomprehensible and messy when we have many categories to plot.

A bubble chart can be a better choice in such cases. They are like scatter plots but with one categorical and one continuous axis.

Compared to a bar plot, they are less cluttered and offer better comprehension.

Of course, the choice of plot ultimately depends on the nature of the data and the specific insights you wish to convey.

Which plot do you typically prefer in such situations?





You Can Add a List As a Dictionary's Key (Technically)!



Python raises an error whenever we add a list as a dictionary's key. But do you know the technical reason behind it? Here you go.

Firstly, understand that everything in Python is an object instantiated from some class. Whenever we add an object as a dict's key, Python invokes the **__hash__** function of that object's class.

While classes of int, str, tuple, frozenset, etc. implement the **__hash__** method, it is missing from the list class. That is why we cannot add a list as a dictionary's key.

Thus, technically if we extend the list class and add this method, a list can be added as a dictionary's key.

While this makes a list hashable, it isn't recommended as it can lead to unexpected behavior in your code.



Most ML Folks Often Neglect This While Using Linear Regression



The effectiveness of a linear regression model is determined by how well the data conforms to the algorithm's underlying assumptions.

One highly important, yet often neglected assumption of linear regression is homoscedasticity.

A dataset is homoscedastic if the variability of residuals (=actual-predicted) stays the same across the input range.

In contrast, a dataset is heteroscedastic if the residuals have non-constant variance.

Homoscedasticity is extremely critical for linear regression. This is because it ensures that our regression coefficients are reliable. Moreover, we can trust that the predictions will always stay within the same confidence interval.



35 Hidden Python Libraries That Are Absolute Gems



I reviewed 1,000+ Python libraries and discovered these hidden gems I never knew even existed.

Here are some of them that will make you fall in love with Python and its versatility (even more).

Read this full list here: https://avichawla.substack.com/p/35-gem-py-libs.





Use Box Plots With Caution! They May Be Misleading.



Box plots are quite common in data analysis. But they can be misleading at times. Here's why.

A box plot is a graphical representation of just five numbers – min, first quartile, median, third quartile, and max.

Thus, two different datasets with similar five values will produce identical box plots. This, at times, can be misleading and one may draw wrong conclusions.

The takeaway is NOT that box plots should not be used. Instead, look at the underlying distribution too. Here, histograms and violin plots can help.

Lastly, always remember that when you condense a dataset, you don't see the whole picture. You are losing essential information.



An Underrated Technique To Create Better Data Plots



While creating visualizations, there are often certain parts that are particularly important. Yet, they may not be immediately obvious to the viewer.

A good data storyteller will always ensure that the plot guides the viewer's attention to these key areas.

One great way is to zoom in on specific regions of interest in a plot. This ensures that our plot indeed communicates what we intend it to depict.

In matplotlib, you can do so using **indicate_inset_zoom**(). It adds an indicator box, that can be zoomed-in for better communication.

Find more info here: Matplotlib docs.



The Pandas DataFrame Extension Every Data Scientist Has Been Waiting For



Watch a video version of this post for better understanding: <u>Video Link</u>.

PyGWalker is an open-source alternative to Tableau that transforms pandas dataframe into a tableau-style user interface for data exploration.

It provides a tableau-like UI in Jupyter, allowing you to analyze data faster and without code.

Find more info here: **PyGWalker**.



Supercharge Shell With Python Using Xonsh



Traditional shells have a limitation for python users. At a time, users can either run shell commands or use IPython.

As a result, one has to open multiple terminals or switch back and forth between them in the same terminal.

Instead, try Xonsh. It combines the convenience of a traditional shell with the power of Python. Thus, you can use Python syntax as well as run shell commands in the same shell.

Find more info here: Xonsh.



Most Command-line Users Don't Know This Cool Trick About Using Terminals



Watch a video version of this post for better understanding: <u>Video Link</u>.

After running a command (or script, etc.), most command-line users open a new terminal to run other commands. But that is never required.

Here's how.

When we run a program from the command line, by default, it runs in the foreground. This means you can't use the terminal until the program has been completed.

However, if you add '&' at the end of the command, the program will run in the background and instantly free the terminal.

This way, you can use the same terminal to run another command.

To bring the program back to the foreground, use the '**fg**' command.



A Simple Trick to Make The Most Out of Pivot Tables in Pandas

| vichawla | 1.su | bstack | .com | | Location Company | Bonbay | Dubai | London | Моксон | Munich | New York | Dystrony | Toky |
|----------|------|---------------------|----------|----------|---------------------|----------|----------|---------|----------|--------|------------|------------------------------|------|
| | | _ | | | Anazon | 18 | 34 | 16 | 21 | 34 | 21 | 23 | - 11 |
| 10 | | | | | Apple | 20 | 16 | 18 | 20 | 16 | 16 | .18 | 20 |
| | | | | | Google | 25 | - 85 | 22 | 15 | 19 | 17 | 25 | 25 |
| | | | | | IDM: | 29 | 94 | - 28 | - 70 | 26 | 82 | 37 | 21 |
| | have | | | | Microsoft | 17 | 19 | - 22 | - 28 | 31 | 10 | 25 | - 24 |
| rt seal | DOL | n as s | ns | | Sher | 18 | 17 | | 17 | 18 | 21 | 18 | .11 |
| S | , | Amazon - Apple - | 18 20 | 24 35 | 16 18 | 21 20 | 23 16 | 21 | 2) | 1 | 9 | - 33 - 31 - 29 - 27 | |
| | pany | Google - | | 33 | 22 | 19 | 19 | 17 | 21 | 2 | ŝ. | - 25 | t |
| | 5 | IBM - | 29 | -24 | 28 | 22 | 26 | 22 | 27 | 2 | t. | - 21 | 8 |
| | м | licrosoft - | 17 | 19 | | 26 | 31 | 19 | 21 | 2 | 1 | - 19 | |
| | | Uber - | 19 | 17 | 180 | 17 | 13 | 21 | 15 | 1 | 3 | - 15 | |
| | | | Bombay | Dubai | London | NOSCON | Auril | P New Y | ork sydn | et tot | <i>1</i> ° | - 13 | |

Pivot tables are pretty common for data exploration. Yet, analyzing raw figures is tedious and challenging. What's more, one may miss out on some crucial insights about the data.

Instead, enrich your pivot tables with heatmaps. The color encodings make it easier to analyze the data and determine patterns.



Why Python Does Not Offer True OOP Encapsulation

| | avichawla.substack.com |
|---|---|
| <pre>class MyClass: definit(self): self.public_attr = "I'm selfprotected_attr = "I'm selfprivate_attr = "I'm</pre> | <pre>public" # @ underscores protected" # 1 underscore private" # 2 underscores</pre> |
| | |
| | |
| my_obj = MyClass() | Public member |
| <pre>my_obj = MyClass() >>> my_obj.public_attr</pre> | Public member accessible |
| <pre>my_obj = MyClass() >>> my_obj.public_attr "I'm public"</pre> | Contract Public member accessible |
| <pre>my_obj = MyClass()</pre> | Public member accessible Protected member |
| <pre>my_obj = MyClass() >>> my_obj.public_attr "I'm public" >>> my_objprotected_attr "I'm protected"</pre> | ← Public member accessible ← Protected member accessible |
| <pre>my_obj = MyClass() www.my_obj.public_attr "I'm public" www.my_objprotected_attr "I'm protected" </pre> | ← Public member accessible ← Protected member accessible |
| <pre>my_obj = MyClass() >>>> my_obj.public_attr "I'm public" >>>> my_objprotected_attr "I'm protected" >>>> my_objMyClassprivate_attr</pre> | Public member accessible Protected member accessible Private member |
| <pre>my_obj = MyClass() >>> my_obj.public_attr "I'm public" >>> my_objprotected_attr "I'm protected" >>> my_objMyClassprivate_attr "I'm private"</pre> | Public member accessible Protected member accessible Private member accessible with |

Using access modifiers (public, protected, and private) is fundamental to encapsulation in OOP. Yet, Python, in some way, fails to deliver true encapsulation.

By definition, a public member is accessible everywhere. A private member can only be accessed inside the base class. A protected member is accessible inside the base class and child class(es).

But, with Python, there are no such strict enforcements.

Thus, protected members behave exactly like public members. What's more, private members can be accessed outside the class using name mangling.

As a programmer, remember that encapsulation in Python mainly relies on conventions. Thus, it is the responsibility of the programmer to follow them.



Never Worry About Parsing Errors Again While Reading CSV with Pandas

| | icat file.csv | |
|----------------------------|--|--|
| | Name, Amount | |
| | Alice,\$300 | Separator appears |
| | Bob,\$1000 | in value |
| | Charlie,\$200 | in func |
| In [2]: | pd.read_csv{"file.csv | r") |
| | ## ParserError: Error | tokenizing data. C error: |
| | | and the second s |
| | ## Expected 2 fields | in line 3, saw 3 |
| In [3]: | ## Expected 2 fields import clevercsv | in line 3, saw 3 |
| In [3]: | <pre>## Expected 2 fields import clevercsv clevercsv.read_datafr</pre> | in line 3, saw 3 |
| In [3]: Out[3]: | <pre>## Expected 2 fields import clevercsv clevercsv.read_datafr</pre> | in line 3, saw 3 |
| <pre>In [3]: Out[3]:</pre> | <pre>## Expected 2 fields import clevercsv clevercsv.read_datafr Name Amount</pre> | in line 3, saw 3 |
| In [3]: Out[3]: | <pre>## Expected 2 fields import clevercsv clevercsv.read_datafr Name Amount 0 Alice \$300</pre> | in line 3, saw 3 |
| In [3]: Out[3]: | <pre>## Expected 2 fields import clevercsv clevercsv.read_datafr Name Amount 0 Alice \$300 1 Bob \$1,000</pre> | in line 3, saw 3 |

Pandas isn't smart (yet) to read messy CSV files.

Its read_csv method assumes the data source to be in a standard tabular format. Thus, any irregularity in data raises parsing errors, which may require manual intervention.

Instead, try CleverCSV. It detects the format of CSVs and makes it easier to load them, saving you tons of time.

Find more info here: <u>CleverCSV</u>.



An Interesting and Lesser-Known Way To Create Plots Using Pandas

| fro | m lo im | 4 import b44e port Bytes10 | ncode | avichawla.substack.com |
|-------------|--------------------------------------|--|---|----------------------------|
| de f | fig, a sx.his sx.axi plt.cl | _hist(data): x = plt.subpl t(data, bins- s('off') ose(fig) | ota(figaise=(2, 0.5)) 10) | |
| đđị | fig.se encode decode return | <pre>vefig(img) # d = b64encode d = encoded.d f'<ing 1="df</pre" src=" Days"></ing></pre> | <pre>dave Image to Spice Object (ing.getvalue()) / Incode object as bas scode('utf-R') / Decode in utf-# data:pog;base64,(decoded)'>' / Return HT ('Frime History').apply(create_line)</pre> | neif byte string ML tag |
| 1000 | 113.56 | Volume] = df | [Sirus History,] sbbr/(create pist) | |
| HTH | L(df.to | htal(escape- | false)) | |
| 1170 | Rame | _html(escape= Price History | Palee)) Last 7 Days Price | 10 Days Trade Volume |
| 0 | Kedf-to Name Bitcoin | _htal(escape= Price History (20400.0) | Palees) Last 7 Days Price | 10 Days Trade Volume |
| 0 1 | Bilcoin Ethernum | _html (escape= Price History (30400.0) (1340.0) | Palaes) Last 7 Days Price | |
| 0 1 2 | BhB | _html (escape= Price History (30400.0,) [1340.0,] [36.0,] | Palees)) Last 7 Days Price | |

Whenever you print/display a DataFrame in Jupyter, it is rendered using HTML and CSS. This allows us to format the output just like any other web page.

One interesting way is to embed inline plots which appear as a column of a dataframe.

In the above snippet, we first create a plot as we usually do. Next, we return the HTML tag with its source as the plot. Lastly, we render the dataframe as HTML.

Find the code for this tip here: Notebook.



Most Python Programmers Don't Know This About Python For-loops



Often when we use a for-loop in Python, we tend not to modify the loop variable inside the loop.

The impulse typically comes from acquaintance with other programming languages like C++ and Java.

But for-loops don't work that way in Python. Modifying the loop variable has no effect on the iteration.

This is because, before every iteration, Python unpacks the next item provided by iterable (**range**(5)) and assigns it to the loop variable (**num**).

Thus, any changes to the loop variable are replaced by the new value coming from the iterable.



How To Enable Function Overloading In Python



Python has no native support for function overloading. Yet, there's a quick solution to it.

Function overloading (having multiple functions with the same name but different number/type of parameters) is one of the core ideas behind polymorphism in OOP.

But if you have many functions with the same name, python only considers the latest definition. This restricts writing polymorphic code.

Despite this limitation, the dispatch decorator allows you to leverage function overloading.

Find more info here: Multipledispatch.



Generate Helpful Hints As You Write Your Pandas Code



When manipulating a dataframe, at times, one may be using unoptimized methods. What's more, errors introduced into the data can easily go unnoticed.

To get hints and directions about your data/code, try Dovpanda. It works as a companion for your Pandas code. As a result, it gives suggestions/warnings about your data manipulation steps.

P.S. When you will import Dovpanda, you will likely get an error. Ignore it and proceed with using Pandas. You will still receive suggestions from Dovpanda.

Find more info here: **Dovpandas**.



Speedup NumPy Methods 25x With Bottleneck



NumPy's methods are already highly optimized for performance. Yer, here's how you can further speed them up.

Bottleneck provides a suite of optimized implementations of NumPy methods.

Bottleneck is especially efficient for arrays with NaN values where performance boost can reach up to 100-120x.

Find more info here: **Bottleneck**.



Visualizing The Data Transformation of a Neural Network

How Neural Networks Transform Data

If you struggle to comprehend how a neural network learns complex non-linear data, I have created an animation that will surely help.

Please find the video here: Neural Network Animation.

For linearly inseparable data, the task boils down to projecting the data to a space where it becomes linearly separable.

Now, either you could do this manually by adding relevant features that will transform your data to a linear separable form. Consider concentric circles for instance. Passing a square of (x,y) coordinates as a feature will do this job.

But in most cases, the transformation is unknown or complex to figure out. Thus, non-linear activation functions are considered the best bet, and a neural network is allowed to figure out this "non-linear to linear transformation" on its own.

As shown in the animation, if we tweak the neural network by adding a 2D layer right before the output, and visualize this transformation, we see that the neural network has learned to linearly separate the data. We add a layer 2D because it is easy to visualize.

This linearly separable data can be easily classified by the last layer. To put it another way, the last layer is analogous to a logistic regression model which is given a linear separable input.

The code for this visualization experiment is available here: <u>GitHub</u>.



Never Refactor Your Code Manually Again. Instead, Use Sourcery!



Refactoring code is an important step in pipeline development. Yet, manual refactoring takes additional time for testing as one might unknowingly introduce errors.

Instead, use Sourcery. It's an automated refactoring tool that makes your code elegant, concise, and Pythonic in no time.

With Sourcery, you can refactor code from the command line, as an IDE plugin in VS Code and PyCharm, pre-commit, etc.

Find more info here: <u>Sourcery</u>.


Draw The Data You Are Looking For In Seconds



Please watch a video version of this post for better understanding: <u>Video</u> Link.

Often when you want data of some specific shape, programmatically generating it can be a tedious and time-consuming task.

Instead, use drawdata. This allows you to draw any 2D dataset in a notebook and export it. Besides a scatter plot, it can also create histogram and line plot

Find more info here: Drawdata.



Style Matplotlib Plots To Make Them More Attractive



Matplotlib offers close to 50 different styles to customize the plot's appearance.

To alter the plot's style, select a style from **plt.style.available** and create the plot as you originally would.

Find more info about styling here: **Docs**.



Speed-up Parquet I/O of Pandas by 5x



Dataframes are often stored in parquet files and read using Pandas' **read_parquet**() method.

Rather than using Pandas, which relies on a single-core, use fastparquet. It offers immense speedups for I/O on parquet files using parallel processing.

Find more info here: Docs.



40 Open-Source Tools to Supercharge Your Pandas Workflow



Pandas receives over <u>3M downloads per day</u>. But 99% of its users are not using it to its full potential.

I discovered these open-source gems that will immensely supercharge your Pandas workflow the moment you start using them.

Read this list here: <u>https://avichawla.substack.com/p/37-open-source-tools-to-supercharge-pandas</u>.





Stop Using The Describe Method in Pandas. Instead, use Skimpy.

| Data Summer | × | | Bate Tvo | - skinp | y sumary - | mairi | ** | | | | |
|---|---------------|----------------------------|--|----------------------|------------------------------|------------------------------------|---------------------------|-----------------|-----------------|-------|--|
| dotaframe Values | | | ulum Type | Count | Catagori | inat V | ariahtes | | | | |
| Number of rows Number of columns | 1000 | 7 0 5 1 5 5 | last64 ategory atetime64 nt64 col tring | | class location | •)) | | | | | |
| columname | NA | NK 5 | near | 14 | unter pt | _ | p25 | µ75 | p100 | hist. | |
| Exception weight for desprice rend | 0 8 130 | | 8 8. 8 12 -6.1 | 5 B 2 18 12 | .36 1.4 1.9 8 1.2 1 | 10-46 19821 1 1 1 1 | 8.13 8.5 8 -5,74 | 8.8 1 8.6 | 14 20 3.7 | Ŧ | |
| | - | - | | (88 | tegory | | | | - | - | |
| column_name | | | NA . | MA 5 | ñ | orde | red | | unique | | |
| tincation | | | | | ¥.1 | 1411 | 2 |] | | | |
| | | | | 100 | tetime | | | | | | |
| column_name | | 164 | NA S | first | 0 | last | | | freques | pancy | |
| date Sate_Hi_Tres | | 3 | 8.3 | 1 | 018-01-31 997-01-05 | | 2101-04- 2023-03- | -30 -94 | M. Warne | | |
| | | 1 | - 12 | | tring | - 11 | | 50. | × | | |
| colam_name NA | | 10.5 | 14 S | | irds per row | | tatal | tatel words | | | |
| column_name | | tant | | 6 8.5 | | 5.4 | | | 580 | | |
| column_name | - 1 | | 6 | 8.6 | | | 5.8 | - | | 584 | |

Supercharge the describe method in Pandas.

Skimpy is a lightweight tool for summarizing Pandas dataframes. In a single line of code, it generates a richer statistical summary than the describe() method.

What's more, the summary is grouped by datatypes for efficient analysis. You can use Skimpy from the command line too.

Find more info here: **Docs**.



The Right Way to Roll Out Library Updates in Python



While developing a library, authors may decide to remove some functions/methods/classes. But instantly rolling the update without any prior warning isn't a good practice.

This is because many users may still be using the old methods and they may need time to update their code.

Using the **deprecated** decorator, one can convey a warning to the users about the update. This allows them to update their code before it becomes outdated.

Find more info here: GitHub.



Simple One-Liners to Preview a Decision Tree Using Sklearn



If you want to preview a decision tree, sklearn provides two simple methods to do so.

1. **<u>plot_tree</u>** creates a graphical representation of a decision tree.

2. <u>export_text</u> builds a text report showing the rules of a decision tree.

This is typically used to understand the rules learned by a decision tree and gaining a better understanding of the behavior of a decision tree model.



Stop Using The Describe Method in Pandas. Instead, use Summarytools.

| 1 fro | . su | immarytoo | ls import df | Summary | | |
|--------|-------------|------------------------------|--|--------------------------|--------|-------------|
| 2 dfSi | umma | ry(iris_ | df) | | | |
| | Days | nsione: 150 x 5 listex: 1 | | | | |
| | No | Variable | Stats / Values | Freqs / (% of Valid) | Graph | Missing |
| | 1 | sepal, length (float64) | Mean (sd) : 5.8 (0.8) min < med < max: 4.3 < 5.8 < 7.9 IGR (CV) : 1.3 (7.1) | 35 distinct values | dillo | 0 (0.0%) |
| | 2 | sepal_width (float54) | Mean (sd) : 3,1 (0,4) min < med < max; 2,0 < 3,0 < 4,4 IQR (CV) : 0,5 (7,5) | 23 distinct values | alla | 0 (0.0%) |
| | 3 | petal_length (float64) | Mean (sd) : 3.8 (1.8) min < mid < max: 1.0 < 4.3 < 6.9 IQR (CV) : 3.5 (2.1) | 43 distinct values | h .th. | 0 (0.0%) |
| | 4 | petal_width (float54) | Mean (sc) : 1.2 (0.8) min < med < max: 0.1 < 1.3 < 2.5 IQR (CV) : 1.5 (1.6) | 22 distinct values | Lalin | 0 (0.0%) |
| | 5 | species (object) | 1. setosa 2. versicolor | 50 (33.3%) 50 (33.3%) | | 0 (0.0%) |

Summarytools is a simple EDA tool that gives a richer summary than **describe**() method. In a single line of code, it generates a standardized and comprehensive data summary.

The summary includes column statistics, frequency, distribution chart, and missing stats.

Find more info here: Summary Tools.





Never Search Jupyter Notebooks Manually Again To Find Your Code



Have you ever struggled to recall the specific Jupyter notebook in which you wrote some code? Here's a quick trick to save plenty of manual work and time.

nbcommands provides a bunch of commands to interact with Jupyter from the terminal.

For instance, you can search for code, preview a few cells, merge notebooks, and many more.

Find more info here: GitHub.



F-strings Are Much More Versatile Than You Think



Here are 6 lesser-known ways to format/convert a number using f-strings. What is your favorite f-string hack?



Is This The Best Animated Guide To KMeans Ever?



Have you ever struggled with understanding KMeans? How it works, how are the data points assigned to a centroid, or how do the centroids move?

If yes, let me help.

I created a beautiful animation using Manim to help you build an intuitive understanding of the algorithm.

Please find this video here: Video Link.



An Effective Yet Underrated Technique To Improve Model Performance



Robust ML models are driven by diverse training data. Here's a simple yet highly effective technique that can help you create a diverse dataset and increase model performance.

One way to increase data diversity is using data augmentation.

The idea is to create new samples by transforming the available samples. This can prevent overfitting, improve performance, and build robust models.

For images, you can use imgaug (linked in comments). It provides a variety of augmentation techniques such as flipping, rotating, scaling, adding noise to images, and many more.

Find more info: <u>Imgaug</u>.



Create Data Plots Right From The Terminal

| 54 | | 0 |
|-----|-----|---|
| 51 | | 00 00 |
| 48 | | 000 000 0 |
| 45 | | 000 000 0 |
| 43 | | 0000 000 0 |
| 101 | | 00000000 00 |
| 37 | | 00 0000000000 |
| 34 | | 00 0000000000 |
| 31 | | 0000000000000 |
| 29 | | 0000000000000 |
| 26 | | 00000000000000000 |
| 23 | | 00000000000000000 |
| 20 | | 00000000000000000000000 |
| 17 | | 000000000000000000000000000000000000000 |
| 15 | | 000000000000000000000000000000000000000 |
| 12 | | 000000000000000000000000000000000000000 |
| 9 | | 000000000000000000000000000000000000000 |
| 6 | | 00 000000000000000000000000000000000000 |
| 3 | 0 | 0 0000000000000000000000000000000000000 |
| 11 | 0 0 | 000000000000000000000000000000000000000 |

Visualizing data can get tough when you don't have access to a GUI. But here's what can help.

Bashplotlib offers a quick and easy way to make basic plots right from the terminal. Being pure python, you can quickly install it anywhere using pip and visualize your data.

Find more info here: **Bashplotlib**.



Make Your Matplotlib Plots More Professional



The default matplotlib plots are pretty basic in style and thus, may not be the apt choice always. Here's how you can make them appealing.

To create professional-looking and attractive plots for presentations, reports, or scientific papers, try Science Plots.

Adding just two lines of code completely transforms the plot's appearance.

Find more info here: GitHub.



37 Hidden Python Libraries That Are Absolute Gems



I reviewed 1,000+ Python libraries and discovered these hidden gems I never knew even existed.

Here are some of them that will make you fall in love with Python' and its versatility (even more).

Read this list here: https://avichawla.substack.com/p/gem-libraries.



Preview Your README File Locally In GitHub Style



Please watch a video version for better understanding: Video Link.

Have you ever wanted to preview a README file before committing it to GitHub? Here's how to do it.

Grip is a command-line tool that allows you to render a README file as it will appear on GitHub. This is extremely useful as sometimes one may want to preview the file before pushing it to GitHub.

What's more, editing the README instantly reflects in the browser without any page refresh.

Read more: Grip.





Pandas and NumPy Return Different Values for Standard Deviation. Why?



Pandas assumes that the data is a sample of the population and that the obtained result can be biased towards the sample.

Thus, to generate an unbiased estimate, it uses (n-1) as the dividing factor instead of n. In statistics, this is also known as Bessel's correction.

NumPy, however, does not make any such correction.

Find more info here: Bessel's correction.



Visualize Commit History of Git Repo With Beautiful Animations



As the size of your project grows, it can get difficult to comprehend the Git tree.

Git-story is a command line tool to create elegant animations for your git repository.

It generates a video that depicts the commits, branches, merges, HEAD commit, and many more. Find more info in the comments.

Please watch a video version of this post here: <u>Video</u>.

Read more: <u>Git-story</u>.



Perfplot: Measure, Visualize and Compare Run-time With Ease



Here's an elegant way to measure the run-time of various Python functions.

Perfplot is a tool designed for quick run-time comparisons of many functions/algorithms.

It extends Python's timeit package and allows you to quickly visualize the run-time in a clear and informative way.

Find more info: **Perfplot**.





This GUI Tool Can Possibly Save You Hours Of Manual Work



Please watch a video version of this post for better understanding: Link.

This is indeed one of the coolest and most useful Jupyter notebook-based data science tools.

Visual Python is a GUI-based python code generator. Using this, you can easily eliminate writing code for many repetitive tasks. This includes importing libraries, I/O, Pandas operations, plotting, etc.

Moreover, with the click of a couple of buttons, you can import the code for many ML-based utilities. This covers sklearn models, evaluation metrics, data splitting functions, and many more.

Read more: Visual Python.



How Would You Identify Fuzzy Duplicates In A Data With Million Records?

| | First_Name | Case (Marrie | Address | s Ph | one in inkudio.com | |
|---|-------------|--|--|---|--|---|
| 0 | Daniel | Lopez | 719 Greene St. East Rhonde | 9371184 | 1029 | |
| 1 | Daniel | NaN | 719 Green Street East Rhode | 93711-84 | 1929 🕽 | - |
| 1 | Alan | Martin | 982 Carol Harbors Apart | 7481919 | izas Data | with |
| 1 | Alan Martin | NaN | 982 Carol Aparments | 748-191-9 | 1235 5 ft 172 | 211 |
| | Philip | Owens | 2578 Banks Ford | t 869-6922x9 | 1581 | |
| ľ | Shannon | White | USCGC Moline | a (150)082-7 | nez dupli | cates |
| | Julia | Anderson | 09162 Mason Mnts | 698-1590x3 | 1236 | |
| 1 | Juliya | Anderson | 9162 Mason Street Mountain | 69815903 | 1236 | |
| | \$ csvd | edupe i field outpu | nput.csv \ _names First_Na t_file output.c | ame Last 25V | _Name Address Pf | none \ |
| | \$ csvd | edupe i field outpu | nput.csv \ _names First_Na t_file output.c ChusterID First_Name | ame Last 25V Last Name | _Name Address Ph Address | 10ne \ Phon |
| | S csvd | edupe i field outpu 0 | nput.csv \ _names First_Na t_file output.c ClusterID First_Name | ame Last 25V Last_Name Lopez | Name_Address_Ph Address 719 Greene St. East Phonda | 10 ne \ Phon 937116492 |
| | S csvd | edupe i field outpu | nput.csv \ _names First_Na t_file output.c Cluster ID First_Name 0 Daniel 0 Daniel | ame Last 25V Last_Name Lopez nan | Name_Address_Ph Address 719 Greene St. East Phonda 719 Green Street East Phonda | 10.n.e \ Phon 937118492 93711-8492 |
| | S csvd | edupe i field outpu | nput.csv \ _names First_Na t_file output.c ClusterID First_Name 0 Daniel 0 Daniel 1 Nan | ame Last 25V Last_Name Lopez nan Martin | Name Address Pr Address 719 Greene St. East Phonda 719 Green Street East Phonda 982 Carol Harbors Apart. | 10 ne \ Phon 937118492 93711-8492 748191923 |
| | S csvd | edupe i field outpu | nput.csv \ _names First_Na t_file output.c ClusterID First_Name 0 Daniel 0 Daniel 1 Alan 1 Alan Martin | ame Last 25V Last Name Lopez nan Martin nan | Address Ph Address 719 Greene St. East Phonda 719 Green Street East Phonda 982 Carol Harbors Apart. 982 Carol Aparments | 1011e \ Phon 937118492 93711-8492 748191923 748-191-923 |
| | \$ csvd | edupe i field outpu 0 1 2 d 3 4 | nput.csv \ _names First_Na t_file output.c ClusterID First_Name 0 Daniel 0 Daniel 1 Alan 1 Alan Martin 2 Philip | ame Last 25V Last_Name Lopez nan Martin nan Owens | Name Address Pr Address 719 Greene St. East Phonda 719 Green Street East Phonda 982 Carol Harbors Apart. 982 Carol Aparments 2578 Banks Ford | Phon 937118492 93711-8492 748191923 748-191-923 869-6922x958 |
| | S csvd | edupe i field outpu 0 1 2 d 4 5 | nput.csv \ _names First_Na t_file output.c ClusterID First_Name 0 Daniel 0 Daniel 1 Alan 1 Alan 1 Alan Martin 2 Philip 3 Shannon | ame Last 25V Lest Name Lopez nan Martin nan Owens White | Name Address Pr Address 719 Greene St. East Rhonda 719 Green Street East Rhonda 982 Carol Harbors Apart. 982 Carol Harbors Apart. 982 Carol Aparments 2578 Banka Ford USCGC Molina | 1011E \ Phon 937118492 93711-8492 748191923 748-191-923 869-6922x958 (150)082-798 |
| | \$ csvd | edupe i field outpu 0 1 2 d 3 4 5 0 | nput.csv \ _names First_Na t_file output.c CluaterID First_Name 0 Daniel 0 Daniel 1 Alan 1 Alan 2 Philip 3 Shannon | ame Last 25V Last_Name Lopez nan Martin nan Owens White Anderson | Name Address Pr Address 719 Greene St. East Phonda 719 Green Street East Phonda 982 Carol Harbors Apart. 982 Carol Aparments 2578 Banks Ford USCGC Molina 09162 Mason Mrts. | Phon 937118492 93711-8492 748191923 748-191-923 869-6922x958 (150)082-798 696-1590x323 |

Imagine you have over a million records with fuzzy duplicates. How would you identify potential duplicates?

The naive approach of comparing every pair of records is infeasible in such cases. That's over 10^{12} comparisons (n²). Assuming a speed of 10,000 comparisons per second, it will take roughly 3 years to complete.

The csvdedupe tool (linked in comments) solves this by cleverly reducing the comparisons. For instance, comparing the name "Daniel" to "Philip" or "Shannon" to "Julia" makes no sense. They are guaranteed to be distinct records.

Thus, it groups the data into smaller buckets based on rules. One rule could be to group all records with the same first three letters in the name.



This way, it drastically reduces the number of comparisons with great accuracy.

Read more: <u>CSVdedupe</u>.



Stop Previewing Raw DataFrames. Instead, Use DataTables.

| In the parameter and and and a second and a | |
|--|-----------|
| And and a second a | |
| Anno Service S | term 1 |
| dibilitik matdama Hullili matda | Maril |
| interest in the second se | Mail |
| interest dividialities and and a second second | Maril. |
| A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A | 24 au |
| a martine belancial bring brane bart branes and | |
| and and an an and a second sec | |
| M Versenan entering Streamen Metalise | - |
| 40 Theyberry Antonia Frequency Assister Form | - |
| as Romanikan Annosist Man Madaman Man | |
| 20 Section America Mathematic Astronom Sector | - |
| a inter forgan and and 12 Spectra bar Calorinan Sarrish and | and the s |
| 18 Data form index 2 Data preside music for Apartic Caloring | - |
| and Service Security Statistical Statistical Security Security Security | - |
| 48 Bear fann Beaten ind San gemeini annun sanate Bear annun Bear ing ta | |
| | |

After loading any dataframe in Jupyter, we preview it. But it hardly tells anything about the data.

One has to dig deeper by analyzing it, which involves simple yet repetitive code.

Instead, use Jupyter-DataTables.

It supercharges the default preview of a DataFrame with many common operations. This includes sorting, filtering, exporting, plotting column distribution, printing data types, and pagination.

Please view a video version here for better understanding: **Post Link**.



A Single Line That Will Make Your Python Code Faster



If you are frustrated with Python's run-time, here's how a single line can make your code blazingly fast.

Numba is a just-in-time (JIT) compiler for Python. This means that it takes your existing python code and generates a fast machine code (at run-time).

Thus, post compilation, your code runs at native machine code speed. Numba works best on code that uses NumPy arrays and functions, and loops.

Get Started: Numba Guide.



Prettify Word Clouds In Python



If you use word clouds often, here's a quick way to make them prettier.

In Python, you can easily alter the shape and color of a word cloud. By supplying a mask image, the resultant world cloud will take its shape and appear fancier.

Find more info here: Notebook Link.



How to Encode Categorical Features With Many Categories?



We often encode categorical columns with one-hot encoding. But the feature matrix becomes sparse and unmanageable with many categories.

The category-encoders library provides a suite of encoders specifically for categorical variables. This makes it effortless to experiment with various encoding techniques.

For instance, I used its binary encoder above to represent a categorical column in binary format.

Read more: **Documentation**.



Calendar Map As A Richer Alternative to Line Plot



Ever seen one of those calendar heat maps? Here's how you can create one in two lines of Python code.

A calendar map offers an elegant way to visualize daily data. At times, they are better at depicting weekly/monthly seasonality in data instead of line plots. For instance, imagine creating a line plot for "Work Group Messages" above.

To create one, you can use "plotly_calplot". Its input should be a DataFrame. A row represents the value corresponding to a date.

Read more: **Plotly Calplot**.





10 Automated EDA Tools That Will Save You Hours Of (Tedious) Work



Most steps in a data analysis task stay the same across projects. Yet, manually digging into the data is tedious and time-consuming, which inhibits productivity.

Here are 10 EDA tools that automate these repetitive steps and profile your data in seconds.

Please find this full document in my LinkedIn post: Post Link.



Why KMeans May Not Be The Apt Clustering Algorithm Always



KMeans is a popular clustering algorithm. Yet, its limitations make it inapplicable in many cases.

For instance, KMeans clusters the points purely based on locality from centroids. Thus, it can create wrong clusters when data points have arbitrary shapes.

Among the many possible alternatives is DBSCAN, which is a density-based clustering algorithm. Thus, it can identify clusters of arbitrary shape and size.

This makes it robust to data with non-spherical clusters and varying densities. Find more info in the comments.

Find more here: Sklearn Guide.





Converting Python To LaTeX Has Possibly Never Been So Simple



If you want to display python code and its output as LaTeX, try **latexify_py**. With this, you can print python code as a LaTeX expression and make your code more interpretable.

What's more, it can also generate LaTeX code for python code. This saves plenty of time and effort of manually writing the expressions in LaTeX.

Find more info here: <u>Repository</u>.



Density Plot As A Richer Alternative to Scatter Plot



Scatter plots are extremely useful for visualizing two sets of numerical variables. But when you have, say, thousands of data points, scatter plots can get too dense to interpret.

A density plot can be a good choice in such cases. It depicts the distribution of points using colors (or contours). This makes it easy to identify regions of high and low density.

Moreover, it can easily reveal clusters of data points that might not be obvious in a scatter plot.

Read more: **Docs**.





30 Python Libraries to (Hugely) Boost Your Data Science Productivity



Here's a collection of 30 essential open-source data science libraries. Each has its own use case and enormous potential to skyrocket your data science skills.

I would love to know the ones you use.

Please find this full document in my LinkedIn post: **Post Link**.



Sklearn One-liner to Generate Synthetic Data

Often for testing/building a data pipeline, we may need some dummy data.

With Sklearn, you can easily create a dummy dataset for regression, classification, and clustering tasks.

More info here: Sklearn Docs.



Label Your Data With The Click Of A Button



Often with unlabeled data, one may have to spend some time annotating/labeling it.

To do this quickly in a jupyter notebook, use **ipyannotate**. With this, you can annotate your data by simply clicking the corresponding button.

Read more: ipyannotate.

Watch a video version of this post on LinkedIn: **Post Link**.



Analyze A Pandas DataFrame Without Code

| | 10 (1) - Million | and rested, print (| former benannen orte | | | | | |
|--|--|---------------------|----------------------------|-----------------------------|--|--|--|---|
| | | | | | | | | |
| | to (A)+ Admin | #1 | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | |
| | and the second s | | | 544 m | them bate haur | | | |
| | and on the owner of | and and | - | Contemportune | Instance, ink, Phys. | Deployee, De | Instant, June | |
| | a second second second second | 1.4 | Million Date | -break and theirs | Assessment of the section | Manhamate | moder-Ample | |
| | | 104 | 1044-0149 | Barry of the and Dissection | Participant and a Party | minutery . | despised . | |
| | | 1.6 | 1 CONTRACTOR OF | -manual di | Next advised | Inter Humanitory | the l | |
| | | | The state in the | Auto Auros | | the second secon | 1000 | |
| | | | - International | forma lance- | Adda to the descine | manute. | - | |
| | | 1.4 | Chaptersy Trees. | Become To | where . | and the second s | Testing | |
| | | 1.4 | And Address of Colors | timber (1988) and (Append | #1045 | has induced | in the local | |
| | | 1.4 | destined. | Sector- | Concession of Co | Name of Concession, Name of Street, or other | ine. | |
| | | | Constantion of Constantion | Amontante- | Response and the | No. or other | Their Person | |
| | | | State Incode | - and a set line | Take partners annual descents | distant. | mind frame of Arts | |
| | | 14 | beep met | Particular and Disease | Arrest later hand an approximation of the | (Margaret | Spanning Service | |
| | | | harding . | Belevi Sarite | Automotive Commission | these in April and in | And . | |
| | Column . | 1.4 | 400.000 | dehor/anti- | forge range | Inclusion Addressing | dises | |
| | | 1.4 | - New York | datasi ana farin | 10.00 | August 1 | discourse in the local | |
| | 100 | | (Demailer Rev) | the dail rations | All | the second second | man and a second | |
| | And | | Address description | anny defension of 1980 | Name and Address and Address of the | - | impoten. | |
| | Eveningen, con 2 km | | and interaction | Jeens and liters | And present international | the barries | rendere | |
| | Brompan, 199 | | Auto beau | family interest | Administration | the investigation | Timeset | |
| | Protover, Saler Protover, Janua Protover, Janua Dania | 1.4 | CARD LINESSEE | last been | analy . | the formation | interest in the second | |
| | | | Taka Intern | - Direct and the st | Trange Independent | Inter Codemann | (Styles) | |
| | | 1.44 | condition of | description. | Transmitt. | field and services | description and the | - |
| | | 1.0 | distants. | -toyloods (as not | Trading represent prices | through the | Annal Passalia | |
| | | 10 | Champion Talletier | Tonia Servici | Trading previously official | Decir Melaugheit | And I | |
| | | - 44 | Sectional . | Relation for the | hand any test | Marken M | and a local diversity of the local diversity | đ |

If you want to analyze your dataframe in a GUI-based application, try Pandas GUI. It provides an elegant GUI for viewing, filtering, sorting, describing tabular datasets, etc.

What's more, using its intuitive drag-and-drop functionality, you can easily create a variety of plots and export them as code.

Watch a video version of this post on LinkedIn: **Post Link**.



Python One-Liner To Create Sketchy Hand-drawn Plots



<u>xkcd</u> comic is known for its informal and humorous style, as well as its stick figures and simple drawings.

Creating such visually appealing hand-drawn plots is pretty simple using matplotlib. Just indent the code in a **plt.xkcd**() context to display them in comic style.

Do note that this style is just used to improve the aesthetics of a plot through hand-drawn effects. However, it is not recommended for formal presentations, publications, etc.

Read more: **Docs**.


70x Faster Pandas By Changing Just One Line of Code



It is challenging to work on large datasets in Pandas. This, at times, requires plenty of optimization and can get tedious as the dataset grows further.

Instead, try Modin. It delivers instant improvements with no extra effort. Change the import statement and use it like the Pandas API, with significant speedups. Find more info in the comments.

Read more: Modin Guide.



An Interactive Guide To Master Pandas In One Go



Here's a mind map illustrating Pandas Methods on one page. How many do you know :)

- Load/Save
- DataFrame info
- Filter
- Merge
- Time-series
- Plot
- and many more, in a single map.

Find the full diagram here: Pandas Mind Map.



Make Dot Notation More Powerful in Python



Dot notation offers a simple and elegant way to access and modify the attributes of an instance.

Yet, it is a good programming practice to use the getter and setter method for such purposes. This is because it offers more control over how attributes are accessed/changed.

To leverage both in Python, use the **@property** decorator. As a result, you can use the dot notation and still have explicit control over how attributes are accessed/set.



The Coolest Jupyter Notebook Hack



Have you ever forgotten to assign the results to a variable in Jupyter? Rather than recomputing the result by rerunning the cell, here are three ways to retrieve the output.

1) Use the underscore followed by the output-cell-index.

2/3) Use the **Out** or _**oh** dict and specify the output-cell-index as the key.



Create a Moving Bubbles Chart in Python



Ever seen one of those moving points charts? Here's how you can create one in Python in just three lines of code.

A Moving Bubbles chart is an elegant way to depict the movements of entities across time. Using this, we can easily determine when clusters appear in our data and at what state(s).

To create one, you can use "<u>d3blocks</u>". Its input should be a DataFrame. A row represents the state of a sample at a particular timestamp.



Skorch: Use Scikit-learn API on PyTorch Models



skorch is a high-level library for PyTorch that provides full Scikit-learn compatibility. In other words, it combines the power of PyTorch with the elegance of sklearn.

Thus, you can train PyTorch models in a way similar to Scikit-learn, using functions such as fit, predict, score, etc.

Using skorch, you can also put a PyTorch model in the sklearn pipeline, and many more.

Overall, it aims at being as flexible as PyTorch while having a clean interface as sklearn.

Read more: **Documentation**.





Reduce Memory Usage Of A Pandas DataFrame By 90%

| | | | | A | В |
|---|---|--|-------------------------------|-------------|------------|
| ••• | | | 0 | 38 | 46 |
| | | | 1 | 28 | 58 |
| ## df.shape: (1 | 0^7, 2) | | 2 | 47 | 82 |
| | | | 3 | 88 | 87 |
| <pre>>>> df.A.dtype dtype('int64')</pre> | | | 4 | 13 | 78 |
| ## Range: [-2*6 | 3, 2^63-1] | 5 | Sup | apo | nte |
| <pre>>>> df.A.min(), (1, 100)</pre> | df.A.max() | ~ | rang than | e la rec | arg Jui |
| >>> df.A.memory | _usage() | _ | | | |
| 76.3 MB | | | | | |
| Convert to | | | | | |
| Convert to | ••• | df.A.asty | ype(np | .in | t8) |
| 76.3 MB Convert to smaller | <pre> df["A"] = ## Range:</pre> | df.A.asty [-128, 12 | ype(np 27] | .in | t8) |
| Convert to smaller datatype | <pre>df["A"] = ## Range: >>> df.A.m</pre> | df.A.asty [-128, 12 emory us | ype(np 27] age() | .in | t8) |
| 76.3 MB Convert to smaller datatype | <pre>df["A"] = ## Range: >>> df.A.m 9.5 MB # (</pre> | df.A.asty [-128, 12 emory_usa ~90% Lowe | ype(np 27] age() ar) | .in | t8 |

By default, Pandas always assigns the highest memory datatype to its columns. For instance, an integer-valued column always gets the int64 datatype, irrespective of its range.

To reduce memory usage, represent it using an optimized datatype, which is enough to span the range of values in your columns.

Read <u>this blog</u> for more info. It details many techniques to optimize the memory usage of a Pandas DataFrame.





An Elegant Way To Perform Shutdown Tasks in Python

| import atexit | Add decorato |
|--|--|
| <pre>@atexit.register def final_function print("COMPLET for i in range(5): print(f"num =</pre> | (): ED EXECUTION!") {i}) |
| | |
| The decorator | • • • Terminal \$ python my_file.py |

Often towards the end of a program's execution, we run a few basic tasks such as saving objects, printing logs, etc.

To invoke a method right before the interpreter is shutting down, decorate it with the **@atexit.register** decorator.

The good thing is that it works even if the program gets terminated unexpectedly. Thus, you can use this method to save the state of the program or print any necessary details before it stops.

Read more: **Documentation**.





Visualizing Google Search Trends of 2022 using Python

| Search Trends: 2021 Wordle Ukraine COVID IPL Twitter Takeover Johnny Depp WYST Stable Diffusion India Pakistan Queen Elizabeth Right Sunak Tach Layoffs Mar File World Cap Plate Director Director Director Director Mar | <pre>plot = sns.FacetGrid(df_tra row="T hue="T plot.map(plt.plot, "Date",</pre> | nd, (ezn*) (*Irend*) ← define grid (← map plot to grid |
|--|---|---|
| Wordle Ukraine COVID IPL Twitter Takeover Johnny Deep JWST Stable Diffusion India Pakistan Queen Elizabeth Roger Paderee Rich Layoffs Yen FifA World Cap | The second se | Search Trends: 2022 |
| Ukraine COVID IPL Twitter Taksovey Johnny Deepe JWST Stable Diffueion India Pakistan Queen Elizabeth Rishi Sunak Tath Layoffs Men FifA Moridi Cap FifA Moridi Cap </td <td></td> <td>Wordla</td> | | Wordla |
| COVID IPL Twitter Takeover Johany Depp JWST Stable Diffusion India Pakistan Queen Elizabeth Roger Paderen Rishi Sunak Tech Layoffs Jray FIFA World Cap FIFE ContOFF | | Ukraine |
| IPL Twitter Takeover Johnny Depp JWST Stable Diffusion India Pakistan Queen Elizabeth Roper Paderen Rishi Sunak Teth Layoffs Inter Fife World Cap Fife World Cap JW FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUS SEP OCT NOY DEC | | COVID |
| Twitter Takeover johnny Depp IvyST Stable Diffusion India Pakistan Queen Elizabeth Rishi Sunak Tech Layoffs Ivan Fife World Cap Fife World Cap Fife World Cap Jan FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUX: SEP OCT NOV DEC | | IPL |
| johnny Depp JWST Stable Diffusion India Pakistan Queen Elizabeth Risper Pederan Rishi Sunak Tech Layoffs Nan FifA World Cap FTE Conterf JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT MAY DEC | | Twitter Takeover |
| India Pakistan Gueen Elizabeth Roger Faderan Rishi Sunak Tech Layoffs Nan FifA World Cap FifE Conteff JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOY DEC | · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · | Johnny Depp |
| Stable Diffusion India Pakistan Queen Elizabeth Right Sunak Titch Layoffs Man FifA World Cup FifA World Cup FifE Different JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC | | INST |
| India Pakistan Queen Elizabeth Roger Federen Rishi Sunak Tech Layoffs Nen FifA World Cap FifA World Cap FifA World Cap FifA World Cap FifA World Cap | | Stable Diffusion |
| Gueen Eitzabeth Roger Faderen Rishi Sunak Tech Layoffs Iran FifA World Cup FTE Conteff JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC | | India Pakistan |
| Rishi Sunak Tech Layoffs Nan FifA World Cap FTE CheftEF7 JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC | | Queen Elizabeth |
| Tech Layoffs Iven FIFA World Cap FTE ChetSF7 JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC | | Rishi Sunak |
| Intern FIFA World Cup FTE ChertoPT JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC | | Tech Layoffs |
| FIFA World Cap FTE ChatSP7 JAN FEB MAA APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC | | Iran |
| AN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC | | FIFA World Cup |
| JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC | | FTX C |
| JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOW DEC | | Chel5P7 |
| | and and the second | JAN PEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUX SEP OCT NOW DEC |

If your data has many groups, visualizing their distribution together can create cluttered plots. This makes it difficult to visualize the underlying patterns.

Instead, consider plotting the distribution across individual groups using FacetGrid. This allows you to compare the distributions of multiple groups side by side and see how they vary.

As shown above, a FacetGrid allows us to clearly see how different search terms trended across 2022.

P.S. I used the <u>year-in-search-trends</u> repository to fetch the trend data.



Create A Racing Bar Chart In Python

| | delining. | distant. | Printer. | - | | mair | Balline Limits | Sec.14 | | Indexed Minutes | | |
|---------------------|---|----------|----------------|------------|------------|---------------|------------------|--------|------------|-----------------|-------|---------|
| auto. | | | | | | 10004 | | - | | | | |
| 2010-04-02 | 1942 | 100 | | 1215 | 2014 | 1446 | 160 | 11108 | 1118 | - | £ | |
| 2020-01-01 | 1385 | 3126 | 1974 | 1444 | 3460 | 10340 | 1054 | 1847 | 8887 | - | ÷ | |
| IN10-04-00 | 1447 | 3434 | 9003 | 1994 | 3015 | 10007 | 1993 | 12641 | - | | 61 | |
| 1022-04-08 | 1980 | 3036 | **** | -1910 | 108 | 1002 | 1879 | (pe | 1092 | 200 | | |
| 2630-56-07 | 3086 | -3338 | 1004 | 3118 | 3472 | trat | 2108 | 14048 | 12108 | 417 | | |
| the next had the | 10.000 | ar-it. | ine's | | 1021 | in the | and a state | | | | | |
| 111.011.04.201 | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | CO | WID- | 19 Death | is by | Cou | ntry | | |
| | Card I | - | | | a (electro | Product along | Carriel Constant | - | increased. | Andre | - | initia. |
| | _ | - | _ | | _ | | | | _ | | | |
| | - | <u> </u> | | | _ | | | | - | | | |
| | a del se | | | | | | | | 100 1000 | | | |
| | Dia | _ | | | | | | | 30.781 | | | |
| | ULA Rater | | | | | | | NJ8 | 26.781 | Ē | | |
| (natural 1 | Dia Rater Ingelan | | _ | | 1 | | | NJ8 | 201.700 | Ę | | |
| (minut t | Dia Raver Ingenera San | | | 4.19 | 1 | 363 : | | kue - | 36.341 | E | | |
| . Initial I | USA Rater Ingelsen Gan (Jama | | | LTR LTR | | .345 | | 128 | 26,340 | 6 | | |
| (minut r | Ulia Narer Ingelen Una (Jana artané | | 1.074 | 1.70 | | | | K28 | 10,381 | | | |
| (ndad) Sant S | USA Ranne Ingeteen Gan (Tema artanak artanak | | 1,010 | 110 | | .345 : | • | KI B | 34,181 | 20 | 20-04 | -06 |
| (nited f | Uis Raver Ingitum Uisa Class artanis artanis artanis | | 1,875 1,875 | L TR | | .341 | | KUB | 20,787 | 20 | 20-04 | -06 |

Ever seen one of those racing bar charts? Here's how you can create one in Python in just two lines of code.

A racing bar chart is typically used to depict the progress of multiple values over time.

To create one, you can use the "**bar-chart-race**" library.

Its input should be a Pandas DataFrame where every row represents a single timestamp. The column holds the corresponding values for a particular category.

Read more: **Documentation**.



Speed-up Pandas Apply 5x with NumPy

| | | | A | в | C | D |
|-----------------------------|---|--|------------|------------------------|------------------|---------|
| def assign_c | lass(num): | 0 | 19 | 80 | 39 | 36 |
| if num<1 | 0: | 1 | 20 | 97 | 47 | 9 |
| retu | rn "Class A" | | | - | | |
| it num<5 | 81 | 2 | 3 | 63 | 16 | 69 |
| return " | In "Class B" | 3 | 68 | 20 | 58 | 37 |
| recurn | | 4 | 63 | 71 | 51 | 32 |
| df.A.apply(a ## 1.02 5 ± | ssign_class) 20.5 ms per loop | | 10^ | 7 1 | 00 | /S |
| df.A.apply(a ## 1.02 5 ± | ssign_class) 20.5 ms per loop ••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••• | Select | 10^ | 7 1 | 'O W | /S |
| df.A.apply(a ## 1.02 5 ± | ssign_class) 20.5 ms per loop NumPy S condlist = [df | Select | df[| 7 r "A" I | OW]<50 | /S |
| df.A.apply(a ## 1.02 5 ≠ | ssign_class) 20.5 ms per loop NumPy S condlist = [df resultlist = ["C | Select ["A"]<10 , 1 Lass A" , | df["cl | 7 r "A" I ass | оw]<50 в" | /s 1 |

While creating conditional columns in Pandas, we tend to use the **apply**() method almost all the time.

However, **apply**() in Pandas is nothing but a glorified for-loop. As a result, it misses the whole point of vectorization.

Instead, you should use the **np.select**() method to create conditional columns. It does the same job but is extremely fast.

The conditions and the corresponding results are passed as the first two arguments. The last argument is the default result.

Read more here: <u>NumPy docs</u>.



A No-Code Online Tool To Explore and Understand Neural Networks



Neural networks can be intimidating for beginners. Also, experimenting programmatically does not provide enough intuitive understanding about them.

Instead, try TensorFlow Playground. Its elegant UI allows you to build, train and visualize neural networks without any code.

With a few clicks, one can see how neural networks work and how different hyperparameters affect their performance. This makes it especially useful for beginners.

Try here: Tensorflow Playground.



What Are Class Methods and When To Use Them?

| elf, width, height): = width : = height | Define classmetho |
|---|---|
| (cls, size): angle(size, size) | |
| | |
| rect = Rectangle.fr | om_square(5) |
| <pre>print(rect.width)</pre> | # Output: 5 |
| | <pre>/lf, width, height): = width : = height (cls, size): angle(size, size) rect = Rectangle.fr print(rect.width)</pre> |

Class methods, as the name suggests, are bound to the class and not the instances of a class. They are especially useful for providing an alternative interface for creating instances.

Moreover, they can be also used to define utility functions that are related to the class rather than its instances.

For instance, one can define a class method that returns a list of all instances of the class. Another use could be to calculate a class-level statistic based on the instances.

To define a class method in Python, use the **@classmethod** decorator. As a result, this method can be called directly using the name of the class.



Make Sklearn KMeans 20x times faster



The KMeans algorithm is commonly used to cluster unlabeled data. But with large datasets, scikit-learn takes plenty of time to train and predict.

To speed-up KMeans, use Faiss by Facebook AI Research. It provides faster nearest-neighbor search and clustering.

Faiss uses "Inverted Index", an optimized data structure to store and index the data points. This makes performing clustering extremely efficient.

Additionally, Faiss provides parallelization and GPU support, which further improves the performance of its clustering algorithms.

Read more: GitHub.



Speed-up NumPy 20x with Numexpr



Numpy already offers fast and optimized vectorized operations. Yet, it does not support parallelism. This provides further scope for improving the run-time of NumPy.

To do so, use Numexpr. It allows you to speed up numerical computations with multi-threading and just-in-time compilation.

Depending upon the complexity of the expression, the speed-ups can range from 0.95x and 20x. Typically, it is expected to be 2x-5x.

Read more: **Documentation**.



A Lesser-Known Feature of Apply Method In Pandas

| | | | | | | | A | В | C |
|--|--------|-------------------|--------------------|-----------------|------------------------|----------------|-------------------|----------------------------------|--------------|
| daf min | mayler | - | ic. | | | 0 | 1 | 3 | 2 |
| retu | rn ma) | x(r) | ow), | min(r | ow) | 1 | 4 | 6 | 3 |
| | | | | | | | | | |
| <pre>>>> df.appl 0 (3, 1) 1 (6, 3)</pre> | y(min | ≤ma | x, a) | xis = | 1) | Ì | Pai Se of 1 | nda ries Tupl | S |
| <pre>>>> df.appl 0 (3, 1) 1 (6, 3) Pandas DataFrame</pre> | y(min) | _ma | x, a)) f.ap | xis = ply(mi | 1) in_max esult_ | , axi type= | Pai Se of 1 | nda ries Tupl 1, | s ; () |
| <pre>>>> df.appl 0 (3, 1) 1 (6, 3) Pandas DataFrame</pre> | y(min) | _ma • d • d | x, a)) f.ap | xis = ply(mi | 1) in_max esult_ | , axi type= | Pai Se of 1 | nda ries Tupl 1, and | s ; e |

After applying a method on a DataFrame, we often return multiple values as a tuple. This requires additional steps to project it back as separate columns.

Instead, with the result_type argument, you can control the shape and output type. As desired, the output can be either a DataFrame or a Series.





An Elegant Way To Perform Matrix Multiplication



Matrix multiplication is a common operation in machine learning. Yet, chaining repeated multiplications using **matmul** function makes the code cluttered and unreadable.

If you are using NumPy, you can instead use the @ operator to do the same.



Create Pandas DataFrame from Dataclass



A Pandas DataFrame is often created from a Python list, dictionary, by reading files, etc. However, did you know you can also create a DataFrame from a Dataclass?

The image demonstrates how you can create a DataFrame from a list of dataclass objects.



Hide Attributes While Printing A Dataclass Object



By default, a dataclass prints all the attributes of an object declared during its initialization.

But if you want to hide some specific attributes, declare **repr=False** in its field, as shown above.



List : Tuple :: Set : ?



Dictionaries in Python require their keys to be immutable. As a result, a set cannot be used as keys as it is mutable.

Yet, if you want to use a set, consider declaring it as a frozenset.

It is an immutable set, meaning its elements cannot be changed after it is created. Therefore, they can be safely used as a dictionary's key.



Difference Between Dot and Matmul in NumPy



The **np.matmul**() and **np.dot**() methods produce the same output for 2D (and 1D) arrays. This makes many believe that they are the same and can be used interchangeably, but that is not true.

The **np.dot**() method revolves around individual vectors (or 1D arrays). Thus, it computes the dot product of ALL vector pairs in the two inputs.

The **np.matmul**() method, as the name suggests, is meant for matrices. Thus, it computes the matrix multiplication of corresponding matrices in the two inputs.





Run SQL in Jupyter To Analyze A Pandas DataFrame



Pandas already provides a wide range of functionalities to analyze tabular data. Yet, there might be situations when one feels comfortable using SQL over Python.

Using DuckDB, you can analyze a Pandas DataFrame with SQL syntax in Jupyter, without any significant run-time difference.

Read the guide here to get started: $\underline{\text{Docs}}$.





Automated Code Refactoring With Sourcery



Refactoring codebase is an important yet time-consuming task. Moreover, at times, one might unknowingly introduce errors during refactoring.

This takes additional time for testing and gets tedious with more refactoring, especially when the codebase is big.

Rather than following this approach, use <u>SOURCERY</u>. It's an automated refactoring tool that makes your code elegant, concise, and Pythonic in no time.

With Sourcery, you can refactor code in many ways. For instance, you can refactor scripts through the command line, as an IDE plugin in VS Code and PyCharm, etc.

Read my full blog on Sourcery here: Medium.



____Post_init___: Add Attributes To A Dataclass Object Post Initialization

| | e dataclass.py |
|---------|---|
| from da | taclasses <mark>import</mark> dataclass |
| adatacl | ass |
| class S | tudentMarks: |
| stu | dent_id:str |
| mar | ks:float |
| def | post_init(self): |
| | if self.marks>30: |
| | <pre>self.grade = "Pass"</pre> |
| | else: |
| | <pre>self.grade = "Fail"</pre> |
| Peter = | StudentMarks("B20", 43) |
| print(P | eter.grade) # Pass |

After initializing a class object, we often create derived attributes from existing variables.

To do this in dataclasses, you can use the **__post_init__** method. As the name suggests, this method is invoked right after the **__init__** method.

This is useful if you need to perform additional setups on your dataclass instance.





Simplify Your Functions With Partial Functions



When your function takes many arguments, it can be a good idea to simplify it by using partial functions.

They let you create a new version of the function with some of the arguments fixed to specific values.

This can be useful for simplifying your code and making it more readable and concise. Moreover, it also helps you avoid repeating yourself while invoking functions.





When You Should Not Use the head() Method In Pandas



One often retrieves the top **k** rows of a sorted Pandas DataFrame by using **head**() method. However, there's a flaw in this approach.

If your data has repeated values, **head**() will not consider that and just return the first **k** rows.

If you want to consider repeated values, use **nlargest** (or **nsmallest**) instead. Here, you can specify the desired behavior for duplicate values using the **keep** parameter.



DotMap: A Better Alternative to Python Dictionary



Python dictionaries are great, but they have many limitations.

It is difficult to create dynamic hierarchical data. Also, they don't offer the widely adopted dot notation to access values.

Instead, use DotMap. It behaves like a Python dictionary but also addresses the above limitations.

What's more, it also has a built-in pretty print method to display it as a dict/JSON for debugging large objects.

Read more: GitHub.



Prevent Wild Imports With __all__ in Python



Wild imports (**from module import** *) are considered a bad programming practice. Yet, here's how you can prevent it if someone irresponsibly does that while using your code.

In your module, you can define the importable functions/classes/variables in __all__. As a result, whenever someone will do a wild import, Python will only import the symbols specified here.

This can be also useful to convey what symbols in your module are intended to be private.



Three Lesser-known Tips For Reading a CSV File Using Pandas



Here are three extremely useful yet lesser-known tips for reading a CSV file with Pandas:

1. If you want to read only the first few rows of the file, specify the **nrows** parameter.

- 2. To load a few specific columns, specify the **usecols** parameter.
- 3. If you want to skip some rows while reading, pass the **skiprows** parameter.



The Best File Format To Store A Pandas DataFrame

| df.to_csv("f | CSV.py ile.csv") |
|---------------------------|--|
| <pre>## Time: 335</pre> | <pre>@ • • Feather.py df.to_feather("file.feather")</pre> |
| (## Time: 7s (88% Faster) | <pre>## Time: 3.2 s (90% Faster) ickle.py "file.pickle")</pre> |
| Inkedin.com/in/avi-chawla | (92% Faster) |

In the image above, you can find the run-time comparison of storing a Pandas DataFrame in various file formats.

Although CSVs are a widely adopted format, it is the slowest format in this list.

Thus, CSVs should be avoided unless you want to open the data outside Python (in Excel, for instance).

Read more in my blog: Medium.



Debugging Made Easy With PySnooper



Rather than using many print statements to debug your python code, try PySnooper.

With just a single line of code, you can easily track the variables at each step of your code's execution.

Read more: **<u>Repository</u>**.



Lesser-Known Feature of the Merge Method in Pandas

| pd.merge(| name_df, rev on = "Cust_: how = "oute: indicator = | wards_d ID", r", True) | if, | Indicato |
|-----------|---|---------------------------------|----------------------------|--|
| - | | | | Colum |
| | ••• | | | Columi |
| | •••• | Name | Rewards | Column |
| | • • • Cust_ID 1 | Name Joe | Rewards NaN | _merge |
| | Cust_ID | Name Joe Mark | Rewards NaN 50 | _merge Left_only both |
| | Cust_ID 1 2 3 | Name Joe Mark Peter | Rewards NaN 50 20 | Column merge left_only both both |

While merging DataFrames in Pandas, keeping track of the source of each row in the output can be extremely useful.

You can do this using the **indicator** argument of the **merge**() method. As a result, it augments an additional column in the merged output, which tells the source of each row.



The Best Way to Use Apply() in Pandas



The image above shows a run-time comparison of popular open-source libraries that provide parallelization support for Pandas.

You can find the links to these libraries <u>here</u>. Also, if you know any other similar libraries built on top of Pandas, do post them in the comments or reply to this email.



Deep Learning Network Debugging Made Easy



Aligning the shape of tensors (or vectors/matrices) in a network can be challenging at times.

As the network grows, it is common to lose track of dimensionalities in a complex expression.

Instead of explicitly printing tensor shapes to debug, use **TensorSensor**. It generates an elegant visualization for each statement executed within its block. This makes dimensionality tracking effortless and quick.

In case of errors, it augments default error messages with more helpful details. This further speeds up the debugging process.

Read more: Documentation



Don't Print NumPy Arrays! Use Lovely-NumPy Instead.



We often print raw numpy arrays during debugging. But this approach is not very useful. This is because printing does not convey much information about the data it holds, especially when the array is large.

Instead, use **lovely-numpy**. Rather than viewing raw arrays, it prints a summary of the array. This includes its shape, distribution, mean, standard deviation, etc.

It also shows if the numpy array has NaNs and Inf values, whether it is filled with zeros, and many more.

P.S. If you work with tensors, then you can use **lovely-tensors**.

Read more: **Documentation**.



Performance Comparison of Python 3.11 and Python 3.10



Python 3.11 was released recently, and as per the official release, it is expected to be 10-60% faster than Python 3.10.

I ran a few basic benchmarking experiments to verify the performance boost. Indeed, Python 3.11 is much faster.

Although one might be tempted to upgrade asap, there are a few things you should know. Read more <u>here</u>.


View Documentation in Jupyter Notebook

| In [1]) | i import pandam an pd | |
|---------|---|-------|
| In []) | executed in 1.28s, fronted 15.24.00.2022-12.00 | |
| In []) | Init signature: | 1 |
| | pd.Dataframe! data-None, index: 'Awes Nume' = None, columns: 'Awes None' = None, dtype: 'Dtype None' = None, copy: 'bool None' = None, | |
| | Decetring: | |

While working in Jupyter, it is common to forget the parameters of a function and visit the official docs (or Stackoverflow). However, you can view the documentation in the notebook itself.

Pressing **Shift-Tab** opens the documentation panel. This is extremely useful and saves time as one does not have to open the official docs every single time.

This feature also works for your custom functions.

View a video version of this post on LinkedIn: Post Link.





A No-code Tool To Understand Your Data Quickly



The preliminary steps of any typical EDA task are often the same. Yet, across projects, we tend to write the same code to carry out these tasks. This gets repetitive and time-consuming.

Instead, use **pandas-profiling**. It automatically generates a standardized report for data understanding in no time. Its intuitive UI makes this effortless and quick.

The report includes the dimension of the data, missing value stats, and column data types. What's more, it also shows the data distribution, the interaction and correlation between variables, etc.

Lastly, the report also includes alerts, which can be extremely useful during analysis/modeling.

Read more: **Documentation**.



Why 256 is 256 But 257 is not 257?

| >>> a = | 256 | |
|-----------------|--------------|--|
| >>> 0 = | 290 | |
| >>> a i True | s b | |
| | | |
| >>> a = | 257 | |
| >>> b = | 257 | |
| ≫ a i | s b | |
| False | | |
| | | |
| >>> а, | 0 = 257, 257 | |
| »» a i | s b | |
| True | | |

Comparing python objects can be tricky at times. Can you figure out what is going on in the above code example? Answer below:

When we run Python, it pre-loads a global list of integers in the range [-5, 256]. Every time an integer is referenced in this range, Python does not create a new object. Instead, it uses the cached version.

This is done for optimization purposes. It was considered that these numbers are used a lot by programmers. Therefore, it would make sense to have them ready at startup.



However, referencing any integer beyond 256 (or before -5) will create a new object every time.

In the last example, when a and b are set to 257 in the same line, the Python interpreter creates a new object. Then it references the second variable with the same object.

Share this post on LinkedIn: **Post Link**.

The below image should give you a better understanding:





Make a Class Object Behave Like a Function



If you want to make a class object callable, i.e., behave like a function, you can do so by defining the **__call__** method.

This method allows you to define the behavior of the object when it is invoked like a function.



This can have many advantages. For instance, it allows us to implement objects that can be used in a flexible and intuitive way. What's more, the familiar function-call syntax, at times, can make your code more readable.

Lastly, it allows you to use a class object in contexts where a callable is expected. Using a class as a decorator, for instance.



Lesser-known feature of Pickle Files

| import nick | dump.py | |
|--------------------------------------|---|---------------------|
| <pre>a, b, c = 1, with open("c</pre> | 2, 3 ata.pkl", "wb") as f: | |
| pickle.d pickle.d pickle.d | lump(a, f) lump(b, f) lump(c, f) | Store 3 Variable |
| | import nickle | |
| oad Only First 2 | <pre>with open("data.pkl", "</pre> | rb") as f: |
| | <pre>print(f"{a = } {b = }") ## a = 1 b = 2</pre> | |

Pickles are widely used to dump data objects to disk. But folks often dump just a single object into a pickle file. Moreover, one creates multiple pickles to store multiple objects.

However, did you know that you can store as many objects as you want within a single pickle file? What's more, when reloading, it is not necessary to load all the objects.

Just make sure to dump the objects within the same context manager (using **with**).

Of course, one solution is to store the objects together as a tuple. But while reloading, the entire tuple will be loaded. This may not be desired in some cases.



avichawla.substack.com



Dot Plot: A Potential Alternative to Bar Plot



Bar plots are extremely useful for visualizing categorical variables against a continuous value. But when you have many categories to depict, they can get too dense to interpret.

In a bar plot with many bars, we're often not paying attention to the individual bar lengths. Instead, we mostly consider the individual endpoints that denote the total value.

A Dot plot can be a better choice in such cases. They are like scatter plots but with one categorical and one continuous axis.

Compared to a bar plot, they are less cluttered and offer better comprehension. This is especially true in cases where we have many categories and/or multiple categorical columns to depict in a plot.

Read more: **Documentation**.





Why Correlation (and Other Statistics) Can Be Misleading.



Correlation is often used to determine the association between two continuous variables. But it has a major flaw that often gets unnoticed.

Folks often draw conclusions using a correlation matrix without even looking at the data. However, the obtained statistics could be heavily driven by outliers or other artifacts.

This is demonstrated in the plots above. The addition of just two outliers changed the correlation and the regression line drastically.

Thus, looking at the data and understanding its underlying characteristics can save from drawing wrong conclusions. Statistics are important, but they can be highly misleading at times.





Supercharge value_counts() Method in Pandas With Sidetable

| | | | | vai | ue_counts() |
|---------------------------------|--|---|--|---|--|
| imp) | ort sidetable stb.freq(["Ci sty) | able.p ty"], e=Tru | City West Ja Aliciaf New Cin Ricardo Whitesi Kristab Wardfor New Rus Whitake North M | mesview 120 ort 111 dychester 100 mouth 100 de 100 urgh 97 t 90 sellton 91 rbury 85 lelissafurt 70 | |
| 5 | City | count | percent | cumulative_count | cumulative_percent |
| 0 | West Jamesview | 120 | 12.00% | 120 | 12.00% |
| 1 | Aliciafort | 113 | 11.30% | 233 | 23.309 |
| | | | | | |
| 2 | Ricardomouth | 106 | 10.60% | 339 | 33.909 |
| 2 | Ricardomouth New Cindychester | 106 106 | 10.60% 10.60% | 339 445 | 33.90% 44.50% |
| 2 3 4 | Ricardomouth New Cindychester Whiteside | 106 106 104 | 10.60% 10.60% 10.40% | 339 445 549 | 33.909 44.509 54.909 |
| 2 3 4 5 | Ricardomouth New Cindychester Whiteside Kristaburgh | 106 106 104 97 | 10.60% 10.60% 10.40% 9.70% | 339 445 549 646 | 33.909 44.509 54.909 64.609 |
| 2 3 4 5 6 | Ricardomouth New Cindychester Whiteside Kristaburgh Wardfort | 106 106 104 97 96 | 10.60% 10.60% 10.40% 9.70% 9.60% | 339 445 549 646 742 | 33.909 44.509 54.909 64.609 74.209 |
| 2 3 4 5 6 7 | Ricardomouth New Cindychester Whiteside Kristaburgh Wardfort New Russellton | 106 106 104 97 96 93 | 10.60% 10.60% 10.40% .9.70% 9.60% 9.30% | 339 445 549 646 742 835 | 33.90% 44.50% 54.90% 64.60% 74.20% 83.50% |
| 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 | Ricardomouth New Cindychester Whiteside Kristaburgh Wardfort New Russellton Whitakerbury | 106 106 104 97 96 93 87 | 10.60% 10.60% 9.70% 9.60% 9.30% 8.70% | 339 445 549 646 742 835 922 | 33.90% 44.50% 54.90% 64.60% 74.20% 83.50% 92.20% |

The **value_counts**() method is commonly used to analyze categorical columns, but it has many limitations.

For instance, if one wants to view the percentage, cumulative count, etc., in one place, things do get a bit tedious. This requires more code and is time-consuming.

Instead, use **sidetable**. Consider it as a supercharged version of **value_counts**(). As shown below, the **freq**() method from sidetable provides a more useful summary than **value_counts**().

Additionally, sidetable can aggregate multiple columns too. You can also provide threshold points to merge data into a single bucket. What's more, it can print missing data stats, pretty print values, etc.

Read more: <u>GitHub</u>.



Write Your Own Flavor Of Pandas

| import pai import pai | ndas <mark>as</mark> po ndas_flavo | 1. Decorate your method |
|--|--|--|
| <pre>@pf.regis def add_r df.lo</pre> | ter_datafr ow(df, row c[len(df)] | rame_method v): = row |
| 2. Import m | nodule | 🔍 🔍 🧶 project.py |
| Planets | Position | df Planets Position |
| Planets Mercury | Position 1 | import my_pandas df Planets Position 0 Mercury 1 1 Venus 2 |
| Planets Mercury Venus | Position 1 2 | <pre>import my_pandas df Planets Position 0 Mercury 1 1 Venus 2 new_row = ["Earth", 3]</pre> |
| Planets Mercury Venus Earth | Position 1 2 3 | <pre>import my_pandas df Planets Position Mercury 1 Venus 2 new_row = ["Earth", 3] df.add_row(new_row)</pre> |

If you want to attach a custom functionality to a Pandas DataFrame (or series) object, use "pandas-flavor".

Its decorators allow you to add methods directly to the Pandas' object.

This is especially useful if you are building an open-source project involving Pandas. After installing your library, others can access your library's methods using the dataframe object.

P.S. This is how we see **df.progress_apply**() from **tqdm**, **df.parallel_apply**() from **Pandarallel**, and many more.

Read more: **Documentation**.



CodeSquire: The AI Coding Assistant You Should Use Over GitHub Copilot



Coding Assistants like GitHub Copilot are revolutionary as they offer many advantages. Yet, Copilot has limited utility for data professionals. This is because it's incompatible with web-based IDEs (Jupyter/Colab).

Moreover, in data science, the subsequent exploratory steps are determined by previous outputs. But Copilot does not consider that (and even markdown cells) to drive its code suggestions.

<u>CodeSquire</u> is an incredible AI coding assistant that addresses the limitations of Copilot. The good thing is that it has been designed specifically for data scientists, engineers, and analysts.

Besides seamless code generation, it can generate SQL queries from text and explain code. You can leverage AI-driven code generation by simply installing a browser extension.

Read more: CodeSquire.

Watch a video version of this post on LinkedIn: **Post Link**.



Vectorization Does Not Always Guarantee Better Performance

| | | df | Name |
|--------------|---|--|-----------------|
| | Vectorized.py | 0 | Beth Alvarez |
| | | 1.1 | Deborah Watkins |
| df.Name.str. | split() | 2 | Jeffrey Compton |
| ## 1.75 | | 3 | Alan Wolfe |
| | | 4 | Kathryn Gordon |
| 6 | 🔍 💿 🛛 🧔 Non- | -vectorized.j | ру |
| | def name_split(s return s.spl | -vectorized. s): Lit() | ру |
| | Non- def name_split(s return s.spl df.Name.apply(na ## 862 ms | -vectorized. s): Lit() ame_split) | py |

Vectorization is well-adopted for improving run-time performance. In a nutshell, it lets you operate data in batches instead of processing a single value at a time.

Although vectorization is extremely effective, you should know that it does not always guarantee performance gains. Moreover, vectorization is also associated with memory overheads.

As demonstrated above, the non-vectorized code provides better performance than the vectorized version.

P.S. **apply**() is also a for-loop.

Further reading: <u>Here</u>.





In Defense of Match-case Statements in Python

| | if-else rw | | | |
|-------------------------------|---|--|--|---|
| | | | | |
| def make_ | point(point): | | | |
| iff is | instance(point | , (tuple, list) | 01 < | — Check type |
| | f len(point) - | - 21 | < | - Check lengt |
| | x, y = poin | | | |
| | return Poin | t3D(x, y, e) | | |
| e | lif Len(point) | = 3: | | Explicit |
| | $\mathbf{x}_{1} \mathbf{y}_{2} \mathbf{z} = \mathbf{p}$ | oint | < | - |
| | return Poin | t3D(x, y, z) | | unpacking |
| | tse: | | | |
| | raise TypeE | rror("Unsupport | ed*) | |
| else: | | | | |
| ÷, | aise TypeError | ("Unsupported") | | |
| | | ee e e m | atch-case.p | y . |
| No type | checks | def make_point match poir case re case | alch-case.p t(point): tt: (x, y): storn Poir (x, y, z): | Υ =t3D(x, y, θ) |
| No type No leng | checks th checks | <pre>def make_point match poir case re case re re</pre> | alch-case.p t(point): tt: (x, y): sturn Poir (x, y, z): sturn Poir | y 1t3D(x, y, 0) 1t3D(x, y, z) |
| No type No leng No unpa | checks th checks acking | <pre>def make_point match poir case ca</pre> | alch-case.p t(point): tt: (x, y): sturn Poin (x, y, z): sturn Poin .: fff Defa iise Typef | y ht3D(x, y, 0) ht3D(x, y, z) hult tror("Unsupported") |
| No type No leng No unpa | checks th checks acking | <pre></pre> | alch-case.p t(point): nt: (x, y): sturn Poin (x, y, z): sturn Poin .: mm Defa sise TypeE t((1, 2)) y=2, z=0) | y nt3D(x, y, 0) nt3D(x, y, z) nult rror("Unsupported") |
| No type No leng No unpa | checks th checks acking | <pre></pre> | alch-case.p t(point): it: (x, y): eturn Poin (x, y, z): eturn Poin : fff Defa iise TypeE t((1, 2)) y=2, z=0) t([1, 2, 3 | y it3D(x, y, 0) it3D(x, y, z) iult irror("Unsupported") |
| No type No leng No unpa | checks th checks acking | <pre></pre> | alch-case.p t(point): it: (x, y): turn Poin (x, y, z): turn Poin .: ## Defa ise TypeE t((1, 2)) y=2, z=0) t([1, 2, 3 y=2, z=0) | y nt3D(x, y, 0) nt3D(x, y, z) nult iror("Unsupported") |



I recently came across a post on **match-case** in Python. In a gist, starting Python 3.10, you can use **match-case** statements to mimic the behavior of **if-else**.

Many responses on that post suggested that **if-else** offers higher elegance and readability. Here's an example in defense of **match-case**.

While if-else is traditionally accepted, it also comes with many downsides. For instance, many-a-times, one has to write complex chains of nested if-else statements. This includes multiple calls to **len**(), **isinstance**() methods, etc.

Furthermore, with **if-else**, one has to explicitly destructure the data to extract values. This makes your code inelegant and messy.

Match-case, on the other hand, offers Structural Pattern Matching which makes this simple and concise. In the example above, match-case automatically handles type-matching, length check, and variable unpacking.

Read more here: **Python Docs**.



Enrich Your Notebook With Interactive Controls



While using Jupyter, we often re-run the same cell repeatedly after changing the input slightly. This is time-consuming and also makes your data exploration tasks tedious and unorganized.



Instead, pivot towards building interactive controls in your notebook. This allows you to alter the inputs without needing to rewrite and re-run your code.

In Jupyter, you can do this using the **IPywidgets** module. Embedding interactive controls is as simple as using a decorator.

As a result, it provides you with interactive controls such as dropdowns and sliders. This saves you from tons of repetitive coding and makes your notebook organized.

Watch a video version of this post on LinkedIn: **Post Link**.



Get Notified When Jupyter Cell Has Executed



After running some code in a Jupyter cell, we often navigate away to do some other work in the meantime.

Here, one has to repeatedly get back to the Jupyter tab to check whether the cell has been executed or not.

To avoid this, you can use the %%**notify** magic command from the **jupyternotify** extension. As the name suggests, it notifies the user upon completion (both successful and unsuccessful) of a jupyter cell via a browser notification. Clicking on the notification takes you back to the jupyter tab.

Read more: GitHub.



Data Analysis Using No-Code Pandas In Jupyter

| In (1)) | 1.40 | perit stitusbeen realment allessi (an 175, femmer 14.4636 70 | alysia_se_pepta | a. 19 fattages | -14 | | | |
|---------|---------|--|--|--------------------|-----------------|------------------|----------------|-----------------|
| | 640 104 | alianas Columna B | text Graphe York | at Your Inda | | | 1 Million | Contractor and |
| | 2 | 6 5 2 | A H B | | | | | E / |
| | Employ | res, CTU Employe | e_CRy | | | | | |
| | | Nata V | Despenden V | Internation In the | Desireman har V | Department, 20 V | Brannym, Raf V | |
| | | Orestation Artes | Multimere Inc. | Alutation | \$187.04 | full line | 100 | |
| | 16. | amound rid | theirs, effect and line | Annahart | 4,818.71 | full Tone | 1.00 | |
| | . 44 | Case Dates | Wron, Monham and D | Amaginet | 0.076.00 | ful line | 430 | |
| | -19 | Donald Streetan | Dayt No. | Allulaturi | 6,210,43 | full tes | 1.30 | |
| | 48 | RolleLin | Mathews Inc | Allabel | 4,413,07 | billett. | 0.90 | |
| | 10 | David Miles | Johnston, Tierring at | Alkadert | 8,917.00 | anam . | 5.90 | |
| | - 15 | Vieness Lamp | Taster-Ramos | Absenut | 6,011.34 | Aut Time | 2,70 | |
| | 10 | Daughot Nervenils | Andreile LLC | Aluahrt | 2,815,62 | Full Trine | 6.80 | |
| | - 94 | Jeffres Gorgales | Taylor Berna | Abstahrst | 19,401,81 | Tall Time | 4.60 | |
| | 30 | Entity Minker | Wathing inc | Rinsburgt. | 1,676.38 | anen. | 1.00 | |
| | 48 | Jackey Hines | James and Same | Bristalaugh | 1,788,34 | Full Tone | 242 | |
| | - 16 | Sine Accelo | Hubble James | And shared | 7,239,94 | Fail Time | 1.10 | |
| | -11 | Jacob Ropes | Matthews Int. | Allowing . | 4,763.54 | Fall Tens | 2.80 | |
| | 10 | James Weight | (Relation 4.1 | Riskaburge | 3,961.27 | men . | 1.80 | |
| | 100 | CONTRACTOR OF THE OWNER OWNER OF THE OWNER OWNER OF THE OWNER OF THE OWNER OWN | and the local diversion of the local diversio | | | | | 1990 mark doing |

The Pandas API provides a wide range of functionalities to analyze tabular datasets.

Yet, across projects, we often use the same methods over and over to analyze our data. This quickly gets repetitive and time-consuming.

To avoid this, use Mito. It's an incredible tool that allows you to analyze your data within a spreadsheet interface in Jupyter, without writing any code.

The coolest thing about Mito is that each edit in the spreadsheet automatically generates an equivalent Python code. This makes it extremely convenient to reproduce the analysis later.

Read more: **Documentation**.



Using Dictionaries In Place of If-conditions

| 1 🧐 🔹 🔍 | _else.py |
|--------------------------|----------------------------------|
| number = int(| input()) |
| if number = func1() | 1: |
| elif number = func2() | - 2: |
| else: func3() | |
| | 🔍 💿 🔿 dict.py |
| | <pre>number = int(input())</pre> |
| eplace with | <pre>func_map = {1:func1,</pre> |
| dictionary | func_map.get(number, func3)() |
| n linkedin com/ir | Vavi-chawla Default |

Dictionaries are mainly used as a data structure in Python for maintaining key-value pairs.

However, there's another special use case that dictionaries can handle. This is — Eliminating IF conditions from your code.

Consider the code snippet above. Here, corresponding to an input value, we invoke a specific function. The traditional way requires you to hard-code every case.

But with a dictionary, you can directly retrieve the corresponding function by providing it with the key. This makes your code concise and elegant.



avichawla.substack.com



Clear Cell Output In Jupyter Notebook During Run-time

| import | time | 3 |
|----------------|--|--|
| from 1 | Pytho | on.display import clear_output |
| for i | in ra | ange(100): |
| ## | t Wait | for the next |
| 222 | t out | out before clearing |
| | | |
| el pi ti | int(1 | output(wait=True) "Output Number {i+1}') .eep(1) |
| el pr ti | lear_d cint(1 ime.sl | output(wait=True) "Output Number {i+1}") .eep(1) |
| cl pi ti | tear_c cint(f .me.sl | <pre>butput(wait=True) 'Output Number {i+1}') .eep(1) for i in range(100):</pre> |
| cl pr ti | <pre>lear_d int(1 ime.s)</pre> | <pre>butput(wait=True) 'Output Number {i+1}') .eep(1) for i in range(100): ## Wait for the next</pre> |
| cl pr ti | tear_c rint(1 ime.s) * 1 2 3 4 | <pre>butput(wait=True) F'Output Number {i+1}') .eep(1) for i in range(100): ## Wait for the next ## output before clearing</pre> |
| cl pr ti | tear_c (int() .me.s7 | <pre>butput(wait=True) 'Output Number {i+1}') .eep(1) for i in range(100): ## Wait for the next ## output before clearing clear_output(wait=True)</pre> |
| cl pi ti | tear_c cint(1 tme.s7 * 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 | <pre>butput(wait=True) F'Output Number {i+1}') .eep(1) for i in range(100): ## Wait for the next ## output before clearing clear_output(wait=True) print(f'Output Number (i+1)')</pre> |
| cl p) ti | tear_c cint(me.sl * 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 | <pre>butput(wait=True) F'Output Number {i+1}') .eep(1) for i in range(100): ## Wait for the next ## output before clearing clear_output(wait=True) print(f'Output Number {i+1}') time.sleep(1)</pre> |

While using Jupyter, we often print many details to track the code's progress.

However, it gets frustrating when the output panel has accumulated a bunch of details, but we are only interested in the most recent output. Moreover, scrolling to the bottom of the output each time can be annoying too.

To clear the output of the cell, you can use the **clear_output** method from the **IPython** package. When invoked, it will remove the current output of the cell, after which you can print the latest details.



A Hidden Feature of Describe Method In Pandas

| | | | | Colu | | _ | ¥., | | 4 |
|-------|----------------|--------|----------|-----------------|-------------------------------|---|--|--|-------------------|
| | | | | | ¥ | | colt | col2 | 2 |
| | • | | | | | count | 3.0 | 3.0 | , |
| | | | | | | mean | 3.0 | 4.0 | , |
| 200 | df | | | 63 A. | | std | 2.0 | 2.0 | , |
| G | 1 | 2 | A A | D | | min | 1.0 | 20 | |
| 1 | -3 | 4 | B | E | | 26% | 20 | 30 | |
| z | 5 | 6 | A | E | | 6010 | | | |
| - | df de | entite | 86 | | | 20% | 3.0 | 4.9 | ` |
| | ur ue | SCILDE | 94. - | | | 75% | 4.0 | 5.0 |) |
| - | | | | | | max | 5.0 | 6.0 |) |
| | | | | | | - | _ | _ | 1 |
| | | | | | 2 | col1 | col2 | col3 | 0 |
| | | | | All Column | 0 | col1 ant 3.0 | col2 3.0 | col3 3 | 0 |
| | | | | / All Column | CO Unix | col1 ant 3.0 jue NoN | ool2 3.0 NaN | col3 3 2 | 0 |
| | | | | All Column | CO Unit | col1 ant 3.0 pue NaN | col2 3.0 NaN NaN | col3 3 2 A | • |
| | | | | Alt Column | | colf ant 3.0 jue NaN lop NaN req NaN | ool2 3.0 NaN NaN NaN | col3 3 2 A 2 | |
| | | | | Alt Column | 00 | col1 ant 3.0 pue NaN lop NaN reg NaN sen 3.0 | col2 3.0 NaN NaN A.0 | col3 3 2 A 2 NaN | N |
| | | | | All Column | | col1 ant 3.0 pue NaN top NaN reg NaN san 3.0 std 2.0 | ool2 3.0 NaN NaN NaN 4.0 2.0 | cot3 3 2 A 2 NaN NaN | e N N |
| |) If.desc | ribe() | inclu | Alt Column | | colf ant 3.0 gue NaN top NaN reg NaN reg NaN atd 2.0 min 1.0 | 0012 3.0 NaN NaN 4.0 2.0 2.0 | col3 3 2 A 2 NaN NaN NaN | N N N |
| . • • |) If.desc | ribe(i | inclu | All Column | | colf ant 3.0 pue NaN lop NaN req NaN and 2.0 ald 2.0 nin 1.0 5% 2.0 | 0012 3.0 NaN NaN 4.0 2.0 2.0 3.0 | col3 3 2 A 2 NaN NaN NaN NaN | ex N N N |
| • • • |) If . desc | ribe() | inclu | All Column | | colf ant 3.0 pue NaN lop NaN req NaN req NaN sitd 2.0 nin 1.0 5% 2.0 2% 3.0 | 0012 3.0 NaN NaN 4.0 2.0 2.0 3.0 4.0 | col3 3 2 A 2 NaN NaN NaN NaN | N N N N N |
| |) If.desc | ribe() | inclu | Alt Column | 00 URA 1 2 5 7 | ool1 ant 3.0 gue NaN top NaN reg NaN sen 3.0 atd 2.0 min 1.0 5% 2.0 5% 3.0 5% 4.0 | 0012 3.0 NaN NaN 4.0 2.0 3.0 4.0 5.0 | col3 3 2 A 2 NaN NaN NaN NaN NaN NaN | N N N N N N |

The **describe**() method in Pandas is commonly used to print descriptive statistics about the data.

But have you ever noticed that its output is always limited to numerical columns? Of course, details like mean, median, std. dev., etc. hold no meaning for non-numeric columns, so the results make total sense.

However, **describe**() can also provide a quick summary of non-numeric columns. You can do this by specifying **include=**"**all**." As a result, it will return the number of unique elements, the top element with its frequency.

Read more: **Documentation**.

Use Slotted Class To Improve Your Python Code



avichawla.substack.com



If you want to fix the attributes a class can hold, consider defining it as a slotted class.

While defining classes, **___slots**__ allows you to explicitly specify the class attributes. This means you cannot randomly add new attributes to a slotted class object. This offers many advantages.

For instance, slotted classes are memory efficient and they provide faster access to class attributes. What's more, it also helps you avoid common typos. This, at times, can be a costly mistake that can go unnoticed.

Read more: StackOverflow.

Stop Analysing Raw Tables. Use Styling Instead!

avichawla.substack.com



| | subset= | 'Count') | cma sub | p='Blue set='Co | s', unt') |
|---|---------|----------|------------|--------------------|---|
| c | urrency | Count | - | urrency | Count |
| 0 | AED | 1132 | 0 | AED | 1132 |
| 1 | USD | 315 | 1 | USD | 315 |
| 2 | INR | 700 | 2 | INR | 700 |
| 3 | EUR | 522 | 3 | EUR | 522 |
| 4 | SGD | 261 | 4 | SGD | 261 |
| 5 | GBP | 719 | 5 | GBP | 719 |
| 6 | ARS | 97 | 6 | ARS | 97 |
| 7 | AUD | 604 | 7 | AUD | 604 |
| 8 | NZD | 411 | 8 | NZD | 411 |
| 9 | AZN | 516 | 9 | AZN | 516 |
| | - | 710 | | | The supervised in the local division of the |

Jupyter is a web-based IDE. Thus, whenever you print/display a DataFrame in Jupyter, it is rendered using HTML and CSS.

This means you can style your output in many different ways.

To do so, use the Styling API of Pandas. Here, you can make many different modifications to a DataFrame's styler object (**df.style**). As a result, the DataFrame will be displayed with the specified styling.

Styling makes these tables visually appealing. Moreover, it allows for better comprehensibility of data than viewing raw tables.

Read more here: **Documentation**.



Explore CSV Data Right From The Terminal

| | | Jata.cs | / |
|--|--------------|-------------|-----------|
| | Name | Marks | Grade |
| Excel to CSV | Joe | 95 | A |
| | Hanna | 89 | В |
| infest data sist a data est | Chris | 92 | A |
| | Julie | 94 | A |
| | ••• | Column Stat | 5 |
| | \$ csvstat d | ata.csv | |
| Column Names | 2, "Marks | | |
| | Type of d | ata: | Number |
| | Contains | null valu | es: False |
| S csvcut -n data.csv | Unique va | lues: | 4 |
| 1: Name | Smallest | value: | 89 |
| 2: Marks | Largest v | alue: | 95 |
| 3: Grade | Sum: | | 370 |
| | Mean: | | 92.5 |
| | Median: | | 93 |
| the second s | StDev: | | 2.646 |
| | | | |
| Query S csvsqlquery "select + from Name Marks Grade | data where (| 1arks>90* | data.csv |
| Query S csvsqlquery "select * from Name Marks Grade Joe 95 A Chris 92 A | data where (| 1arks>90° | data.csv |

If you want to quickly explore some CSV data, you may not always need to run a Jupyter session.

Rather, with "**csvkit**", you can do it from the terminal itself. As the name suggests, it provides a bunch of command-line tools to facilitate data analysis tasks.

These include converting Excel to CSV, viewing column names, data statistics, and querying using SQL. Moreover, you can also perform popular Pandas functions such as sorting, merging, and slicing.

Read more: **Documentation**.



Generate Your Own Fake Data In Seconds



Usually, for executing/testing a pipeline, we need to provide it with some dummy data.

Although using Python's "**random**" library, one can generate random strings, floats, and integers. Yet, being random, it does not output any meaningful data such as people's names, city names, emails, etc.

Here, looking for open-source datasets can get time-consuming. Moreover, it's possible that the dataset you find does not fit pretty well into your requirements.

The **Faker** module in Python is a perfect solution to this. Faker allows you to generate highly customized fake (yet meaningful) data quickly. What's more, you can also generate data specific to a demographic.

Read more here: **Documentation**.



Import Your Python Package as a Module



A python module is a single python file (.**py**). An organized collection of such python files is called a python package.

While developing large projects, it is a good practice to define an __init__.py file inside a package.

Consider train.py has a Training class and test.py has a Testing class.

Without __init__.py, one has to explicitly import them from specific python files. As a result, it is redundant to write the two import statements.

With __init__.py, you can group python files into a single importable module. In other words, it provides a mechanism to treat the whole package as a python module.

This saves you from writing redundant import statements and makes your code cleaner in the calling script.

Read more in this blog: Blog Link.



Specify Loops and Runs In %%timeit



We commonly use the %**timeit** (or %%**timeit**) magic command to measure the execution time of our code.

Here, **timeit** limits the number of runs depending on how long the script takes to execute. This is why you get to see a different number of loops (and runs) across different pieces of code.

However, if you want to explicitly define the number of loops and runs, use the -**n** and -**r** options. Use -**n** to specify the loops and -**r** for the number the runs.



Waterfall Charts: A Better Alternative to Line/Bar Plot



If you want to visualize a value over some period, a line (or bar) plot may not always be an apt choice.

A line-plot (or bar-plot) depicts the actual values in the chart. Thus, sometimes, it can get difficult to visually estimate the scale of incremental changes.

Instead, you can use a waterfall chart, which elegantly depicts these rolling differences.

To create one, you can use **waterfall_chart** in Python. Here, the start and final values are represented by the first and last bars. Also, the marginal changes are automatically color-coded, making them easier to interpret.

Read more here: GitHub.



Hexbin Plots As A Richer Alternative to Scatter Plots



Scatter plots are extremely useful for visualizing two sets of numerical variables. But when you have, say, thousands of data points, scatter plots can get too dense to interpret.

Hexbins can be a good choice in such cases. As the name suggests, they bin the area of a chart into hexagonal regions. Each region is assigned a color intensity based on the method of aggregation used (the number of points, for instance).

Hexbins are especially useful for understanding the spread of data. It is often considered an elegant alternative to a scatter plot. Moreover, binning makes it easier to identify data clusters and depict patterns.



Importing Modules Made Easy with Pyforest



The typical programming-related stuff in data science begins by importing relevant modules.

However, across notebooks/projects, the modules one imports are mostly the same. Thus, the task of importing all the individual libraries is kinda repetitive.

With **pyforest**, you can use the common Python libraries without explicitly importing them. A good thing is that it imports all the libraries with their standard conventions. For instance, **pandas** is imported with the **pd** alias.



With that, you should also note that it is a good practice to keep Pyforest limited to prototyping stages. This is because once you say, develop and open-source your pipeline, other users may face some difficulties understanding it.

But if you are up for some casual experimentation, why not use it instead of manually writing all the imports?

Read more: GitHub.



Analyse Flow Data With Sankey Diagrams

| from ipysank | eywidget impor | t SankeyWidget | |
|------------------------------------|----------------|-------------------|---------------------------|
| 44 | | | |
| UT SOUTCO | target | Value | |
| New Delhi | Washington | 4 | |
| 1 Melbourne | Washington | 4 | |
| 2 London | New York | | |
| 3 Dubai | Los Angeles | 5 | |
| 4 Dubai | Washington | 1. | |
| 5 London | Washington | 2 | |
| 6 Melbourne | Los Angeles | 1 | |
| SankeyWidget Dubal | (links - df.to | _dict("records")) | Los Angeles |
| SankeyWidget Dubal | (links - df.to | _dict("records")) | Los Angeles |
| SankeyWidget Dubal | (links - df.to | _dict("records")) | Los Angeles |
| SankeyWidget Dubal | (links - df.td | _dict("records")) | Los Angeles |
| SankeyWidget Dubai | (links - df.td | _dict("records")) | Los Angeles Washington |
| SankeyWidget Dubai Melbourne | (links - df.td | _dict("records")) | Los Angeles Washington |
| SankeyWidget Dubai Melbourne | (links - df.td | _dict("records")) | Los Angeles Washington |

Many tabular data analysis tasks can be interpreted as a flow between the source and a target.

Here, manually analyzing tabular reports/data to draw insights is typically not the right approach.

Instead, Flow diagrams serve as a great alternative in such cases.



Being visually appealing, they immensely assist you in drawing crucial insights from your data, which you may find challenging to infer by looking at the data manually.

For instance, from the diagram above, one can quickly infer that:

- 1. Washington hosts flights from all origins.
- 2. New York only receives passengers from London.
- 3. Majority of flights in Los Angeles come from Dubai.
- 4. All flights from New Delhi go to Washington.

Now imagine doing that by just looking at the tabular data. Not only will it be time-consuming, but there are chances that you may miss out on a few insights.

To generate a flow diagram, you can use floWeaver. It helps you to visualize flow data using Sankey diagrams.

Read more here: **Documentation**.


Feature Tracking Made Simple In Sklearn Transformers

| imp | ort i | Polynomia | lFeature | ng s | | | | | |
|-----------------------------------|---|---|--|------------------------------------|---|-------------------------------------|-----------------------------|-----------------------------------|----------------------------|
| df | | | | | | | | | |
| <u> </u> | ol_A | col_B | arrau | | 1 | 1 | 2 | 1 2 | 4.1 |
| Θ | 1 | 2 | array | i i | 1., | 3., | 4., | 9., 12., | 16.1, |
| 1 | 3 | 4 | | i | 1., | 5., | 6., 2 | 5., 30., | 36.]] |
| 2 | 5 | 6 | 30 | _ | _ | _ | | | |
| Pol | lynom • | ialFeaturo 🥏 pano Learn impo | es().fit. das_outpu | _tra ut.py | ansfo Y | rrm (d | n | | |
| Pol | Lynom | ialFeatur pano learn impo fig(trans | es().fit das_outpu ort_set_u form_out) | _tra ut.py cont | ansfo Y fig (= "p | rm(d | f) s") | | |
| Pol | Lynom Co Sm sk' L_con | ialFeatur pan learn impo fig(trans | es().fit das_outpu ort_set_u form_out; | _tra ut.py conf out | y fig coLA | eol B | f) 5") col_A^2 | col Acol B | col B^ |
| Pol | Lynom Ski L_con col_A | ialFeatur pan learn imp fig(trans col_B | es().fit das_outpo ort_set_c form_outpoint o | _tra ut.p: cont 1 | y fig col_A 1.0 | anda col_8 | F) 5") col_A^2 | col Acol B 20 | col B ^A |
| Pol frc set df 0 | Lynom Sk ¹ Con Col_A 1 | ialFeatur pan learn imp fig(trans col_B 2 | es().fit das_outpu ort set_ form_out | _tra ut.py conf 1 1.0 | y fig col_A 1.0 3.0 | anda col_8 2.0 4.0 | F) col_A^2 1.0 9.0 | col Acol B 20 12.0 | col_B^ 4. |
| Pol fro set df 0 1 | Lynom Sm sk C_CON COL_A 1 3 | ialFeatur pan learn imp fig(trans col_B 2 4 | das_outpu ort_set_u form_outy 1 | _tra ut.p: cont 10 1.0 | insfo (fig col_A 1.0 3.0 5.0 | anda: col.8 2.0 4.0 6.0 | F) col_A^2 1.0 9.0 | col Acol B 2.0 12.0 30.0 | col_B^ 4. 16. 36. |

Recently, **<u>scikit-learn</u>** announced the release of one of the most awaited improvements. In a gist, sklearn can now be configured to output Pandas DataFrames.

Until now, Sklearn's transformers were configured to accept a Pandas DataFrame as input. But they always returned a NumPy array as an output. As a result, the output had to be manually projected back to a Pandas DataFrame. This, at times, made it difficult to track and assign names to the features.



For instance, consider the snippet above.

In **numpy_output.py**, it is tricky to infer the name (or computation) of a column by looking at the NumPy array.

However, in the upcoming release, the transformer can return a Pandas DataFrame (**pandas_output.py**). This makes tracking feature names incredibly simple.

Read more: <u>Release page</u>.



Lesser-known Feature of f-strings in Python

| Count = 2 Fruit = "Apple" | Don't write variable nam |
|--|-----------------------------|
| <pre>print(f"Count = { print(f"Fruit = { ## Count = 2 ## Fruit = Apple</pre> | Count}") Fruit}") |
| | |

While debugging, one often explicitly prints the name of the variable with its value to enhance code inspection.

Although there's nothing wrong with this approach, it makes your print statements messy and lengthy.

f-strings in Python offer an elegant solution for this.

To print the name of the variable, you can add an equals sign (=) in the curly braces after the variable. This will print the name of the variable along with its value but it is concise and clean.



Don't Use time.time() To Measure Execution Time



The **time**() method from the time library is frequently used to measure the execution time.

However, **time**() is not meant for timing your code. Rather, its actual purpose is to tell the current time. This, at many times, compromises the accuracy of measuring the exact run time.

The correct approach is to use **perf_counter**(), which deals with relative time. Thus, it is considered the most accurate way to time your code.



Now You Can Use DALL'E With OpenAI API



DALL·E is now accessible using the OpenAI API.

OpenAl recently made a big announcement. In a gist, developers can now integrate OpenAI's popular text-to-image model DALL·E into their apps using OpenAI API.

To achieve this, first, specify your API key (obtained after signup). Next, pass a text prompt to generate the corresponding image.



Polynomial Linear Regression Plot Made Easy With Seaborn



While creating scatter plots, one is often interested in displaying a linear regression (simple or polynomial) fit on the data points.

Here, training a model and manually embedding it in the plot can be a tedious job to do.

Instead, with Seaborn's **Implot**(), you can add a regression fit to a plot, without explicitly training a model.

Specify the degree of the polynomial as the "**order**" parameter. Seaborn will add the corresponding regression fit on the scatter plot.

Read more here: <u>Seaborn Docs</u>.





Retrieve Previously Computed Output In Jupyter Notebook

| hut[3]1 | | | | |
|---------|-----|------|------|--|
| | | col1 | col2 | |
| | 0 | A | 4.0 | |
| 1 | 1 | в | 3.0 | |
| | 2 | C | 5.0 | |
| n [4]1 | Out | E[3] | | |
| ut[4]: | | coi1 | col2 | |
| | 0 | A | 4.0 | |
| | 1 | в | 3.0 | |
| | | 10 | 5.0 | |

This is indeed one of the coolest things I have learned about Jupyter Notebooks recently.

Have you ever been in a situation where you forgot to assign the results obtained after some computation to a variable? Left with no choice, one has to unwillingly recompute the result and assign it to a variable for further use.

Thankfully, you don't have to do that anymore!

IPython provides a dictionary "**Out**", which you can use to retrieve a cell's output. All you need to do is specify the cell number as the dictionary's key, which will return the corresponding output. Isn't that cool?

View a video version of this post on LinkedIn: Post Link.



Parallelize Pandas Apply() With Swifter



The Pandas library has no inherent support to parallelize its operations. Thus, it always adheres to a single-core computation, even when other cores are idle.

Things get even worse when we use **apply**(). In Pandas, **apply**() is nothing but a glorified for-loop. As a result, it cannot even take advantage of vectorization.

A quick solution to parallelize **apply**() is to use **swifter** instead.

Swifter allows you to apply any function to a Pandas DataFrame in a parallelized manner. As a result, it provides considerable performance gains while preserving the old syntax. All you have to do is use **df.swifter.apply** instead of **df.apply**.

Read more here: Swifter Docs.





Create DataFrame Hassle-free By Using Clipboard

| # # Too one # 12 # 7 foo three 7 14 print(df.loc[df['A'] == 'foo']) | Step 2: Read in Pandas |
|--|--|
| yields | Read Clipboard |
| A B C D e foo one 0 8 2 foo two 2 4 4 foo two 4 8 6 foo one 6 12 7 foo three 7 14 | <pre>import pandas as pd df = pd.read_clipboard() >>> df.head()</pre> |
| Step 1: | A B C D B foc one 0 0 2 foc two 2 4 |
| | 6 foo one 6 12 7 foo three 7 14 |

Many Pandas users think that a DataFrame can ONLY be loaded from disk. However, this is not true.

Imagine one wants to create a DataFrame from tabular data printed on a website. Here, they are most likely to be tempted to copy the contents to a CSV and read it using Pandas' **read_csv**() method. But this is not an ideal approach here.

Instead, with the **read_clipboard()** method, you can eliminate the CSV step altogether.

This method allows you to create a DataFrame from tabular data stored in a clipboard buffer. Thus, you just need to copy the data and invoke the method to create a DataFrame. This is an elegant approach that saves plenty of time.

Read more here: Pandas Docs.





Run Python Project Directory As A Script



A Python script is executed when we run a .**py** file. In large projects with many files, there's often a source (or base) Python file we begin our program from.

To make things simpler, you can instead rename this base file to **__main__.py**. As a result, you can execute the whole pipeline by running the parent directory itself.

This is concise and also makes it slightly easier for other users to use your project.



营 file.py def func(): print(0) Terminal if condition: print(1) 5 python file.py else: print(2) Θ 2 🍦 file.py from icecream import ic def func(): ic() Terminal if condition: ic() \$ python file.py else: file.py:4 in func() ic() iel ic file.py:10 in func() in linkedin.com/in/avi-chawla

Inspect Program Flow with IceCream

While debugging, one often writes many **print**() statements to inspect the program's flow. This is especially true when we have many IF conditions.

Using empty ic() statements from the IceCream library can be a better alternative here. It outputs many additional details that help in inspecting the flow of the program.

This includes the line number, the name of the function, the file name, etc.

Read more in my Medium Blog: Link.





Don't Create Conditional Columns in Pandas with Apply



While creating conditional columns in Pandas, we tend to use the **apply**() method almost all the time.

However, **apply**() in Pandas is nothing but a glorified for-loop. As a result, it misses the whole point of vectorization.

Instead, you should use the **np.where**() method to create conditional columns. It does the same job but is extremely fast.

The condition is passed as the first argument. This is followed by the result if the condition evaluates to True (second argument) and False (third argument).

Read more here: <u>NumPy docs</u>.





Pretty Plotting With Pandas



Matplotlib is the default plotting API of Pandas. This means you can create a Matplotlib plot in Pandas, without even importing it.

Despite that, these plots have always been basic and not so visually appealing. Plotly, with its pretty and interactive plots, is often considered a suitable alternative. But familiarising yourself with a whole new library and its syntax can be time-consuming.

Thankfully, Pandas does allow you to change the default plotting backend. Thus, you can leverage third-party visualization libraries for plotting with Pandas. This makes it effortless to create prettier plots while almost preserving the old syntax.



Build Baseline Models Effortlessly With Sklearn



Before developing a complex ML model, it is always sensible to create a baseline first.

The baseline serves as a benchmark for the engineered model. Moreover, it ensures that the model is better than making random (or fixed) predictions. But building baselines with various strategies (random, fixed, most frequent, etc.) can be tedious.

Instead, Sklearn's **DummyClassifier**() (and **DummyRegressor**()) makes it totally effortless and straightforward. You can select the specific behavior of the baseline with the **strategy** parameter.

Read more here: **Documentation**.



Fine-grained Error Tracking With Python 3.11

| ••• | Error Tracking | |
|-----------------------|--------------------|------------------------|
| <mark>\$</mark> pytho | n expt.py | |
| Traceba | ck (most recent ca | ll last): |
| File | "expt.py", line 11 | , in <module></module> |
| pri | nt(function(a=2, b | =0)) |
| | *********** | *** |
| File | "expt.py", line 6, | in function |
| ret | urn (b / a) + (a | / b) |
| | | A |
| ZeroDiv | isionError: divisi | on by zero |

Python 3.11 was released today, and many exciting features have been introduced.

For instance, various speed improvements have been implemented. As per the official release, Python 3.11 is, on average, 25% faster than Python 3.10. Depending on your work, it can be up to 10-60% faster.

One of the coolest features is the fine-grained error locations in tracebacks.

In Python 3.10 and before, the interpreter showed the specific line that caused the error. This, at many times, caused ambiguity during debugging.

In Python 3.11, the interpreter will point to the exact location that caused the error. This will immensely help programmers during debugging.

Read more here: Official Release.

Find Your Code Hiding In Some Jupyter Notebook With Ease



avichawla.substack.com



Programmers who use Jupyter often refer to their old notebooks to find a piece of code.

However, it gets tedious when they have multiple files to look for and can't recall the specific notebook of interest. The file name **Untitled1.ipynb**, ..., and **Untitled82.ipynb**, don't make it any easier.

The "**grep**" command is a much better solution to this. Very know that you can use "**grep**" in the command line to search in notebooks, as you do in other files (.txt, for instance). This saves plenty of manual work and time.

P.S. How do you find some previously written code in your notebooks (if not manually)?



Restart the Kernel Without Losing Variables



While working in a Jupyter Notebook, you may want to restart the kernel due to several reasons. But before restarting, one often tends to dump data objects to disk to avoid recomputing them in the subsequent run.

The "store" magic command serves as an ideal solution to this. Here, you can obtain a previously computed value even after restarting your kernel. What's more, you never need to go through the hassle of dumping the object to disk.



How to Read Multiple CSV Files Efficiently



In many situations, the data is often split into multiple CSV files and transferred to the DS/ML team for use.

As Pandas does not support parallelization, one has to iterate over the list of files and read them one by one for further processing.

"Datatable" can provide a quick fix for this. Instead of reading them iteratively with Pandas, you can use Datatable to read a bunch of files. Being parallelized, it provides a significant performance boost as compared to Pandas.



The performance gain is not just limited to I/O but is observed in many other tabular operations as well.

Read more here: DataTable Docs.



Elegantly Plot the Decision Boundary of a Classifier



Plotting the decision boundary of a classifier can reveal many crucial insights about its performance.

Here, region-shaded plots are often considered a suitable choice for visualization purposes. But, explicitly creating one can be extremely time-consuming and complicated.

MIxtend condenses that to a simple one-liner in Python. Here, you can plot the decision boundary of a classifier with ease, by just providing it the model and the data.



An Elegant Way to Import Metrics From Sklearn



While using **Scikit-learn**, one often imports multiple metrics to evaluate a model. Although there is nothing wrong with this practice, it makes the code inelegant and cluttered - with the initial few lines of the file overloaded with imports.

Instead of importing the metrics individually, you can use the **get_scorer**() method. Here, you can pass the metric's name as a string, and it returns a scorer object for you.

Read more here: Scikit-learn page.



Configure Sklearn To Output Pandas DataFrame

| IMAAYP SPA | n.preprocessing | |
|-------------------------|--|---------------------------------------|
| Tinbotic 2 ca | ugard2ca.fer | |
| X_train = | ## Pandas DataFrame | |
| scaler = S | tandardScaler() | |
| X_scaled = | <pre>scaler.fit_transform(X_train)</pre> | |
| | | Output is |
| | | |
| type(X_sca | led) ## numpy.ndarray | NumPy Arra |
| type(X_sca | led) ## numpy.ndarray | NumPy Arra |
| type(X_sca | <pre>led) ## numpy.ndarray</pre> | NumPy Arra |
| type(X_sca | <pre>led) ## numpy.ndarray Scikit-learn 1.2.dev scaler = StandardScaler()</pre> | NumPy Arra |
| type(X_sca | <pre>led) ## numpy.ndarray</pre> | NumPy Arra |
| type(X_sca Output is | <pre>led) ## numpy.ndarray Scikit-learn 1.2.dev scaler = StandardScaler() scaler.set_output(transform=" X_scaled = scaler.fit_transform="" X_scaler_X_scaled = scaler.fit_transform="" X_scaler_X_scaled = scaler_X_scaler_X_scaled = scaler_X_scaler_X_scaler_X_scaler_X_scaler_X_scaler_X_scaler_X_scaler_X_scaleR_s</pre> | NumPy Arra pandas") rm(X_train) |

Recently, Scikit-learn announced the release of one of the most awaited improvements. In a gist, sklearn can now be configured to output Pandas DataFrames instead of NumPy arrays.

Until now, Sklearn's transformers were configured to accept a Pandas DataFrame as input. But they always returned a NumPy array as an output. As a result, the output had to be manually projected back to a Pandas DataFrame.

Now, the **set_output** API will let transformers output a Pandas DataFrame instead.

This will make running pipelines on DataFrames smoother. Moreover, it will provide better ways to track feature names.



Display Progress Bar With Apply() in Pandas



While applying a method to a DataFrame using **apply**(), we don't get to see the progress and an estimated remaining time.

To resolve this, you can instead use **progress_apply**() from **tqdm** to display a progress bar while applying a method.

Read more here: GitHub.



Modify a Function During Run-time



Have you ever been in a situation where you wished to add more details to an already running code?

This is typically observed in ML where one often forgets to print all the essential training details/metrics. Executing the entire code again, especially when it has been up for some time is not an ideal approach here.

If you want to modify a function during execution, decorate it with the reloading decorator (@**reloading**). As a result, Python will reload the function from the source before each execution.

Link to reloading: GitHub.



Regression Plot Made Easy with Plotly



While creating scatter plots, one is often interested in displaying a simple linear regression fit on the data points.

Here, training a model and manually embedding it in the plot can be a tedious job to do.

Instead, with Plotly, you can add a regression line to a plot, without explicitly training a model.

Read more <u>here</u>.



Polynomial Linear Regression with NumPy



Polynomial linear regression using Sklearn is tedious as one has to explicitly code its features. This can get challenging when one has to iteratively build higher-degree polynomial models.

NumPy's **polyfit**() method is an excellent alternative to this. Here, you can specify the degree of the polynomial as a parameter. As a result, it automatically creates the corresponding polynomial features.

The downside is that you cannot add custom features such as trigonometric/logarithmic. In other words, you are restricted to only polynomial features. But if that is not your requirement, NumPy's **polyfit**() method can be a better approach.

Read more: https://numpy.org/doc/stable/reference/generated/numpy.polyfit.html.



Alter the Datatype of Multiple Columns at Once



A common approach to alter the datatype of multiple columns is to invoke the **astype**() method individually for each column.

Although the approach works as expected, it requires multiple function calls and more code. This can be particularly challenging when you want to modify the datatype of many columns.

As a better approach, you can condense all the conversions into a single function call. This is achieved by passing a dictionary of column-to-datatype mapping, as shown below.





Datatype For Handling Missing Valued Columns in Pandas

| | <pre>>>> len(df.col1) ## Total entries: 1 000 000</pre> |
|--|---|
| | and to care energiest appoortoop |
| | <pre>>>>> len(df[df.col1.isna()])</pre> |
| | ## NaN entries: 700,000 (70%) |
| | |
| | |
| | Sparse Datatype |
| ••• | Sparse Datatype |
| df.col1 | Sparse Datatype |
| of.col1 | Sparse Datatype .memory_usage() ry usage before conversion: 7.6 MB |
| of.col1 ## Memo | Sparse Datatype .memory_usage() ry usage before conversion: 7.6 MB |
| df.col1 ## Memo: df["col: | Sparse Datatype .memory_usage() ry usage before conversion: 7.6 MB 1"] = df.col1.astype("Sparse[float32]" |
| df.col1 ## Memo) df["col1 df.col1 | Sparse Datatype .memory_usage() ry usage before conversion: 7.6 MB 1"] = df.col1.astype("Sparse[float32]" .memory_usage() |

If your data has NaN-valued columns, Pandas provides a datatype specifically for representing them - called the Sparse datatype.

This is especially handy when you are working with large data-driven projects with many missing values.

The snippet compares the memory usage of float and sparse datatype in Pandas.



Parallelize Pandas with Pandarallel

| •• | - vandaraliel.py |
|------------|---|
| fro pan | <mark>m</mark> pandarallel <mark>import</mark> pandarallel darallel.initialize() |
| def | add_row(row): return sum(row) |
| de. | |
| ar | = ## 10M Rows, 2 Columns |
| | Apply vs Parallel Apply |
| df. ## | Apply vs Parallel Apply Apply (add_row, axis = 1) |

Pandas' operations do not support parallelization. As a result, it adheres to a single-core computation, even when other cores are available. This makes it inefficient and challenging, especially on large datasets.

"Pandarallel" allows you to parallelize its operations to multiple CPU cores - by changing just one line of code. Supported methods include apply(), applymap(), groupby(), map() and rolling().

Read more: GitHub.





Why you should not dump DataFrames to a CSV



The CSV file format is widely used to save Pandas DataFrames. But are you aware of its limitations? To name a few,

1. The CSV does not store the datatype information. Thus, if you modify the datatype of column(s), save it to a CSV, and load again, Pandas will not return the same datatypes.

2. Saving the DataFrame to a CSV file format isn't as optimized as other



supported formats by Pandas. These include Parquet, Pickle, etc.

Of course, if you need to view your data outside Python (Excel, for instance), you are bound to use a CSV. But if not, prefer other file formats.

Further reading: Why I Stopped Dumping DataFrames to a CSV and Why You Should Too.



Save Memory with Python Generators



If you use large static iterables in Python, a list may not be an optimal choice, especially in memory-constrained applications.

A list stores the entire collection in memory. However, a generator computes and loads a single element at a time ONLY when it is required. This saves both memory and object creation time.

Of course, there are some limitations of generators too. For instance, you cannot use common list operations such as append(), slicing, etc.

Moreover, every time you want to reuse an element, it must be regenerated (see Generator.py: line 12).



Don't use print() to debug your code.

| ••• | Print |
|-----|--|
| def | <pre>func(arr, n): print("arr =", arr, "n =", n)</pre> |
| fun | o([1, 2, 3], 2) |
| ## | arr = [1, 2, 3] n = 2 |
| | |
| | Icecream |
| | from icecream import ic |
| | def func(arr, n): |
| | ic(arr, n) |
| | func([1,2,3], 2) |
| | ## ic arr: [1, 2, 3], n: 2 |
| | |

Debugging with print statements is a messy and inelegant approach. It is confusing to map the output to its corresponding debug statement. Moreover, it requires extra manual formatting to comprehend the output.

The "**icecream**" library in Python is an excellent alternative to this. It makes debugging effortless and readable, with minimal code. Features include printing expressions, variable names, function names, line numbers, filenames, and many



more.

P.S. The snippet only gives a brief demonstration. However, the actual functionalities are much more powerful and elegant as compared to debugging with print().

More about icecream here: <u>https://github.com/gruns/icecream</u>.





Find Unused Python Code With Ease

As the size of your codebase increases, so can the number of instances of unused code. This inhibits its readability and conciseness.

With the "vulture" module in Python, you can locate dead (unused) code in your pipeline, as shown in the snippet.



Define the Correct DataType for Categorical Columns

| Categorical Col. | Reduce Memory Usage |
|-----------------------|--|
| | Inport pandas dis pd |
| Import pandas as pd | df.Gender memory usage(), df.Gender drype |
| len(df.Gender) | ## 90.5 %B, object |
| mm 1500 | AND INCOMENDATION OF THE REAL OF THE REAL PROPERTY OF |
| df.Gender.unique() | dr["Gender"] = dr.Gender.astype("category" |
| ## ["Male", "Fenale"] | df.Gender.menory_usage(), df.Gender.dtype ## 1.8 KB, CategoricalDtype |
| | Contraction of the local division of the loc |

If your data has categorical columns, you should not represent them as int/string data type.

Rather, Pandas provides an optimized data type specifically for categorical columns. This is especially handy when you are working with large data-driven projects.

The snippet compares the memory usage of string and categorical data types in Pandas.


Transfer Variables Between Jupyter Notebooks



While working with multiple jupyter notebooks, you may need to share objects between them.

With the "store" magic command, you can transfer variables across notebooks without storing them on disk.

P.S. You can also restart the kernel and retrieve an old variable with "store".



Why You Should Not Read CSVs with Pandas



Pandas adheres to a single-core computation, which makes its operations extremely inefficient, especially on large datasets.

The "datatable" library in Python is an excellent alternative with a Pandas-like API. Its multi-threaded data processing support makes it faster than Pandas.

The snippet demonstrates the run-time comparison of creating a "Pandas DataFrame" from a CSV using Pandas and Datatable.



Modify Python Code During Run-Time



Have you ever been in a situation where you wished to add more details to an already running code (printing more details in a for-loop, for instance)?

Executing the entire code again, especially when it has been up for some time, is not the ideal approach here.

With the "reloading" library in Python, you can add more details to a running code without losing any existing progress.



Handle Missing Data With Missingno



If you want to analyze missing values in your dataset, Pandas may not be an apt choice.

Pandas' methods hide many important details about missing values. These include their location, periodicity, the correlation across columns, etc.

The "missingno" library in Python is an excellent resource for exploring missing data. It generates informative visualizations for improved data analysis.

The snippet demonstrates missing data analysis using Pandas and Missingno.